Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 6th December, 2007 at 10.00 am

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL members of the Board at 9.30 am)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

C Campbell
J Chapman
J Elliott

R D Feldman
S Hamilton
R Harington
W Hyde (Chair)
A Lamb

B Lancaster
J Langdale
T Murray

K Renshaw

Otley and Yeadon
Weetwood

Morley South

Alwoodley

Chapel Allerton

Gipton and Harehills
Temple Newsam
Wetherby

Moortown

Temple Newsam
Garforth and Swillington
Ardsley and Robin Hood

Co-opted Members (Voting)

Mr E A Britten

Prof P H J H Gosden
Mr R Greaves

Mr | Falkingham

Mrs S Knights

Church Representative (Catholic)

Church Representative (Church of England)
Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)
Parent Governor Representative (Special)
Parent Governor Representative (Primary)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting)

Mr T Hales
Ms C Foote
Mrs S Hutchinson
Ms J Morris-Boam

Ms T Kayani

Teacher Representative

Teacher Representative

Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership
Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services
Forum Representative

Leeds Youth Work Partnership Representative

Agenda compiled by:
Telephone:

247 4325

Governance Services

Civic Hall

LEEDS LS1 1UR

Gerard Watson

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Kate Arscott
Tel: 247 4189

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
1 APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and
public will be excluded)
2 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
To identify items where resolutions may be moved
to exclude the public
3 LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstance shall be specified in the
minutes)
4 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members’
Code of Conduct
5 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence from the
meeting
6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 8TH 1-12

NOVEMBER 2007

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 8" November 2007




Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
7 MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY | 13-
COMMITTEE 18
To note the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting held on 9" October 2007
8 SUPPORT FOR PARENTS AND FAMILIES IN 19 -
LEEDS 38
To consider a report from the Director of Children’s
Services which introduces the new Family Support
and Parenting Strategy for Leeds, in addition to
providing the Board with a brief overview of the
work undertaken by the Parent Partnership service
9 YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY FORUM 39 -
40
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which updates the Board on
the progress being made in relation to the level of
young people’s participation in the scrutiny process
10 EDUCATION STANDARDS - DRAFT TERMS OF | 41 -
REFERENCE 42
To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which sets out and invites
the Board to approve draft terms of reference for
the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry into education
standards
(Draft terms of reference to follow)
11 WORK PROGRAMME 43 -
64

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which details the Scrutiny
Board’s Work Programme for the remainder of the
municipal year




Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
12 INQUIRY INTO SERVICES FOR 8-13 YEAR 65 -
OLDS 158
To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which details the evidence
to be considered as part of the third and fourth
formal sessions of the Scrutiny Board'’s inquiry into
services for 8-13 year olds
13 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 17" January 2008 at 10.00 a.m. in the
Civic Hall, Leeds

(Please note that a pre-meeting is scheduled for all
members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)




Agenda ltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES)
THURSDAY, 8TH NOVEMBER, 2007
PRESENT: Councillor W Hyde in the Chair

Councillors J Chapman, J Elliott, R Harington,
A Lamb, B Lancaster, T Murray and K Renshaw

CO-OPTED MEMBERS: Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic)
(VOTING) Prof PHJ H Gosden - Church Representative (Church
of England)
Mr | Falkingham - Parent Governor Representative
(Special)
Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor Representative
(Primary)
CO-OPTED MEMBERS: Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative

(NON-VOTING)

50 Chair's Opening Remarks
The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the November meeting of the
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services).

51 Late Items
In accordance with his powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chair admitted to the agenda a report outlining a
range of adoption related data from the past six months, which had been
requested by the Scrutiny Board, and was to be considered as part of agenda
item 10, entitled, ‘Recommendation Tracking'.

The report was unavailable at the time of the agenda despatch, and needed
to be considered as part of agenda item 10 (Minute No. 58 refers).

52 Declarations of Interest
Councillor Murray declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 8
entitled, ‘Performance Management Quarter 2 2007/2008’, due to his wife’s
position as a Reviewing Officer for Social Services, and a personal interest in
relation to agenda item 13, entitled, ‘Review of 14-19 Education and Training
Provision in Leeds’, due to being Chief Executive of the Learning Partnerships
organisation (Minute Nos. 56 and 61 refer).

Councillor Chapman declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 16,
entitled, “‘Work Programme’, due to her involvement in issues concerning the
proposed fencing of playing pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground, which was
detailed within the Executive Board minutes from the meeting held on 17™
October 2007 (Minute No. 64 refers)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 1



53

54

55

56

Mr E A Britten declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 13,
entitled, ‘Review of 14-19 Education and Training Provision in Leeds’, due to
his position as Governor of Notre Dame Sixth Form College (Minute No. 61
refers).

Further declarations of interest were made at later points in the meeting
(Minute Nos. 56, 58, 60, 61 and 62 refer).

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence from the meeting were received on behalf of
Councillors C Campbell, R D Feldman, Mr T Hales, Mrs S Hutchinson and Ms
J Morris-Boam.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the previous Scrutiny Board (Children’s
Services) meeting held on 11" October 2007 be approved as a correct record.

Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 11" September 2007 be noted.

Performance Management Quarter 2 2007/2008

The Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement submitted a report which
invited the Board to consider key performance issues from quarter two of
2007/2008, which were considered to be of corporate significance for the
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services). The report also advised Members of a
predicted Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) score for
2007/08.

Appended to the report was a table detailing all relevant Performance
Indicators for the Board.

Councillor Richard Brett, Lead Executive Member for Children’s Services,
Councillor Richard Harker, Executive Member with responsibility for Learning,
Rosemary Archer, Director of Children’s Services, Dirk Gilleard, Deputy Chief
Executive, Education Leeds, Edwina Harrison, Chief Officer, Children and
Families, and Stuart Cameron-Strickland, Commissioning Manager,
Performance and Quality Assurance, both of Social Care, were all in
attendance to present the report and answer Members’ questions.

Having received a brief summary of the key issues detailed within the report,

a question and answer session ensued. The main areas of debate were as

follows:-

Issues Relating to Looked After Children and Unaccompanied Asylum

Seeking Children

* The Lead Executive Member for Children’s Services made reference to
the rise in the number of Looked After Children in Leeds, with particular
reference being made to the recent rise in unaccompanied asylum
seeking children who were entering the city. Members were also advised
that parental mental health and parental drug misuse were common

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 2



features in families where children had become looked after;

Following Members’ enquiries, the Board learned that as of September
2007, there were 104 unaccompanied asylum seeking children in the
authority’s care, the majority of which were 16-17 year olds. The Board
was then assured that every effort was made to identify such individuals,
and when they came to the authority’s attention, each individual was
placed in the most appropriate setting for their needs;

Members noted that latest figures showed that there were about 1,360
Looked After Children in Leeds, which was higher than the national
average. However, the Board learned that the provision for Looked After
Children in Leeds was being improved via a series of initiatives, such as
the recruitment of a ‘virtual’ Head Teacher for all Looked After Children in
the city;

The Board sought information on the number of Looked After Children in
Leeds who had statements or were otherwise deemed to have special
educational needs, and were advised that such information would be
submitted.

Issues Relating to Attendance and Absenteeism

Members made enquiries into the actions taken to reduce the number of
persistent absentees in Leeds. In response, the Board noted that
Education Leeds and its partners had worked with the Department for
Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) in order to revise its approach
towards attendance, however it was acknowledged that such
arrangements now needed to be turned into results;

Having emphasised the strong link between attendance and attainment,
Members noted the actions being taken to address the issue of pupils
being withdrawn from school, due to family holidays during term time;
Having highlighted the need for parental participation when tackling the
problem of persistent absenteeism, the Board noted that the approach
taken needed to place an emphasis upon personalisation and intervention;
Members made reference to the need for the appropriate curriculum to be
delivered, in order to keep young people in attendance at school. In
response, the Board learned that a curriculum was being developed,
particularly in relation to Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3, which would be
delivered through an entitlement for all young people, and which would
enable regular intervention to take place with individuals, whenever it was
required.

General Observations

In response to Members’ comments regarding the decline in secondary
school performance against the national minimum ‘floor targets’ for Key
Stage 3, the Board was advised that although such results did reflect the
national trend, a more unified and less subject based approach was being
taken to address this issue;

The Board learned that the ‘Payment for Skills’ programme aimed to
recruit a greater number of foster parents in Leeds;

In response to Members’ enquiries, the Board was advised of the intention
to continue to increase the provision of work based learning in Leeds;
Members discussed the impact that a possible increase in the number of

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 3



57

academies in Leeds could have in relation to school term times;

* Following Members’ enquiries, the Board learned of some of the actions
which were being taken to engage with and address the needs not only of
the children and young people of Leeds, but also their families and the
wider community.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the information requested by the Board be forwarded to Members for
consideration.

(Councillor Lancaster declared a personal interest in relation to this item, due
to her respective positions as Governor of the North West Specialist Inclusive
Learning Centre (SILC) and Governor of Carr Manor High School)

(Mrs S Knights declared a personal interest in relation to this item, due to
being a foster parent)

Children's Services and the Children and Young People's Plan - Update
Further to Minute No. 33, 13" September 2007, the Board received a report
from the Director of Children’s Services which updated Members on several
key areas of work being undertaken across children’s services, and provided
an overview of the progress made in relation to the Children and Young
People’s Plan (CYPP) for Leeds. In order to assist the Board in monitoring
the progress made in relation to the delivery of the CYPP’s priorities, the
report focussed upon two of the CYPP’s priorities: reducing teenage
conception; and enabling the engagement of parents and young learners in
early years and primary schools.

Appended to the report was a chart illustrating Leeds’ Children Trust
arrangements, in addition to Leeds’ CYPP priorities.

Councillor Richard Brett, Lead Executive Member for Children’s Services,
Rosemary Archer, Director of Children’s Services, Stephanie Taylor, Parent
Partnership Officer, Education Leeds, Andrea Richardson, Quality and
Standards Manager, Early Years, and Martin Ford, Head of Commissioning —
Children and Maternity Services, Leeds Primary Care Trust, were all in
attendance to answer Members’ questions.

Having received a summary of the key issues detailed within the report, a

question and answer session ensued. The main areas of debate were as

follows:-

Issues Relating to Parental Participation

e With reference to the priorities of the CYPP, Members emphasised the
need to ensure effective parental participation when pursuing such
priorities, which needed to be undertaken in a multi agency way, in order
to address the needs not just of young people, but of the whole family;

e Members made enquiries into the existence of performance related data
concerning the work which had been undertaken in relation to the
engagement of parents and young learners in early years and primary

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 4



58

schools. Having made reference to research which had been carried out
by Durham University on the outcomes achieved by the Surestart
programme, Members were advised that relevant data would be
submitted to the Board for information.

General Observations

e Members highlighted the need for Leeds to continue to publish a plan
which was dedicated to all issues and priorities concerning children’s
services, rather than such issues being subsumed within a larger,
strategic plan. In response, the Board was assured that there continued to
be a statutory requirement to publish a dedicated CYPP, and noted that
discussions were currently ongoing on the most appropriate way to
incorporate these issues within the Leeds Strategic Plan;

e The Lead Executive Member for Children’s Services made reference to
the fact that approximately 500 young people from the 8,000 in each Year
11 cohort were identified as disengaged. He suggested that this was a
cross-cutting issue which needed to be addressed in a multi-agency way,
and a matter which the Board may wish to consider in the future;

e With regard to the levels of teenage conception in Leeds, Members
were advised that Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) were
currently undertaking a piece of work on this issue, and that following an
invitation from that Scrutiny Board, Councillor Lancaster had been
nominated to participate in the piece of work, as a representative of
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services).

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the information requested by the Board be forwarded to Members for
consideration.

Recommendation Tracking

The Board considered a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which provided Members with an opportunity to monitor the
progress of recommendations which had been previously made by the Board,
in line with the new, more formal system of recommendation tracking which
had been adopted by Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Appended to the report for Members’ information was a flow chart which
helped Members classify and consider the progress of its recommendations,
in addition to a table summarising the current position of all relevant
recommendations. In addition, a report which summarised a range of adoption
related data from the past six months had been circulated to Members prior to
the meeting.

Rodger Walker, Resources Team Manager - Children’s Social Care, was in
attendance to answer Members’ questions.

Members emphasised the need to promote the work undertaken by Adoption
Panels in Leeds, and suggested that more could be done to encourage

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 5



59

Elected Members’ involvement in such panels, for example by encouraging
them to observe a Panel meeting.

With regard to the Board’s inquiry into adoption in Leeds, Members received
an update on the progress which was being made in relation to the issues
raised by Members during the inquiry, with particular reference being made to
the time taken for the judicial processes in adoption cases to be completed.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the status of each recommendation be agreed as set out within the
report;

(c). That it be agreed for the Inclusion Working Group, initially established to
consider the objectives of the Inclusion Strategy, to consider an update on the
progress made against the recommendations of the SILCs Inquiry.

(Councillor Lancaster declared a personal interest in relation to this item, due
to her position as Chair of the Foster Carers’ Liaison Group, and due to her
position on the Elmete Adoption Panel)

Request for Scrutiny

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
detailing a request for scrutiny which had been received from Executive
Board. The request related to the processes currently in place to initially
publish Key Stage 4 results, with a view to ensuring that the level of risk that
incorrect results may be published was minimised.

Councillor Richard Harker, Executive Member with responsibility for Learning,
Dirk Gilleard, Deputy Chief Executive, and Gary Milner, 14-19 Strategy Co-
ordinator, both of Education Leeds, were in attendance to answer Members’
questions.

Members noted that on 17™ October 2007, Executive Board considered a
report relating to the progress being made at South Leeds High School.
Having noted the 2007 GCSE results for the school which had been detailed
within the report, Executive Board highlighted an inconsistency in the
provisional results which had been published in August, and requested that
the Scrutiny Board examined the processes whereby Key Stage 4 results
were initially published, with a view to ensuring that the level of risk that
incorrect results may be published was minimised.

In considering the request, the Board noted that an explanation for the
discrepancy between the initial provisional results and the published results
had been subsequently provided to Executive Board Members. The Board
learned that the discrepancy had been due to a recent change in the national
criteria, whereby English and Maths results were only counted at GCSE level,
and not equivalent qualifications. The two schools involved had initially
reported the equivalent qualifications.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 6



60

Having noted the explanation for the miscalculation, a question and answer

session ensued. The main areas of debate were as follows:-

e Members learned that the change in criteria for recognising English and
Maths qualifications would last until 2010, when the accreditation for
‘functional skills’ in both subjects would include both GCSE and non
GCSE qualifications;

e The Board highlighted the importance of vocational qualifications,
raised concerns in relation to the lack of national recognition for GCSE
equivalent levels of attainment, and recommended that locally, such
results were submitted to Members in the interim period, alongside the
nationally defined results;

e Members received clarification on the attainment levels required to
achieve alternative Level 2 qualifications in English and Maths.

Having considered the explanation for the discrepancy, Members agreed that
there was no requirement for the Board to undertake any further scrutiny on
this matter.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the request for scrutiny be noted, and that no further scrutiny be
undertaken by the Board on this matter;

(b). That Executive Board be invited to endorse the Board’s concerns
regarding the lack of national recognition for GCSE equivalent levels of
attainment, in addition to the Board’s recommendation that locally we continue
to recognise these levels of attainment, and that such results are provided to
Members in the interim period, alongside the nationally defined results.

David Young Community Academy

The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which sought to brief Members on the David Young Community
Academy, and how it fitted into the provision of children’s services in Leeds.

Appended to the report was a briefing paper on the issue, which had been
submitted by Education Leeds in consultation with the Principal of the
Academy.

Pat Toner, Strategic Manager, Human Resources, Education Leeds, was in
attendance to present the briefing paper and answer Members’ questions.

Following a brief summary of the information provided, a question and answer

session ensued. The main areas of debate were as follows:-

Attendance Levels and Permanent Exclusions

e Members referred to the number of young people who had been
permanently excluded from the Academy, made enquiries into the
reasons for such permanent exclusions, and sought information on the
destinations of those young people. In response, it was emphasised that
the Academy had worked closely with the local authority on any issues
relating to exclusion, and that any permanent exclusions had been for
serious offences. The Board was also advised that the destinations of the
permanently excluded individuals and the grounds for such exclusions

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 7



would be submitted to the Board,;

e The Board acknowledged the serious nature of the offences which had led
to the permanent exclusions at the Academy, and emphasised the need
for the local authority to make appropriate provision for such individuals;

e Members considered the impact that the Academy’s approach towards
vocational opportunities had on the Academy’s level of permanent
exclusions and attendance.

Timetabling and Curriculum Related Issues

¢ Following a discussion which related to the opportunities available at the
Academy for both academic and vocational pathways, Members made
enquiries into the respective status held by the alternative pathways;

¢ Having discussed the timetabling arrangements which had been
established at the Academy, Members were advised that there was a
strong expectation for pupils to attend ‘session three’ of the timetable, in
which a range of activities were delivered.

General Observations

e The Board made enquiries into the levels of trade union support that
employees of the Academy received, in addition to details of staff
turnover at the Academy;

e Inresponse to Members’ enquiries, the Board was advised that details
relating to the level of involvement that the relevant Extended Schools
Co-ordinator had with the Academy would be submitted to the Board for
information;

e Members made enquiries into the arrangements which were in place to
ensure that appropriate parental participation and engagement was
undertaken by the Academy.

In conclusion, the Board decided to schedule a further session into the work
programme, with a representative of the Academy being invited to attend a
future meeting of the Board, in order to provide further details.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the information requested by the Board be forwarded to Members for
consideration;

(c). That the issue of the David Young Community Academy, and how it fits
into the provision of children’s services in Leeds, be rescheduled into the work
programme, when a representative of the David Young Community Academy
was able to attend, in order to provide further details on such matters.

(Mrs S Knights declared a personal interest in relation to this item, due to her
position on the North West SILC Parent’s Forum)

(Councillor Renshaw left the meeting at 11.50 a.m., during the consideration
of this item)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 8



61

Review of 14-19 Education and Training Provision in Leeds

The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which updated Members on the progress made in relation to the
review of 14-19 education and training provision in Leeds. The report also
invited the Board to consider the formal proposals for the reorganisation of
Further Education (FE) in Leeds, which were to be published by the
Learning and Skills Council (LSC).

Appended to the report was the statement of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s
Services) entitled,’14-19 Review of Education and Training Provision in
Leeds’ which had been published by the Board in April 2007, in addition to a
report approved by Executive Board on 17" October 2007 entitled,
‘Transforming Secondary and Post-16 Provision in Leeds’.

Councillor Richard Harker, Executive Member with responsibility for Learning,
Dirk Gilleard, Deputy Chief Executive, and Gary Milner, 14-19 Strategy Co-
ordinator, both of Education Leeds, in addition to Cristina George, the
Learning and Skills Council’s Partnership Director for Leeds, were all in
attendance to answer Members’ questions.

Having noted that the LSC’s formal proposals were yet to be published, the
LSC’s Partnership Director for Leeds provided the Board with a verbal briefing
on the proposals. A question and answer session then ensued. The main
areas of debate were as follows:-

Issues Concerning the Proposals for the Reorganisation of FE Provision in

Leeds

* Members acknowledged the levels of support for the proposals, and
enquired about the impact upon those institutions which were not involved
in the reorganisation. In response, the Board noted that when a model for
reorganisation had been agreed, the various sources of funding available
to assist with the process would be fully utilised, in order to ensure that the
most appropriate FE provision was delivered to all young people in Leeds;

* In response to Members’ enquiries, the Board noted that schools’ sixth
forms would continue to play an important part in FE provision, however
greater emphasis would have to be placed upon schools delivering such
provision in partnership with other institutions;

* Following Members’ enquiries into the FE provision which would be
available for learners with Special Educational Needs (SEN), the Board
was told that such young people were comprehensively covered within the
proposals, and that every child needed an individual learning plan, in order
to maximise their chances of success;

* Members received a brief summary of Education Leeds’ response to the
LSC’s proposals;

* The Board noted the proposed timescales in which the reorganisation of
FE provision in Leeds would be delivered;

* Members discussed the revised post-16 funding methodology which
was being established, and the impact that the revised funding
methodology would have on the various institutions throughout Leeds.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 9



62

Issues Relating to Consultation

* Following Members’ enquiries, the Board was informed that parents were
part of the consultation process relating to the proposals, and that
learners’ views would be sought via organisations such as the Youth
Council. Members were assured that the education and training of our
young people would not be disrupted, as the reorganisation was delivered;

* Members discussed the potential geographical locations of Academies
which may be established in the future, in relation to clustering
arrangements.

General Observations

* Members acknowledged the increasingly mixed economy of education
provision in Leeds, and raised concerns in relation to the differing
conditions of employment for staff delivering such provision. In response,
Members noted that this issue needed to be addressed nationally, as such
matters could not be approached on an individual institution basis;

* The Board discussed the extent to which there would be democratic
accountability in respect of the partnerships which would be established
as part of the arrangements for delivering education provision in the future.

In conclusion, it was proposed that as the LSC’s proposals were yet to be
published, the Board could not directly comment upon them, therefore
Members gave their general support towards the concept of the proposed
merger, as an element of the overall review of 14-19 provision in Leeds, and it
was

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That in light of the fact that the LSC’s formal proposals are yet to be
published, the Board’s statement entitled, ‘14-19 Review of Education and
Training Provision in Leeds’, which had been published in April 2007,
following the Board'’s earlier consideration of the 14-19 review, be re-
submitted to Executive Board for consideration, and that the Board
recommends that Executive Board satisfies itself that the issues raised in the
statement have been adequately addressed in responding on behalf of the
council to the LSC’s formal proposals.

(Councillor Murray declared a personal interest in relation to this item, due to
his position as Chair of Governors at Thomas Danby College)

(Councillor Lancaster left the meeting at 12.33 p.m., during the consideration
of this item)

Inquiry into Fountain Primary School

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
which sought Members’ formal approval of the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry report
into Fountain Primary School.

A draft version of the inquiry report was appended for Members’
consideration.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 10



63

64

Having agreed to include several minor amendments to the inquiry report, it
was

RESOLVED -

(a). That the contents of the report be noted;

(b). That the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry report into Fountain Primary School be
approved, subject to the inclusion of several minor amendments as agreed by
the Board at today’s meeting;

(c). That relevant officers be requested to formally respond to the Scrutiny
Board’s recommendations, as detailed within the report, with such responses
being submitted to the Board’s meeting in February 2008.

(Councillor Elliott declared a personal interest in relation to this item due to
her position as a Governor of Fountain Primary School)

(Councillor Harington left the meeting at 12.50 p.m., during the consideration
of this item)

Education Standards - Draft Terms of Reference

The Board considered a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which sought the Board’s approval of draft terms of reference
for the inquiry into education standards in Leeds.

Members were advised that the draft terms of reference were still being
prepared, and it was proposed that they were submitted to the next meeting of
the Board for approval.

Members highlighted the proportion of disaffected young people in each
Year 11 cohort, an issue which had been considered earlier in the meeting,
and proposed that this issue be incorporated into the draft terms of reference.

RESOLVED - That the draft terms of reference for the Scrutiny Board’s
inquiry into education standards in Leeds be submitted to the December
meeting of the Scrutiny Board for Members’ approval.

Work Programme

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
which detailed the Scrutiny Board’s work programme for the remainder of the
current municipal year.

Appended to the report for Members’ information was the current version of
the Board’s work programme, an extract from the Forward Plan of Key
Decisions for the period 1% November 2007 to 29" February 2008 which
related to the Board’s remit, together with the minutes from the Executive
Board meeting held on 17" October 2007, in addition to the minutes from the
Leeds Admissions Forum meeting held on 26" September 2007.

Members were advised that the work programme would be revised to reflect
Members’ requests relating to the David Young Community Academy.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 11



65

The Board sought an update on the working group which had been
established in July 2007 to monitor the progress, and help develop a
response to the recommendations detailed within the inquiry report published
by the Young People’s Scrutiny Forum entitled, ‘Catching the Bus’. In
response, the Board was advised that elections for the Youth Council had
recently been held, and an appropriate date for the initial meeting of the
working group would be sought in the near future.

RESOLVED -

(a). That subject to the above comments, the Board’s Work Programme, as
appended to the report, be approved;

(b). That Mrs S Knights be appointed to the Inclusion working group.

Date and Time of Next Meeting

Thursday, 6th December 2007 at 10.00 a.m. in the Civic Hall, Leeds.
(Pre-meeting scheduled for 9.30 a.m.)

(The meeting concluded at 12.58 p.m.)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 6th December, 2007

Page 12



39

40

Agenda ltem 7

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 9TH OCTOBER, 2007
PRESENT: Councillor P Grahame in the Chair

Councillors B Anderson, S Bentley,
S Golton, T Hanley, A McKenna, W Hyde,
E Minkin and R Pryke

APOLOGIES Councillor B Gettings

Declaration of Interests
The following Member declarations of interest were made:

Agenda Item 9 (Minute No. 43 refers) — Planning Performance — Councillors
Golton and Minkin — personal interests in their capacity as Members of Plans
Panels.

(NB: See also later Minute Nos 44 and 45)
Minutes - 11th September 2007 and Matters Arising

The draft minutes of the meeting held on 11" September 2007 were
submitted for confirmation.

(a) Debt Rescheduling (Minute No 29 refers)
Councillor Hanley requested that OSC Members be supplied as soon
as possible with the additional information requested at the last
meeting regarding an explanation of the dates that loans were taken
out, paid off or rescheduled, and how this had led to accumulated
savings of some £21.8m. The Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development undertook to pursue this.

(b)  Work Programme and Draft Terms of Reference for Proposed Inquiries
(Minute No 37 refers)
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development confirmed that further
names had been received to join the working group, the purpose of
which would be to consider terms of reference for an Inquiry into
ALMOs. The working group now comprised the Chair and Councillors
Anderson,Bentley,Hanley,Harrison and Pryke.

It was agreed that the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development would
arrange for information supplied by the Chief Democratic Services Officer to
Councillor Hanley when he was Labour Whip, relating to the operating costs
of the Group Offices, to be circulated to all OSC Members.

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 13



41

42

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 11™ September 2007
be confirmed as a correct record.

Minutes - Executive Board,11th September 2007

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 11™
September 2007 be received and noted.

Leeds Strategic Plan

Further to Minute No 33, 11" September 2007, the Committee considered a
report submitted by the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and
Improvement) relating to the draft strategic outcomes and proposed
improvement priorities outlined in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011. The
Committee also received a presentation on this subject.

Steve Clough, Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement, and Dylan
Griffiths, Chief Executive’s Department, attended the meeting and responded
to Members’ queries and comments. In brief summary, the main issues
raised were:-

e The need to link the budget process and the allocation of resources to the
priorities and outcomes identified in the Plan and how this might be
achieved,

e The importance of ‘selling’ the plan to the public, not just the Council and
its partner agencies, and how the public could get involved and feel part of
the process;

e The importance of the City’s transport infrastructure seemed to be
downplayed. The need for greater influence at national level was remarked
upon, but also the scope for doing relatively small initiatives locally, which
cumulatively would make an impact;

e A lack of reference to several issues which Members regarded as vital
components of such a Strategic Plan was commented upon — pedestrians,
children (too adult orientated?), tackling obesity and the link to diabetes,
heart disease and strokes, substance abuse, the impact of refugees and
asylum seekers on Council services;

e The role of Members in the process — (a) as ‘Community Champions’ and
(b) as ‘Leaders of Change’ in terms of, for instance, planning matters and
the design and quality of the built environment;

e Housing — the vast, unmet demand for social housing was commented
upon. The view was expressed that this would not be addressed by
proposals to build 450 so-called ‘affordable’ homes per annum.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That subject to the above broad comments and concerns expressed
today, the report on the draft strategic outcomes and proposed
improvement priorities for inclusion in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-
2011 be received and noted.

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 14



43

(c)

That the matter be referred back to OSC at its November meeting for
further comment, following consideration of the Plan by all other
Scrutiny Boards in the October cycle of meetings.

That a further report on the proposed targets and performance
indicators to support the improvement priorities contained in the Plan
be submitted to the January OSC meeting.

Planning Performance

Further to the Committee’s Inquiry into this area carried out during the
2006/07 municipal year, culminating in the approval of a final report and
recommendations at its meeting on 5" March 2007 (Minute No 87 refers), the
Chief Planning Officer submitted a report updating the Committee on progress
in implementing those recommendations.

Phil Crabtree, Chief Planning Officer, and Helen Cerrotti, City Development
Department, attended the meeting and responded to Members’ queries and
comments. In brief summary, the main issues discussed were:-

The Chief Planning Officer was congratulated on the content of the report
and the progress which was being made to improve planning performance;
The Action Plan appended to the report and the make-up of the proposed
cross-party Members’ and officers Working Group to oversee the process
and the implementation of the Action Plan. The need for the involvement
of the Party Whips in establishing this Working Group was emphasised, as
was the need for OSC to still be involved in the monitoring process;

The need for greater consultation with Ward Members regarding what was
regarded as a ‘significant’ matter which warranted referral to a Plans Panel
— small, but sensitive, applications could still be regarded as significant at
local level;

The importance of developing a digital model of the City in order that the
likely impact of planning proposals could be more easily understood by
Members and the public;

The greater emphasis on pre-application presentations, and the
development of a protocol in this regard, were welcomed;

The employment of ‘community planning officers’ at Area Committee level,
such as in the North West Area, was regarded as a good investment in
terms of advising local Members, developers and the public;

The Government’s perception of Leeds as a Planning Authority, and
whether or not this was influencing the outcome of appeals against
planning decisions;

Whether the current balance of items referred to Plans Panels and those
delegated to officers was in need of review?

The need to improve the administration of Plans Panel meetings in terms
of the timing of items, venues, monitoring Members’ comings and goings
and customer advice and information;

RESOLVED -

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 15



44

(@)  That the report and Action Plan, together with the Committee’s
comments, be referred to the Plans Panel Members for discussion and
comment

(b)  That subject to the submission of regular update reports to OSC, the
proposal to establish a joint cross-party Member and officer working
group to monitor the Action Plan be endorsed

(c) That OSC receive a further report in 6 months time.

(NB: Councillor Anderson left the meeting at 12 noon, towards the end of this
item)

Direct Payments

Further to Minute No 9, 4" June 2007 and Minute No 32, 11™ September
2007, the Committee received a briefing on direct payments from Mike Evans,
Chief Officer - Adult Services, to assist the Committee in reaching a decision
regarding whether or not to conduct an Inquiry into this issue.

In brief summary, the main issues discussed were:

e An explanation of how the current system of direct benefit payments to the
public worked, which services the money could be used to purchase and
why take-up in Leeds was currently low;

e Police CRB checks in relation to carers employed by recipients of direct
benefit payments and the monitoring arrangements for private firms
providing these kind of services;

e The current Improvement Plan introduced in April 2007 and a recent
Internal Audit report on the service — OSC to receive this report and the
Department’s Action Plan in response to the report;

e The need for the Council to perhaps provide greater support and
assistance for people wishing to claim direct payments, and the work
carried out by the Armley Centre for Integrated Living to assist direct
payment claimants;

e Whether the payments could be used to pay for adaptations? It was stated
that more usually the payments were used to purchase pieces of
equipment, rather than adaptations.

RESOLVED - That the Committee consider the Internal Auditor’s recent
report, and the Department’s response, before deciding whether any further
action is required and, if so, whether OSC or the Scrutiny Board (Health and
Adult Social Care) should carry out an Inquiry.

(NB: 1 Councillors Hanley and Pryke declared personal interests in this item
in their capacity as members of Bramley Elderly Action and Leeds
Care and Repair respectively;

2 Councillor Harrison left the meeting at 12.30 pm at the conclusion of
this item)

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 16



45

Scrutiny of the Budget - Financial Health Monitoring 2007/08 - Quarter 1
Report

The Committee considered the 2007/08 Quarter 1 Financial Monitoring report

of the Director of Resources, submitted to the Executive Board on 22" August
2007. The purpose of this was to ascertain whether any areas required further
scrutiny.

Doug Meeson, Chief Officer — Financial Management, was present at the
meeting and responded to Members’ queries and comments. In brief
summary, the main issues discussed were:

e The net projected shortfall of £6m at this early stage of the financial year,
and the projected savings to offset this;

e The on-going efforts to ensure that OSC’s recommendations regarding the
budget being linked to achieving the Council’s objectives and priorities are
realised;

e Disappointment was expressed at the need for the invocation of penalty
clauses to the amount of £300,000 in respect of the PFI street lighting
contract, due to non-compliance with agreed implementation timescales,
so soon into this important project;

e The Housing Revenue Account situation, incentive payments to ALMOs in
relation to the quick reletting of void properties and the redistribution to
ALMOs of savings generated through a reduction in disrepair claims and
bad debt costs in 2006/07. The former, void levels, had been the subject of
a previous Board Inquiry, and this should be reviewed to ensure that
ALMOs were reaching agreed targets. It was suggested that perhaps both
these issues could be picked up as part of OSC’s proposed Inquiry into
ALMO related areas;

e The performance in respect of the prompt repayment of undisputed
invoices. Councillor Hanley requested details of the number of disputed
invoices be circulated to OSC Members — prompt payment was vital to
many small local businesses;

e The Local Authority Business Growth Incentive scheme, which allowed
local authorities to benefit to a degree from business expansion in their
area. The current scheme was due to end in December;

e In terms of the write-off of bad debts, Mr Meeson accepted the need to
produce future evidence of a downward trend in this area;

e The Council’s contingency plans for meeting its commitments under the
equal pay claims currently being processed, and the Government’s
agreement to allow local authorities to capitalise the costs and pay it back
over 25 years.

RESOLVED - That subject to the above comments, the report of the Director
of Resources be received and noted.

(NB: 1 Councillor Grahame declared a personal interest in respect of the

discussion of PFI related issues in her capacity as a member of the
Swardale Swarcliffe Eastwood Residents Association;

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 17



46

47

48

2 Councillor W Hyde left the meeting at 13.10 at the conclusion of this
item)

Recommendation Tracking

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report providing
the Committee with an overview regarding the implementation of the
recommendations of previous Inquiries carried out by Scrutiny Boards and
highlighting any possible areas of concern (none on this occasion).

A discussion ensued regarding the need to ensure that reports detailing
progress on implementing Scrutiny Inquiry recommendations, whether by
internal Departments or partner public sector organisations, gave clear and
meaningful information. It was acknowledged that for their part, Scrutiny
Boards should be ensuring that their recommendations were specific,
measurable, achievable, realistic and time-bound.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.
Work Programme

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a copy of the
Committee’s work programme, updated to reflect decisions taken at previous
meetings, together with a relevant extract from the Council’s Forward Plan of
Key Decisions for the period 1° October 2007 to 31 January 2008.

In response to Members’ queries on the Forward Plan, the Head of Scrutiny
and Member Development undertook to circulate to OSC Members further
details relating to a future decision regarding lamppost advertising and further
information on the proposed formation of the Garforth Schools Trust.

RESOLVED - That subject to the above, and any other changes necessary
as a result of today’s meeting, the Committee’s work programme be
approved.

Dates and Times of Future Meetings

Tuesday 6™ November 2007
Tuesday 11" December 2007
Tuesday 8" January 2008
Tuesday 5" February 2008
Tuesday 11" March 2008
Tuesday 8™ April 2008

All at 10.00 am (Pre-meetings at 9.30 am)

Final minutes - approved at the meeting
held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 8

Originator:  Adam Hewiitt

Tel: 0113 24 76940

Report of the Director of Children’s Service

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)

Date: 6th December 2007

Subject: Support for Parents and Families in Leeds

Electoral Wards Affected: All Specific |mp|icati°ns For:

Equality and Diversity X

Community Cohesion X

Narrowing the Gap X

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

Purpose of Report

This report introduces the new Family Support and Parenting Strategy for Leeds,
attached at appendix 1. It also gives a brief overview of the work of the Parent
Partnership service, to provide a flavour of the sort of work being done with families
and parents in Leeds.

Background

Helping parents and families to guide and support their children effectively is a key
element of the remit of children’s services. This is reflected in Leeds through the wide
range of work that has been ongoing with parents and families for some time, through
the priorities and messages within the Children and Young People’s Plan, and now
through the development across partners of a single ‘Family Support and Parenting
Strategy’ for the city.

This report introduces that Strategy to members of the scrutiny board. The cover
report briefly summarises the key points, with a full version attached at appendix 1. In
addition, the cover report also provides a brief overview of the work of the Parent
Partnership Service, which works on a practical level with parents in a wide variety of
ways. The Parent Partnership service is an example of one of the many support
services currently provided, which the strategy will help to increasingly co-ordinate.

Page 19



2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Officers will be present at the scrutiny board meeting to provide both an overview of
the strategy and details of Parent Partnership services, showing the relationship
between the strategic direction that this area of work is taking and how this will affect
services at the front line.

An Overview of our Family Support and Parenting Strategy

The Family Support and Parenting Strategy has been developed around the belief
that parents, carers and those with parenting responsibilities are almost always the
best placed people in a child’s life to provide the emotional and practical support that
each individual child needs.

As such, parents have been heavily involved in consultation leading to the
development of the strategy. Parents and carers from a diversity of backgrounds
completed a total of 335 questionnaires, helping us to better appreciate the range and
levels of need across the city. Significant input from other stakeholders, including
front-line staff, schools, senior leaders across our partners and elected members (a
seminar was held over the summer) also helped to inform its development.

The strategy sets out the vision, principles and aims that will underpin our future work
with parents. Crucially, it also clarifies the different levels of service and support
parents can expect, based on their individual level of need. This is summarised below

Level of Definition of Need | Level of service Type of Support
Need delivery
1 Universal | All parent, carer and Universal Core | Readily available support
family needs met Offer services
through universal such as self-help,
provision information and
signposting (Please see
the universal offer)
2 | Additional | A parent, carer or Early Early intervention such as
Needs family needing some intervention an informal drop-in, a 7-
additional support, at and other day response, a parenting
a particular time. targeted course, or a Common
Parents can self- responses Assessment Framework
refer, or may be (CAF). Support may
directed to services include a lead
professional
3 Multiple A family that has Multiple Longer-term support
Additional | complex or multiple targeted where a lead professional
Needs needs, requiring a responses brings together a range of
targeted response services working to a
from more than one multi-agency plan
service
4 Specialist | Parents are not Specialist Intensive support
Needs offering effective delivered on a statutory
support to their basis
children and are
putting them at risk

Page 20



3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The strategy outlines the next steps to be taken in providing for the different levels of
need detailed above, including the way that parents will be engaged in this process
and the training that will be provided to support it. It focuses on the need to introduce
a Parenting Unit to support this work, clarify the governance structures to take the
agenda forward and introduce a commissioning plan to provide clarity and co-
ordination around the future services to be provided.

Promoting the Strateqy and Services to Parents, Carers and Families

A variety of work is being undertaken to raise awareness of the strategy and more
importantly the services currently available for parents. A summary version of the
strategy has been produced in partnership with parents and carers and includes
information on where further support is available (for example the Family Hub). A
major launch event also took place at Primrose High School on 27" November, at
which over 40 stalls were run to showcase to parents the services available for them.
More feedback from this event will be provided at the time of the scrutiny meeting.

An Example of our work with Parents: The Parent Partnership Service

The Parent Partnership Service in Leeds is a statutory service established in
accordance with the SEN Code of Practice 2001. It is situated within Education
Leeds so as to provide a strong link to schools. Education Leeds does not influence
the nature of the advice that the service provides to parents, but it does assist in
marketing the service’s work to parents and supporting the management of
information it holds.

The Service aims to provide a first class service to parents/carers, Education Leeds,
schools and other voluntary and statutory agencies. It offers expert and
knowledgeable support, advice and training with particular emphasis on service
information (helping parents to know what support and options are available to them),
and the referral service. More recently it has also hosted the Choice Advice Service,
a statutory requirement under the 2006 Education and Inspection Act.

The information service ensures stakeholders know that Parent Partnership is
available to parents and other partner agencies to offer the support they need. It
facilitates appropriate information sharing between different agencies to help
coordinate services for parents and it ensures that information provided is available in
different languages and formats.

The referral service provides a helpline from 10am to 3pm each weekday. This
provides impartial and confidential advice to parents around issues concerning the
individual needs and circumstances of their child, including their rights, roles and
responsibilities. It supports the provision of surgeries within local areas around
referral based issues and it allocates an Independent Parent Supporter for all parents
that need one. The service also ensures access to the Independent Mediation
Service with a view to avoiding or resolving disagreements.

The Choice Advice Service recognises that making the transition between primary

and secondary school can be one of the most challenging times for children and their
parents and that whilst many parents will be able to navigate the process effectively

Page 21



4.6

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

there will be those who find it difficult to understand. As such, it provides guidance,
information and impartial advice to help parents choose the right secondary school for
their children. The service’s work can include: explaining the admissions process;
arranging visits to schools for parents; helping parents to fill in the necessary forms
and advising on (though not attending) the appeals process.

Parent Partnership aims to provide a service that is flexible, accessible and targets
support where it can be particularly beneficial. As such it focuses on services for
parents and carers whose children have additional needs in order to empower them to
play an active and informed role in their child’s education. It takes a pro-active
partnership approach and will therefore have a key role to play as services for parents
are coordinated within the context of the new Family Support and Parenting Strategy.

Conclusion

As the example of the Parent Partnership Service suggests, there is already a variety
of very good work being done to support parents, families and carers in Leeds. It is
essential that we build on this and the new Family Support and Parenting Strategy
provides a framework to take this forward in a coordinated, focused way and in
partnership with parents themselves.

Recommendation

It is recommended that members note and comment on the content of this report and
particularly the strategy attached at appendix 1.

Page 22



. 7
r

i #
!-:. g

’-

Every Parent Matters

Family support and
parenting strategy

Y

b

Leeds




asuodsau uoneNsuoD) - 9 xipuaddy

JJO [BSJRAIUN SPaaT - G XIpuaddy
saJreuuonsanb juaued Jo SISA[eUY - 4 Xipuaddy
SISA[RUB SPaaU [IDUNOY) AYD) SpaaT - € Xipuaddy
diyssequiaw dnoud 3ulusaig - 7 Xipuaddy
1X91U0D [RUOIEN| - | XIpuaddy

:sodIpuadde 3uimo||o} sy}

N"8U0'SPA3|USUP|IUI MMM "SUSGIM SPa7T UJP|IYD) Y3 UO PuUNnoy

3o1e43S SIy} 03 sedipuadde xIs ay3 SUIUBIUOD JUSWNDOP 3|3Uls \/
soolpuaddy

ueid uoneusws|duw|
UOISN|PUOD)
UOIIBN[BAS PUB SUIIOHUO|A|
uoneIuSWR|dwl D18918U1G
]X3U OP O} PI3U OM JBUAA
SISA[eUR SPaaN|
P92U JO S|oAR| JURJyIp 18 sjuaJued Sundoddng
uonedpiJed juaeq
sWwie -
so|dipuiid -
UOCISIA
410} A3a3e.43s Sunpuaued pue 14oddns Ajiuey syt SI OYAA

PJOM3.I0

S1U3U0)




11 (. =

'9)|doad 3unoA pue uaJp|iyd
g AJOA QU1 193 9M UBD JaY1a30] AJUO ‘pJemuo) el
Jed spas UaJp|iyD) Y3 JO} HUOM JO BaJe Sulpuedxa
> S| SJoUBDd pue Siuaued  YUM  JSy1e3801  SUDMOAA

‘pareIdaUdde ANy si 1| 140l
SOUOY JIDY] JO} UYL YUBLY O3 JUBM SANA 'S9DUSIISAXS
JOA QWOS OS[e INg SIYSISUl JIdyl paJeys Asyl aAey
A391843S siyy SuidofeAsp Ul SAem JuaUayip Auew Ul
59 9ABY OUM SJaJeD pue spuaued ayi dueyl 01 Juem
SUP[IYD JIBYL PUB SDAIRSWISYL JO} SDIAJRS Suideys Ul
OAUI 01 SI 11 JuelJodull A|[elIA MOY INOGE JB3|D 248 SAA

'Spaau sjuaJted AJans 01 puodsad pue 3SIUSOD
03 SPa27 Ul S9JIAJSS JBYL 2JNS el O} JOYIO YdBd
1 yrm Uay3e801 Suom [|Im diysaauiaed spaaT uaup|iyd
10 $19S JUSWNJOP SIY| "dwil 01 awi wod) 1Joddns
D92U JuaJed AUSAS 1BYL MOUY 9M PUB ‘UJP|IYD JIdYL
OA QU1 1ueM s1uaded JO AJoleul 1SBA JBUL MOUY SAA

A1Jon0d JO SO SY1 WOJ) 934} PUB |NISSDIINS ‘OfES

ley aJe 9|doad 3unoA pue UaJpP|IYD 1BYL 2UNS SuBew
uepJodwi 1sOW S[3UIS SYl aJB SJSUBD PuB S1USURY

PIOMaL0]

ge 25

a

OPp NOA 1BYM
JuelJOdull SE

sjuaJed U
MJOM NOA MO




uonedlidnp ploAe O} JopJo
JWOD PUB J2YJR30] SOM
'SOUIODINO
' MOUS JBU} SODIAJSS JSAIPP o
'SP99U PUB S3OUBISUINDID
odsod Ul SUOIUSAJSIUI
> 9)eludoudde jo a8urd B URgO .
| pue Suluueld usym syuaued
9SJSAIP BU} JO |Njpoadsad g e
JO S3YSIM By} 0} dAIsUodsau
>q pue sadloyd djowodd e
"9DUOPIIOM
® pali[enb |[om B Aq paJanijep
uUoJed JBU} SODIAUSS JOPO e
Joued Ypm SupjJom saduse ||y

‘sanjigisuodsad Jioyy oW
- paJomoduws ‘pajdoddns 2q
‘padayo Apdwoud
Jou sl jeyy jJoddns pue
JI unuaded O3 SSODOB 9ABY e
"WaY} 0} 9|qe|ieAR
Je UOIBULIOjUl POO3 aABY
SP|IY2 41243} INOge PR} NSuUod
opadsal pue paneA 9q e
d e ‘aj0d JIvyy Ul wayl djipy o]

BQ PUB $J31[2q ‘SON[EA SIYJ0
In MoJS 01 Way} 93eJNOdUD
[SM DILIOUOD SUIASIYDE pUB
MO} UMOJ3 Jiey) 1Joddns e
[enos doasp 0} weyl digy
'spaau [epads Aue
> SpoU Uy JI9Y} 2UnsUD e
"uoiyeINpa
D JioYl Ul wieyl 1Joddns .
93U [BIISAYd JIDY3 JOYE YOO| e
U} O} 248D pUB 9A0| 3plAcid e
:0UM 3043 Aq
Jed aAisod Uiyl om ‘spaa |

USUPIIY v

J0O} 159Q S| 1BUM MO pUB JueM SjuJued sased e
1SOWe Uj A34ancd Jo spoaye sy} Wod) 9aJ) g pue
9ARIYDE pue Aofud ‘UonNgLIUOD 2AIISOd B Sxew
AYyyeay =29 ‘ofes Ae1s O} aJe URJP|IYD §I [BIRUSSSD
sI Sunuaued pooD) ‘pIIYd> B 4O} SJOIIE} dAIRdR104d
1598U0.}s @Yl JO Quo sI dunuaded aADRY]
so|dpulayg

AJUNWWOoD
oy} pue ode|ddom SYr Ylog Ul — S0P
QUOAJAS 1BY} SUIYIBWIOS 3G O} SUIpJeN3ofes

"9|qissod auaym

A|[e20] ‘paau 03 puodsad sadiAdes pue sjdoad
Y3 ay3 1Ry} os diysuouised JO SDUSPIAS e

‘yoeoudde

SAIFRIUSAId |[BJISAO UB 9ABY OM JBY} 2UNSUD
O} AllWe} Sy} PuUNoJe SDIAJRS deam 01 .

"aeuonJodoud pue 2yeldoudde

/e eyl sosuodsad 3sieads pue pajedle}
UM B JO} SDIAJDS [BSdaAUN Ayenb ysiy e

Aem

oAneddIlIed B Ul SIYL Op O} puB 2dUBISWINDID
puUB pPaau punodJe uoisinoid Jno asifeuostad 01
JUBM DAA

AJl[ead B SIyy S>ew
01 sjuated YIM SUOM O} UJp|Iyd puUB SHNpe Jo}
SPo9T Ul SODIAUSS |[B JUBM SAA UUP|IYD JIDYY JO}
[opoW 3|04 2ADRYS Uk pue Juased pood e 9q 01
Y1SUauIS pUB J21[2g-43S 'S||IXS ‘©OUSPHUOD AUBSSadau
9} oABY 0} jJuaded UdBS JUBM SAA TURUPJIYD JO
3uiRg ||om 2yl 21owodd Jeyl UOREBINWIS Ppue
2JBD 'OA0| 9Y3 JO SJopIACId UreU DU} 2 Sjuaey

A14on0d Jo spaye sy

WOJ} 93U} PUB |NJSsa20Ns ‘opes Ayieay Addey oq
01 ojdoad SunoA pue UJP|IYD JUBM DM SPIT U|

UOISIA

'SNOLIS 2JoWw SuILod2q swajgoJdd Juaaaud
0} JopJo ul ‘ade suosded Sunok Jo spjiyd e
JO SS3|pJedad ‘pasiu30daJ UG SeY paau B Se
uoos se asuodsad |npdadsau pue Syeldoudde
ue Sulpinodd INoge s uorudAJAIUL Alae]

"UaJp|Iyp Jioyr dn Sug wayy
dpy 03 sdaued pue syuaded o1 1doddns pue
9DIAPE ‘UoewIOUl Suipirodd 1B paulie Ajjiey
Jo Ayanoe Aue aue sediades 34oddns juaaey

"POSSaUPPE 2JB SPasU puUB Y3N0oJy} PIMO||0}
SI SoMm Jeyl UNSUD ‘Sa1DURde JY10 01 UOo
syuaued unsodugdis uoy Jo ‘seaesuwayl Joddns
PP SulRyo Joj Jaype Aujiqisuodsad Sxe}
M ASY] "SJoym ® SB Spasu Jisyl 01 puodsau
0} SJoOM sadinbady  saliwe}  Sundoddng

1p3104d pue aunjinu 03 Aydeded
‘WI91SD J|oS PaseaUdUl ‘ssauls pa
SSUWODINO 2ARY [|IM SSDIAUSS S
'sjuaued 1doddns 1eYl SHlOMID!
'SOIIAIRDR  ‘SOIIAISS  [BIO| JO

puUB UORB2JD 24} INOGE S| 340

"9j0J SunuaJed e ul Sunoe o
SyuRedpURIS ‘SUaUBD=IR]SO) ‘SIUS
3uipnpur ‘ojdoad SunoA pue ua.
|[e O} JojoJ 0} pasn si 3| ‘uosJad 3
Joy} Ayjigisuodsad [epuaded yum
0} A32141S 241 INOY3NOJYL Ps

©
aguonit

pasn ARy oM 48s1eas m®w Jo
[Q]

o
INOY3NOJIY} A|geaduey

oJe dunuaJded, pue 14oddns Ajluey, SWJIS1 Syl SJayA
(4SO ) Soljiwed pue S|OOYDIS ‘UJp|IyD) JO} JUSUILIE
pasJopua S yoiym yoeoddde ue quoddns Ajuey Jo
[e4oA0 2yl Jo 1ued se dunuaded sydedde 3 (| xipu
SOAIFBIIIUI [BDO] PUB SJUSWaJINDaU [eUOIBU YlIM Ul Ul
US9Q SBY 3| 'SODIAJDS MU JO SUSUOISSILILUOD JO} PUE
SDIAJSS JO} ‘S|l pue SjuaJded JO 1jaUSq SY] JOJ SI A

é1of Abayesys Huip
pue poddns Ajjwef ayy s|



3umnd aue pue uaJpiyd
siseq AJ0INIEYS Jivyy 01 1oddns aAndaye spasu
1Joddns saisusy| 1sifeadg 3UlIRO JOU 2Ue SJUBIRY 1siepads | 4
ueld Aouage-nnuw SDIAJDS SUO UYL 240U
SDIAJRS JO S3URd B asuodsad WwodJj asuodsad payesie} e spasu
| [euoissajod pes) pajedJey | dulinbau ‘spasu oidiinwi Jo | [euonippe
ddns wue1e8uo adiyniy | xoidwiod sey 1euy Ajiwey v sidynia | €
bJd pes| e apnpul SODIAIDS
1vD) SMOMBWIEI sosuodsad 0} paid2JIp G AeW JO
5y UOWIWOD) B JO Po1R3Ue) | J9JU-[S UBD SjulUed Wi}
uaJed e ‘asuodsau Joyio pue Jejnonued e e quoddns
-doup [ewojul ue UOIUSAJISIUI [EUONIPPE SWOS Sulpaau spaau
UOIUSAJDIUI AlJe] AlJe] Ajluey Jo JaJed ‘Quaded v/ | [BUOCIIPPY | T
G xipuaddy
SB U0 [BSJIRAIUN
d ‘8unsodusis pue uoIsinoid [esJaAIUN
| ‘d[oy-jjas se yans Jayo YSnNoJy3 oW Spasu Ajiurey
S O|qe|IeAR A|IpEY | 240D [BSUSAIUN pue Joued ‘quaued |y | [BSURAIUN ||
Y WEYNIET
CRIVWEN paau jo
1oddns jo ad4y JO |9A9T] pa3u jo uoniuyaq [9A9]

e X3|dWOod 2y} 03 pUeMIOAYSIEIIS JSOW DU} UIOJ) 9B} Saljlude} suua|godd pue sanssi sy}
55 JO 23UBJ B 2plrodd [|IM SAA AJ[BUOIIBU PUB A|[BUOISaU A|[20| 911oeud 159G dojersp pue
d [BUOITBU JO S JOMBUJELY B UIYHM SIOM [|IM SAA 'O} SN JUBM ASU3 TBU} SABM Ul SPI3U JISY}
W\ 'S3l[Iwe) 1oddns 01 Aem pajeU3ajul 240w B Ul JOUIR30] MUOM O} JUBM M ‘Spaa] U|

paau fo sjaAa| yuasaffip
)e sjuased Hbuipoddng

] UaJp|iy> SulpJengdajes [ed0] Syl

SILULIOD DI331e4)S pate.daiul sy

| ‘diysdsulded spas uaUp|IiyD

red USIMIBq SUIl JeSpD Sdew 'S3UINNRS SUBA AlJBD pUB S2IpOqg SUILISAOS
dojpasp 1snW am ApAIDRYD |[ooyds ydnodyy ‘o|dwexs Joj ‘SKem JaYio  JO

d sjusued paquis 03 JopUO U| Jaguinu B Ul PIAJOAUl aue Sjuaded ‘Uorippe U|

(O1lS) =4U=0 sUlldes| SAISNPUL 1SHEIDSAS e
'SODIOA UHM SJUSB] e

‘dnoug AduaBe-imqul
so|doad SunoA pue uaJp|iy> pajgesi(] e
‘dnous suepew Juased AUsAg .

‘dnoJs-gns
uonedinnJed jusued spaa uaUpyD e
12JB 959U} JO SWIOG [9AS)| [BIO] PUB SpIM
-AY> y3oq 1B sdeurded se sjuaded ypm SUBIOM
Joj suwinJo} pue sdnoJd Jo Jaguinu e sey Apeadfe
SpooT ‘S)USUUSSURIIER ISNU} SUUP|IYD S UIYHAA
uonisod juadund

‘uonedied jusued

OADRYD O} SJOLUEB] SSaUpPe PuB 3SIUSODAU e
‘uonedinnJed juaied Juoddns

0} seaJnosad ayeludoudde sy om JeYL 2UNSUS W
'spuaed yum Aem

AJoyedipiaed B ul Som 01 S|ps yeys dojpasp
"UOIIBIDRAXS BUIINOJ B S| JUSUISAJOAUI

[eruaued YDIYm Ul JUSWUOIIAUS Uk 3jouwodd e

uolnyedidipe

jo wed ag ued sjueued eyl
'sjuaued 03 seyepdn pue Moegps
"PRJSPISUOD A|InjIoadsal |
143N0S A|SAIDE SUB SMIIA SHURLIBC
'SODIAUDS S,UUP|IYD UM 12

1S4} 9Y} I8 UOIRWUIOMI YHM
10} PoaU oM Ssuauled se
sossod0ud  SUBEW-UOISIDSP U
JOPJO U] 'S9DIAISS DA0IdUl OF A
0} [Bl}USSSD B 2dUDLIRAXS PUB

9y} JO SuURUM DY} PIULIOUI
SIY} JO SSWODINO Y| 'SSUUR
SOIIUNWILIOD [BD0] ‘S|OOYDS BIA
usaq aAeY Sjuaued pue pamal
syuaded Jo sdnod3 pajad.e| A39
® Se padojeAsp aJe Jey} SIDIA.
98UBJ SY1 SAUP ISNUW ‘UM
| PINOM JO ‘SAIdaU Apuaud
SY} INOge SljluJe) puB  SYUE

M

l;age 27

7 Xipuaddyy ul pajuasaud s|
sdnous asayy y10g jo diysuaquia|.| ‘pseoq 1oafoud
e Aq peploddns usaq sey dnous Suliesls oy
'SJ01IDS AJBIUN|OA PUB AJOINJe)s ‘syuaded wiody
uoneussaldau peouq ypm ‘'dnous suliesys Aouase
-nnw B Aq padojeAsp usaq sey A393eUiS By

‘BunuaJed pue yJoddns Ajiuue} punode
soidipuld pue aunynd ‘SeNjeA padeys Paguid e

“BUIIOISSILULIOD

9DIAUSS Ul ISISSE O} SPIM-AUD PUB A|[ED0| 410G
'S9IAJRS Ul sdeS SulAjIuapl JO sueaW B oplAcid e
AJAI[SP SDIAJSS IO} SJOMBWIR) B SpIACId o

959U} SSaUPPE 0} JoY3930] MJom
[[e SSOUDB UIOU} ‘SOIAISS JUIDY!

S|oAS| JUSUSYIP INOGE Uiy} Ued
|IIM PUB SaNSS| 952U} SSSUPPE

'SPI2U X&
950U} J0} papiACdd SSDIAUSS Ul |
sdeg |[e 01 9|ge|leAR B SIDIAISS
‘UOILPPE U| 'SSIAJSS O} SSIID
dunnsaJ ‘seaue [eo1yded30a3 3
UOISIAOU 'SJ03935 a1eAld pue A
3yl wouy saepinodd Jo s3ued B
SAeM JO AJolBA B Ul PaJdAl
sodIAJRS Bunuaued pue juoddns

<




'skep
D) asuodsad pided SULIBAIIRP e
'SODIAUIDS SAIEIURARUd
I AJBD 2UOoW  SUIRAIIRP
JPUB U0 [BSJDAIUN
5SODDB  SODIAJSS  paledJel pue
IIpIACJd 0} PSIHWIIOD a4 SAA

S9JIAJIS pajadie]

0Jd HJOMBWIEI] JUSUISSISSY
UlRJ} JB YJBIS |[B 2UNSUD

‘pJepuels ydiy e
OM 140ddns Ajluey e aunsus e

'S9|0J SAIPURSIP
g INOQEe  AUJE)D  USI[gBISD .
S Juowadesus [eriul dojoAsp e
' S||DfS 240D UOWUIOD Paquid e
e s|didud paueys USI|gRISD e
U3 Sulure.y Jo} Jay39303 Jysnodq
juaued pue juoddns Ajwey ul
badojeasp 2g ued sewweddoud
IM [9POW U0 sapircad [IDUNOD)
OPHOAA SUSIPIYD Sy | 'soljiuiey
DIAJSS JO UOISINOIC 33 Ul POAJOAULI
3uiApun e se e 0} [eualod
1 Alenb ydiy jo Ausaijep oy
Suilureay

A[RSWISY1 4O} UORBNYIS
' OAI| 9M MOY 335 O}
od oy juerdodu s,

ddns 243 Inoge uoIiFrULIOUI
UBAS[RJ |[B 18Ul SUlNSUD
OWUAO|SASP 92J0PIIOM U Ul
d pue saljiude) YIm SuDom
SwdojoAsp a1 18U} SULINSUD  «

‘PO2U ASU} SSDIAUDS S} SS9IJB UED ‘SaN|IGeSIP
YIM UaJp|iyd Jo sjuaued pue syuaued ageussy
Se Uons ‘spaau JejndnJed arey Aew oym sdnous
1By} puy U0} papinoad oue s|doad Suno
pue UaJp|iyd> JO Sadued a3k | 1Byl SulNsUD
A2 2y} ssoJde sdnod3d

dunuaued pue 1Joddns yoeauno duneneAd
‘podojoASp SI S3I|IUIB) JO} SDIAUDS

u-doup Aouage-inwi [B20| Jo 38Ued B SUlINSUD
'saljiuley Joy auldipy

spaa] B Jo juswdopAsp ayp SulspISuod
(¢zez 008 8080) duldipy

33U} SN|d SUIPURIRY, 43 JO asn ay3 Sunowoud
'SaUIUDD

2UNSI9| PUB SSlIBJQI| ‘SSUIUDD U3BIY ‘SaUIUD
S,UaJp|IYD ‘S|o0YdS Ul 9|qB|IeAR A[9PIM SPBW 3G
p|noys asay | sJadeuss) dunuaded pue sanss
[eJdnoIAeYaq ‘SUIA|ING St Yons ‘Sunnuaued punoJe
SoNSSl SUIISAOD  SI9|jBD| JO  UOIBUILISSSIP
pue  uononpodd 2yl  SuleUIPJIO-0D
"3|ge|reAe s djay

JEUM MOU| ‘SOI|IGRSIP YHM UUP|IYD JO SSOU}
3uipnpur ‘syuaded |[B 1BYL 2UNSUS 0} AJO1DJIP
gnH Ajlueq Spa37 2y} UO BUIp|ing ‘SJaJed pue
syuaued Joj uorewloUl Jo uoisicodd Syl O}
yoeoudde di3s1e.3s Spm-A3D B Suidojersp

:BUIMO|04 B3

o1 YejnonJed ul‘pue (G xipuaddy 935) //9007 Ueld
s,29)doad Suno) pue UaJp|iyD) SpPa3T 243 Ul pauIipno
Se JOJO [BSUSAIUN, DU} O} PIPHWIOD 2B SAA
S9JIAJDS |esdaAlunN

‘|[e 0} 9|qISSOII® U SIIUNOSAU PUE
soIAJRS 1y} pue uonendod SsUoAp Jno SRR
SIUY 18U} 2UNSUS ISNUL SAA 'SP JO SJOUm DU
SSOJDB ABM JUSISISUOD B Ul S2DIAISS Sunuaied pue
140ddns AjILue) JOAIISP 9M JBU3 UNSUS 03 JUBM SAA

}XaU Op 0} Paau am jeym

sjuaJed UYpm UOIBYNSUOD 943 INOGE |Ie3op L@Lt_ﬂ

"9]OYM B SB S3l|Iley
Joj spasu oddns Suisseuppe A Jow g
PINO> A3} MOY PUE SPaau [BUOROWIS JBUIUN

UMO JISY} 0} 2dUaUajed Spew Sjuated Auewl
'SSoUI[oUO| pue UoNRe|os! [eru3od
19540 O} ‘Sydomiau Juoddns juaued [eulioul
OJUI SH|UI| JO} PUB ‘PISOUSEIP JO UIOG SEM P|IYyd
B JUsWow 3y} wodj 3doddns Joy pasu sy}

POIIUSPI SSIIGESIP YIM UJp|IyD Jo Ssjuaued e
‘Pioye
pINo> A2y} 1500 B JB J|ge|eAR saniunidoddo
M3} 00} UM 23U} H3} AU | "UUP|IYD JISY IO}
soniunjJioddo aunsis] pue Aeid Joj pssu pue

9DUBDYIUSIS DY} UO PIajusLIIoD sjuaued Auewl
'SpJeMaJ 1591BU3 Uy} Yim syuaded papiaodd
SJUSWIOARIYDER Jioy} Ul aunsesid Supe) pue

Ayyjeay Addey dn Suimoud uaupjiyd JIsyy SUIRS e
quaued B 3uieq jo padse SuiBus|eyd

JSOW Y} SB POJOU UM SINSS| [BJUNOIABUD] e
Sdoyye}

AQ paJnoAe) AjJejnonded Jom SOYUS oM e
"UOIFBDIUNUWILIOD
JO WOy siyy paddajeud spunousypeq AjJoulw
JIUYIS  WOJ) SJUSUBg UORBIIUNWIWOD  JO
sueaW padJdojedd 2yl 2Uom UYnow JO pUom

JO 1OPJUOD 2B} O} 28} AQ POMO||0) ‘SIOBS| e
1u0ddns

pUSYoaM JOj) dUUdjedd B PIMOUS SUOUIR) e
'SSUIUBAD QU3 Ul

9|qe|iere 2q 03 }Joddns pajuem sjusued JO %477 e
"2UIOY 943 Ul 3|ge|IeAe o4

0} }Joddns Ajiurey pajuem Jenoiaed Ul SUoUIe) e
uejndod osje sem SaLISSINU JO S2UIUDD
suaJp|iy> ur pue ‘ouidey suoydsjel B BIA

'2U1USD APUNWILLIOD ® B 'swoy 2y ul 1Joddns
'S9I43NS
dO Agq pamojjo ‘9|ge|leAe g ©3} }Joddns

Joj ooeid uendod jsoW QYR SUom S|OOUDS e

popaau pue pajuem  syuued
JSOW SeaUe DU} QUM SJUOSRUDD
Ul swojgodd [euonowe pue
'S7| JoAO Ul Jnolneysq Suldu
SaUIL
PUB SJUONSIA UHBY ‘S WOod)
92IAPE 1Y3nos sjuaJed Jo Jagull

Y1 Ul 14oddns o} spul) Jo A
0} 2soyd sjuated Jo 23R
:pres

AZ21BU1S SIYY P*
9y} pue palR|dwod UM S3
'SIOUIR)  UBaqquBD)-UBdLYY/ SUn
UBIS\/ 'SOI{[IBSIP UM USJPJIYD §
SSO|RUIOY {UUP|IYD JSYB P00 J
sdnoJ3 328ue) LyIm mc%msuw_
(00149puN OS[e pUe SN 5, U3
ysnouy syuaed yim \A_@ﬁm.? pa)
'SP3U JISY} PUB UJP|IYD JIdY} -
4O 924N0S 3599 2y} e SyuaJed 4C

syuaJaed yym uon

'€ Xipuaddyy oz

po|ie}sp 2Jow B Jo Apdond e s
usamiaq des oy Suimodieu ap
Sy pue Auoune [ed0| 2yj -
Ap4onod JO seade JO Joquunu B <
Sey Spao7 A1D JUBIQIA PUB SNOUS
WIOJ} Pajjouq aARY S3l|IUe) |
2y} ur Ayuadsoud Buis pue
JUBDIUSIS USDQ Sy 2Usy} op
'g|doad 0p0's |/ jo uoneindod
Aydoyine ueyjodosiow 1s93.1e| p
S[1Te

sisAjeue s



IMALD SuidojeAsp JO 1YSI| a4y Ul
SO | "SIUSUIRSUEIIE 9DUBUISAOS
oyYs 4| 98ed uo wedudelp 2y

'sdnous-gns 14oddns
M IO} 3|04 PIUBYISURAS B e
"SJUSLUDSUBLIE SN
dunuodau pue ‘syusued wody
0J1S YUM paysi|gelse pJeoq
ddns Ajiwrey Aousgde-isjul ue .
AJBIUN|OA
0g Aouade Jo juswiJedop
oyuapl suoldweyd Sunnuaued .
1IN0 AUJeD O} Wil paredipap
Joauoissiwwod  dunuaued .
:paem.o} epuasde ayy
J9NJIJS IDUBUIDAOS Jed|D) °T

e Jo} juiod SdUUYRU [BAIUSD B SB SUDE e
'S9SBq BIEP JUBAS[RU SUIUBIURW o
‘Bulurey
[euoissajoud oyelidoudde jo uoisircud SuNSUD e
‘uoisinoad duiuaied Sulnsse Aenb e
‘uoIsinodd 321AUs 01 pUeSad Yim sjuaued
JO SSUSIM PUB SP3U Sy} JUNOJE OUl SUBE} e
Juiod UOIFBUIIOJUI SDIAJSS
® st gny Ajlwey a4y SuidojeAsp pue uluieiuew e
'Spa9)| ssoJde 1Joddns Sunuaued
JUa4ayod Jo 3uluolssiwod pue Suluued .
:pnpul
03 A1 s1 3un SupuaJaed ayy jo sjoa 3y

*spaa-] 3noy3noJyy jaoddns
Sunuaued jo Aouajsisuod pue Ajijiqe|reae
aJansua 03 ‘diysiauyaed spasT] uaipjyd
9Yyy Joj paysijqersa ‘yun Sunuaded y °|

:22e|d Ul Ind 2q O3 SPIBU SUOMBWIE}
3umolio} oyt ‘uoneuswR|dwi NSNS JO4

uoljejuawajduwi s1b6ajyesys

d Aeme Udel g O UJp|iyd U1 JO} YSE
pUB 91B| 001 SeM 1l Uay] pue — djay Aue
| 2J0J2Q SSJOM 103 S3UIYL ||l 1M O PRy
IPIIY2 Al Yuim 3uidOd 1 USBM | PUB UMOP
93 2JoM S3UIYL Usym djay Joj payse |,

.+C SoWUEAOUAL PotlJUsot UL SOUTUATE/VA _GC_¢+
punoJe >Jom duipnpul ‘spesodsip 1unod-oud e
"DIAISG SUIPUSPO YINCOA D43 AG SSDUSIUSS

[eIPOISND pue Swweddosd SdUR|jIoAINS  pue

uolsiagadns  2AISUSIUI ‘suopJdo  uoIsiAJRdNS
AHUNWWOD ‘SUSPJO [eddajad ‘UoIsiAJRdNS |BG e

'SP UoEINP]

Ul Wea} A391e.)S 9dUBpUSNIE DU} WOJ) SISP.IO
dunuased pue sJopJo UOISIAJRANS UOREINPS .

"2Jed [eos s3jdoad SunoA pue

S,USJP|IYD WO} SUSPJO UOIFEPOUILIOIIE 2INJ3S

PUB SJUOPJO g UONDS ‘SUSPJO 2JBD ‘SISP.IO
uonodajodd Adusdiowis ‘suspdo  uoisiagedns e
:sapnpaul uoisiroad 3sijerdadg

‘0s op 03 ajeldoudde pue ojes s

11 Y8y} paaude SI 3§l SWOoY paudniad UaJp|iyd pue
Ajlwre) 3y} Joj 3oddns |[BJoAC JO IXSIUOD B UIYHM
ooe|d oy} IS PINOYS SUORUSAISIUI UYdNG "‘Swioy
WOJ} ABME JO} PaJBD 94 0} pasu AW UUP|IYD pue
ooe|d Ul Ind 2q ||IM S2UNSEIW AJOINIBIS ‘SUOITRNYIS
9oy} U] 'syuaued awos 4oy Jndiip 003 s Suijuaded
onPRye Sulpinodd ‘suosead JO AJRLBA B UO4
S9JIAJIS Jsijedadg

'SpoaU X3|dWOod Ypm Saljiuiey
0] SODIAJSS SULLAIPP Ul JOPS Uik} pue
AHUNWWOD AJBIUN[OA 3U} JO S[0J U} SUNI3S  «
"UaJp|Iyd pue
sjuaJed U0} SpoRU PRIIFUSPI SSUPPE 0} SIIIAISS
pa1a3Je) JO UoIsiAOLd JUSISISUOD DU} SULNSUD  »
'sAem [eruawidpnl uou
pue 2AJoddns Ul S92IAUSS 1SI[erads SUURAIIPP
A|IUB) PUB PJIY2 SY} PUNOJE SWES} SUILLIO) e
'SODIAIDS WBUISUIRW
uIypm ‘euoissajoud pes| duipjoy 198png Sy
PUB SUOMBUIRI{ JUSUISSISSY UOWWOD) By}
3upnpur ‘sassedoud  pojeddsiul Suippaquie .

R I e M Mati® S | R

103 pon

) paaL
dpy o1eudoudde Suissodoe ul
10U op Asyy juerdodul SI Y St
B WOJ SUORUSAISIUI PjRUIP.
SONDIYIP  JUBDBIUSIS  2duUSlId:

S9JIAJ3S P393

uos p|o

01 1NO S903 WNW MC

A349n0d JO IO 2/
PUB US3)So-}|9S Saseaudul SIY ]
JOUUBD SOM SUi-||ny Jo 3Jed
PUB J331UNJOA B SUILIOJ3Q O} Js
Wod} uolissau3oud ayy ey} payed

(e2]
Al

SMOM AJBIUN|OA pUB SUlUl@y} ‘UoI
UM SUI| Supew .Ewccamugob
soniunydoddo auojdxa %ﬁ SE)
‘sowwesdosd Sunuased our |
9dUBPING PUB SDIAPE ‘UOIFRULIO)

punoJe sowwesdosd pue sas.
[BULIO} JO ADUS}SISUOD pUB AY|Iq

SSOJJB  S3I[IUUB) JO} SIDIAIDS
pue 3Ul||eSUNOD JO AYl|Ide|ieAR

JUBAS|RJ JOUIO Ul YJels Joj 3ull

"9]0J [euoIsSajoId ped)
SU} PUB SUOMOWERI JUDUISSD
U} Ul paureJdy e geys e

wared  19SAUL 1NOC

UoNW OS |23} | IUBI||lUg SI JJOM 01 1IN0



JI 01 SNURUOD 01 JoY1230]1 JJOM UBD M UDIYM WO}
LM SN sapiaodd 1| 'spasT Ul UaJp|iyd pue syuaded jo
0 1pedwl 2AIsOd B 9ABY O1 A391B.1S SIUL JUBM SAA

uoiIsnjouo)

dno.3gng dnougng dnousgng
14oddng Ajiuueq 1Joddng Ajiuueq 1Joddng Ajiuueq

dno.3gng

1Joddng Ajiuueq

AIBP 2IAUSS JO SeduUSLIRdXD
. JO AJoLBA B Ul P}jNSuod
SJUSURY "WRYY YIM SuBlom
(g MdIASJ JUBISUOD Jopun
SU1 JBYl [BIIUSSSD OIS}
J O} [BJJUSD SUB SJUSUR .

olyenjeAa pue bulioyiuow

‘Joued SuluoISSILWOD AR IUSAUd JuIof
JO pJeOQg BUIUOISSILIWIOD DIZ91RJ)S Paje.daiul
a1 Aq aoe|d Ul Ind saunpadoud uonen[eAs pue
dulonuOW a3 03 1P3IgNS 29 [|IM SDIAISS ||
*20e|d Ul SW3SAS JuaUUACIdWI PUB SDUBINSSE
Ay[enb a1eludoudde aaey ||im sad1AUs Sunuaued
pue jJoddns Ajwe; Suipinodd sspuSde |y

JuN Sunuauey

JRUOISSILILLIOTY) SunjuaJey

-

'PaSBg-SOUIODINO
SSILUUIOD B 3By} Jueliodwl SI

'SODIAIDS
bddns Ajiwey SUILOISSILILIOD
paseq Auedo] o1 joddns .
'san|Igisuodsau
) U99MIDQ] PaYSI[GeISD AJIED o
SISA[eue
ULIOJUI S9DIAJSS SAIFEIUSASId
0> opM  AID  DIS9IRIS .
"POUOISSILUIWIOD 3G
Jas renualod auojeq ‘ee|d Ul
WIS1SAS JOYJO PUB SOUBINSSE
B> 35I| Sdopinoad paroudde,
boJd Juswiaundodd SNgod B e

‘Joued

BuIuoIssILWOD dAIFEIUSARId JUIOf DU pUB PIBOq
SUIUOISSILUWIOD DI337.3S P1RI3a1Ul U3 YSnoUuy
paysigeIse saunpadoJdd SUILOISSILIWOD 3SNgod
A3318.135

dunuaued pue 1oddns Ajiue} ayp Jusws|dwi 01
pajood 2q ued JBY} S92UNOSAU JO UOIFEDLIIUSPI
AJ1D BU} SSO.DE S2IDUSSE JUSURYIP AQ ALAIDR
dunuaued pue 1Joddns Ajiwe} JO S|PAR| JURISYIP
9Yl UO aunypuadxe JUaND JO MIIARI B
:jeja9pun

03 ‘piaeoq Supuased pue 3jaoddns
Ajlwrey ayj jo jjeysaq uo padojaasp 3q
03 ‘sadjA4as Supuagsed pue jaoddns

Apwey a0y ueld Suluoissiluwiod y °§

DIAISS YINOA pPUB SUe3)
AjJe3 4221 JoIyD

Page 30

JUN) SIAIDG
s,UaJp|IyD) JO 4o

[our4
3UIUOISSILIWIOD)
anneuaAsl T
Juiof

diysaauuey
spssT usdpliy>

A
Y

p.eOg 3UlL
21391835

‘syuswiaduedle dueUIdA03 pasodoud ayy Suimoys uur



A xzmm

0} paJaype pue paysi|gelsd

L

1aloud Sunuaued

UoesIunwiwod JO saul|

3y} JO AJSAI[OP JUSDIYS J|geL

3upy | UOIEDIUNWILIOD JO SjRuUURYD) pue 1oddns Ajuseq 8007 |Mdy Jesp Ul page3us pue paAjoAul siautied JO %00 | UOIFEDIUNUILIOD JUSISISUOD pul
9OUBUISAOS
PUB A}|IqBIUNODIDE DAY
DDIAIDS Yum papirodd st spaa pJe0q pJe0g SUUD
A Al ss0UDB ApAIPDE Sunjuaded Pofoud Bunuaued Ajlwey 943 Uo pajussaddau
3unpy pue 1Joddns Ajiwreq pue 1Joddns Ajiwre 8007 Ya-elA| PIJUSPIAS SI Uoiejuasaldad s|gepnb] AJo3n3e}s AUBIUN|OA Y30q ‘SJau
spaa
DDIAIDS ur sad1AJs Sunuaed pue pJe0q uoiesiuesIo Jioy}
A Alea 1oddns Ajiwre; dunowoud 1sloud Sunuaued suoldwieyd sunuaued dunuaued & Ajpuap! (N
3undy | APARdE suoiduweyd Sunualey pue 1Joddns Ajiwre /007 Joqwia33(] paynuap! Joj 93e|d Ul dUaUSjRU JO SUIS| SaIDUS3e AJBIUN|OA SUIPNUI)
aoe|d Ul SODIAJRS Bunjuaued
SUOMSWIE SUILIOISSILUILIOD 4O BUILOISSILULIOD 943 0 UORNGIIUOD iDL} pue
=¥o[[V5} PUB paluapl SpaaT Jo} Jun Jauolssiuwod Sunuaded ayy Jo Ajigisuodsau SOOI/
inda JoUOISSILULLIOD Sunualed | Sunuated pue NSO /007 4oquwieda PUB 3|0 A13USPI JO aUBME SODUSSE ||/ | AJSAIISP JO} SUOMBUIE SUIUOIS
DDIAIDS Jun SunuaJed pajuswiadwi
A Al PaYRUILUSSSIP Aq parJoddns 3q |!M 1 TBYL 9DUSPYUOD PUB A3918.43S 3U} JO SpIM /
3umpdy A[PpIM sI A3o1841G sonUade JUBARJRY |V /007 42quwieda( 3uipueisiapun 1odad sfeuoissajold pue syusUeq s A3oyedis unuaued pue 1c
DDIAIDS dunuaued pue 1uoddns \A%Lﬁ 3l
A Al SPIM-AYID ‘SSDIAIDS uonedpnaed SUIeaUs A}|Igeaunodoe %m Ep)
Uy | JO AJAIjRP JO SUIPUBISISPUN Jun 3unuaueq /007 42qWIRA0N JIsYL Ajnuspl sdaulted AUSAjop puUB sapuRdy | 0} sdaulded AUsAlep pUEIRUIUOL
pes sswo23nQ $924n0s9Yy S|easawi ] 403edIpUl 9DUBWLIOMD]

ue|d uoiyejuawi



SPIUWEN

SPa97 UJP|IYD) SSOJE S3IDUS

A AlJed pajo3Je} AunnJos Joj a|gejieae si 3oddns Supueded | sediAJes Sunuaued pue jJoddn:
3unoy Ajereludoudde si Suipuads suoidwieyd unuauey 8007 2unf uo duipuads Jo sIsAeue aAIsusyaUduIod uo puads jualind ol 3
SDIAJDS sowweJdoud sunuaued Joy
A Alea uiod SdUURJRU [BAUSD B} JuUn Y3 JO UoIPUNY pue
Supy | sepinodd pun Sunuaued ay | Jun Sunuadey 8007 |Mdy 9]0J DU} JO UBME U SUSP|OYSHEIS PUB SJaULIEY Sunuaued Jo uorpUNy pue JC
JODIYO JUBAS|RU LIOY
SDIAJDS 1Joddns yum paeoq
A AlJBS | passedppe aJe Jun sunuaJed sloud Sunuaued aoe|d Jun 3u]
3unpy Jo} spuswiauinbad Ajfenb3 pue 1Joddns Ajiwre 8007 AJseniga Ul SUOITEPUSLIIOISI pUR Pa1a|dUUod JUSWISSISSY JO JuaLUSSasSe 1oRdWI A
Al
spasu %
SOIAISS JIsyl 192w 03 sewiwel3oud pJeOq sawiwe.adoud o))
) ' [
A Alea 3unua.ed ssedde 01 afoud Sunuaued 8007 Mdy — 3unuaed Jo AJSAIISP @Y} O} 9dUSU240od o
3unpdy 9|qe aue syuaued ||y pue 1oddns Ajweq | /007 JSqUIRAON| 3uipinoad pue @oe(d i sl pun Sunuaded ay | Spaa7 40} Ayoeded pue s:
ODINIDS
A Aea pajuswieidwi pue uodn paynsuod
3unpy PaYSI[GeISS S| HWY NSOA | 2007 JequisnoN aJe Jun SunuaJded 2yy o} SdUBUSJRU JO SUURY 2y | Hun dunuaded sy} JO WU Pul



Apuesiudis aroudwl

1ioddn

Ue sJeak sal|lwe} pue s|doad SunoA PIJUSPIAS SI aN[eA | aABY Sjuaued 5OUM USUP|IYD JC
> 3udY | ‘UUP|IYd JO} SSUOINO BY | paaJse aq o| 600C 1599 ‘POIRUILISSSIP PUB Paluap! SI 9210edd poon) pedwi aY3 01 Se ApNnis [eulpn:
paureJ Aj@jeludoudde aue
ue sJeak | 3unuaded pue juoddns Ajiuue}
> Uy Ul pa3e3ua S[eUOISS}0U un unuauey 8007 aun( s[euolssajo.d Joj swweddoud Suiuresy ysiigeisy JO Spaau duluieJy Jo
un
AJSNIIPP @2IAJSS WoUl | unuaded pue pJeoq
Ue SJB9A | O} 9|gB|IeAR SI PUB PROUSPIAS 1pafoud Sunuaued UOIDBJSIES [BIUS,
> Uy SI UOIDBJSITES [EJUIE pue 1oddns Ajiuseq 8007 AInf ooe(d Ul auB SWSISAS Jojuow 03 93e|d Ul aUe SUk
JHun
ooeid ur | Sunuaued pue pJeoq SHJOMBWIEL SDUBINSSE AT
Ue Sueak SJB SUISIUBYDDU SDUBINSSE Pafoud Sunuaued Usi|qelse O} Wiay} @qeus
> Supy Ayrenb aAIsayod apim A1D pue Juoddns Ajiwe, 8007 Wdy 2oe|d Ul S| SMOMBWIEI} PRySI|geIST 401035 AJejunjon 5@ diys.
wun &
ooeid ur | Sunuaued pue paeoq o
Ue SueaA 2JB SUISIUBYDDU SDUBINSSE Pafoud Sunuaued pUE AJlue} JO AUAI[Rp L
> Supy Ayrenb aAIsayod apim A1D pue Juoddns Ajiwe 8007 Wdy 20|d Ul S| MOMBWIEI} PRySI|geIST SI JOMBWIE.} 9DUBINSSE




dunua.red
pue 14oddns Ajiwey jo seaue

Spo9T UaJp|IyD) SSOJde

UB SJBSA | [BIDNUD Ul POUIRIY PUB PI||X{S | WO} S92UN0SaU 91BUIPIO 8007 pa1o|dwod Juoddns Ajiwey SulIAl
P Sudy Alydiy aJe speuolssajoud |y -02 0} JuUn dunuaJey Jaquusydag SISA[BUB pUB UXE1JopUN 1IPNE S||XS PUB SUlUeJ | JO Jpne SulureJy puUe s
$5920.d SUIUOISSILUUIOD Spo9T UaJp|IyD) SSOJde Uols
UR SJeaA SU3} ULIOJUI O} S|GE|lBAB | WO} S9OUNOSaU SYBUIPJO 8007 UOISUSIXD DY} JO S3l|ILLIB} JO} B
P> Sudy UoIeLLIOUI S|gelloday -0D 0} HuUN dunuaJey Joquusydag paonpoud si sisAjeue spaaN| ® JOJ JUsWaJINbaU a4 ;
ssed0Jd BuluoISSILILIOD Spa9T Uadp|IyD) SSOJde
Ue SJeak SU} WIOJUI 01 S|gB|leAR | WO} S32UNOSJ 91BUIPJO 8007 poou JoaW O} | (AM[ed0|Le3sSn|D/a8pam) A1d ay
> Sudy UoIewIOUI S|gerioday -0D 0} HuUN dunuauey Joquusydag PoUSI[e S92UNOSaU PUB Paysi|geIsa SI Bep auljaseq po3193Ue} }NW pue pajasUe
$5920.4d 3UIUOISSILUILIOD SpaaT UaJp|IyD) SsoJdoe
Ue sJeak SU} WIOJUI O} S|GE|lBAB | WO} S92JNOSJ SJBUIPJO pSsU 192U O} SISA[eue
D Sudy uoleulIoUl S|gerJoday -0> 0} JuUN dunuaJey 8007 Mdy PaUSI[e S92UNOSaJ PUB PaySsI|eISS S| BIep SUljeseyg |  PSU JO Seaue UIIOJUl O} BIep <
sseo0Jd SulUoISSILILIOD SPa37 UJp|IyD) SSO.DB pasAjeue
Ue SJeak 9U} WUIOJUI 01 S|gB[leAR | WO} S32UNOSJ 91BUIPJO puUe pa|Iduod $3NSaY 'Uona|dulod Jo} salduade AJID By} SSOUDE ¢
> Sudy uolewIoul S|gerdoday -0> 0} JuUN dunuaJey 8007 AInf JUBAS|RJ O} pRINguUAsIp pue padojeasp |00} IPNY [EULIOJUI PUB [BULIO} ‘SDIAU
POMBIARJ PUB PaUoUOW <
Ue SJBA AlB|n3aJ SI UOIBUIIOUI JO SDIAIDS pa1ep Joj} 9|ge|leAR co_PmE@c_ JO
P Sunpy ASUR1SISUCD puB AJEnd UOIRWIO}UI S USJPIYD 3007 An| dn pue pasn Ajppim ‘paysiignd si gniH Ajiuied 1USUOD wgzmmm-\ﬁ__m;mw.vcm :
spaau -
JI2Y} }93W O} UORRWIOUI
JUSSISUOD pUB )eIndde pasAfeue
Ue SJBA A1/enb yadiy o1 ssedoe oary DDIAIDS pue pa|idwod synsay "uona|dwod Jo} sepuade
p Supy | spas| Inoydnody susued |y UOIBWIO}UI SURJP[IYD 3007 An| JUBAS[RJ O} paINqUISIp pue padojeasp |00 1PNy | Sjuaued O3 papircid UOITBULIO,
peo sawo23nQ $924n0s3Yy 9essawi | J03edIpuUl DUBWL.IOMD]




DDIAISS $5920.4d SUIUOISSILUILIOD UiIe} pUB AHUNWILIOD AUBIun|C
A Alies Sy} WLIOJUI O} 9|qE|IeAR JoYRINg YHM Syjul| Suipn
3unpy UOIBUWLIOJUI S|geldoday | suoidweyd unuauey 8007 ANn[ 2oe|d Ul s9d1AURs Sjeludoudde jo a3ury 1Joddns Ajiwie) sAdYS Jo 93
SUOIUSAJRIUI IsIfenads SODIAIDS BUnU
DIIAIDS 4O N0 2A0W pue padinbau Ajlute) po3a8.Ie}-} N pue pa)
A Al 1Joddns pue 221Ape aU3 sol|iwey ay1 ur ayedoudde se sa:
8unpy | oAIeDaU SpaaT SsoUde saljiuley | suoldweyd Suiuaiey 8007 |Udy JO} SUOIUSAISIUI SISIID JO J2GUINU Ul UOIDINPSY | SDIAUSS SUSUP|IYD |[B UM Sy{ul|
1Joddns Spaa]
DDIAISS | AjlUUe) pue SuuaJed JO Sseaue | UUp|IyD) SSOJB WO
A AJBS | [BNJD Ul pauleJ} PUB PIbS | S92JN0SaJ S}BUIPJIO-0 pa1e|dwod 1Joddns Ajiwrey SuliaAl
3unpy AlY3ly aJe speuoissajoud ||y 01 Jun dunuated | 8OO Jequierdag SISA[EUB PUB USXB1JSPUN 1PNE S||XS pue Sulured| JO 1pNe SuIUieJ) pUE S
spoa
DDIAIDS $59204d SUIUOISSILILIOD | UUP|IYD) SSO.DB WO} o)
A Al 3} WUIOJUI O} S|ge|leAB | SO2UNOSAU SYBUIPIO-0D paau 192w 01 | (AY[eD0)Me1SN|D/a8pam) A%6 3y
3unpy UOIBWIO}UI 9|gelJoday 01 Jun Sunuated | 8OO Jequierdag paugife S924N0SaJ PUB PaysI|geISa S| Byep auljaseq pa1ad.iey ninw pue pRALS.E
spoa .
DIIAIDS $59204d SUIUOISSILILIOD | UUP|IYD) SSO.DB WOJ)
A Alied S} WIOJUI O} [gE|lEAR | S2UNOSU SYBUIPIO-0D posu 193w 0O} SisAjeue
Sunpy UOITRWLIOJUI S|qeLIOodoy 0} JuNn 3unuaded 8007 |Udy paugife S92UNOSaJ puUB PAYSI|eISS SI BYBP SUI9Seg |  PadU JO SBaUR ULIOJUl O BIep <




Dl B G i [ e et I A N

IN*840"SPI|USIP|IYI MMM "91SGIM SPRST] UJP|IYD) Y3 UO PUno} oq ued
A837RJ3S SIy} 03 sadipuadde xiIs sy SulUIPIUOD JUSUWNJOP J|3UIS \/
sadipuadde A33jeu3s Sunyuaaed pue jaoddns Ajjweq

=RlWES

K AlJed pajuswR|dwil suopJo uonewIoUI puUe 519e.0U0D Auonyersdo uo

) SUIDY pUE SPOBUIUOD AJOIMIB)S | suolduieyd Sunuadeq | pawJuod g of AJOINTEIS JO UOISSSSOd Ul SI D10 JUSUIUISAOD) | SWIRISAS SulJoHUOW \Cop_%wﬁ 3
dunuaued SpooT] Dnm

92IAJSS | pue poddns Ajiuuey Jo seaue | USUP|IYD) SSOUDB WO
oA AlJBS | [IDNUD Ul paUre} PUB PI|IBS | S92UNOSAU SJBUIPJO-0D

pa1o/dwiod

1Joddns Ajiure) Sunfelsf

) SUIDY Alysly aJe seuoissajoud ||y 0} Jun Sunuateyd | 8007 4oqwirdag SISA[EUB PUB US¥E}J2PUN HPNE S||jS pue SUlUred| JO 1pNe SuIUieJ} pUE §
spao]

9DIAJDS ss920Ud SUIUOISSILULIOD | UUP|IYD) SSO.® Lo

oA Alea SU} WUOJUI O} S|gB|IleAR | S9DUNOSaU S1BUIPJO-0D poou }92W O} sisAjeue

) SUPY uolewIOUI S|gerJoday 0} Jun SunuaJey 8007 |Mdy PaUSI[e S92UNOSaU pUB Paysi|gelsa S| BJep SUI9Seqg | Paau JO SBaJe ULIOJUI O BIep <

peoT sswodjnQ $924N0S9Y 9|edsawl |

J403edipul asuew.i0j19d




Leeds

Children Leeds

Children’s Services Unit,

6th Floor East, Merrion House,
Merrion Centre, LS2 8ET

Phone: 0113 395 0247

E-mail:  children.leeds@leeds.gov.uk
Website: www.childrenleeds.org.uk

the Leed:s Initiative
Local partnerships making things happen



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda ltem 9

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 6 December 2007
Subject: Young People’s Scrutiny Forum
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific |mp|ications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report updates Members on progress with young people’s participation in the
scrutiny process.

2.0 Young People’s Scrutiny Forum

2.1 At the beginning of the municipal year, Members agreed to invite Leeds Youth Council
to nominate a topic for scrutiny by the Young People’s Scrutiny Forum. This will be the
third year that young people have carried out a scrutiny inquiry.

2.2 It was agreed to wait until the Youth Council elections had taken place before a topic
was chosen. Elections took place in October and the Youth Council will be meeting on
Saturday 15™ December, when they will consider a topic for scrutiny. A member of the
Scrutiny Board is invited to attend this meeting to discuss potential scrutiny topics with
the young people.

2.3  Once a topic has been chosen, volunteers to sit on the Young People’s Scrutiny
Forum will be sought from both the Youth Council and through ROAR (Reach Out and
Reconnect). This is a similar process to last year, and gives a wider spread of young
people the opportunity to become directly involved.

2.4 The Young People’s Scrutiny Forum will draft terms of reference for the chosen
inquiry, with support from youth work staff and the Scrutiny Support Unit. The terms of
reference will be brought to the Scrutiny Board for endorsement, as commissioner of
the inquiry. The final inquiry report will then be presented to the Board once
completed. This is likely to be in the new municipal year.

Page 39



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

Catching the Bus

Members will recall that, following the publication of last year’s report by young people
— Catching the Bus — the Board agreed to set up a joint working group of young
people, Scrutiny Board members and officers from the Council and Metro to monitor
and progress the recommendations of the inquiry.

As with the new inquiry, it was decided to await the outcome of the Youth Council
elections before setting up the first meeting of the working group.

The young people who want to be a part of this working group have now met to
discuss the original report and the formal response that was presented to the Scrutiny
Board in July. The first meeting of the joint working group will take place early in the
new year.

Other involvement in scrutiny

Whilst the Young People’s Scrutiny Forum is the main established vehicle for young
people’s participation in scrutiny, there are other opportunities for young people to be
involved.

Where possible, this Scrutiny Board seeks to incorporate opportunities to hear the
views of young people as part of its main inquiry work, especially through any visits
which form part of major inquiries.

At the November meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) the
Board agreed to invite young people to take part in their forthcoming work on teenage
conception. Other Boards have consulted directly with young people as part of their
work, for example in relation to previous inquiries on Anti-Social Behaviour and
Preventing Alcohol Misuse, and will continue to do so as appropriate.

Recommendation

The board is requested to note progress with young people’s participation in the
scrutiny process.

Page 40



Agenda ltem 10

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)

Date: 6 December 2007

Subject: Education Standards - Draft Terms of Reference

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0
2.1

3.0
3.1

Introduction

At the board’s first meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into an
aspect of education standards in Leeds as one of their major pieces of work this year.

The board appointed a small working group to draft terms of reference for the inquiry.
The working group met with officers for Education Leeds School Improvement Service
on 19" September to discuss the potential scope for the inquiry.

The draft terms of reference will be circulated in advance of the board meeting, once
members of the working group have been consulted on the draft prepared by the
Principal Scrutiny Adviser.

Views of the director and executive member

The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Guidance Notes also require that, before
embarking on an inquiry, the board seeks and considers the views of the relevant
director and executive member. These views will need to be taken into account in
finalising the terms of reference.

Recommendation

The board is requested to agree the terms of reference for the inquiry.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Agenda ltem 11

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 6 December 2007
Subject: Work Programme
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific |mp|ications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

Introduction

A copy of the board’s draft work programme is attached for members’ consideration
(appendix 1).

The attached chart reflects the discussions at the board’s November meeting.

Work programming

Also attached to this report are the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions (appendix
2) and the minutes of the council’s Executive Board meeting held on 14 November
(appendix 3), which will give members an overview of current activity within the
board’s portfolio area.

Recommendation

The board is requested to agree the attached work programme subject to any
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



SIISIA S pJeoq ay) Wod)

Annbui s pieoq ayy

da sBuipul} 8y} JOpISUOD |[IM UOISSSS SIY] | 1O Jnoj uoIssas Jo Jed Se 90UspIAS JSPISU0D O | spjo Jeak ¢|-g
yydep aiow ui sanss|

|elaAas e Buiyoo| ‘spaaT uoneonpg VOAQ Awoapeoy Ajlunwwon

q woJ} Bulyslq s aqwaAoN 0} dn-moj|o} ay) Jo |ediourd ay) wod) BulyeLiq e aAledal 0| Bunoj pineq
Jelp |eulj 8y} ul p8jos|jal useq pey

£00¢ 48q010Q Ul jelp a8y} Uo sjuUsWWIOD 1102-8002

da S}l MOY 98S 0} payse pleog ay ] ue|d 8y} JO Jelp |eul} 8y} JopISUod 0] ue|d d169jenyg spoaoa]

Annbui s pieoq
da/dy 3y} JO UOISSSS }Sll} 8} SB 90USPIAS JOPISU0D O | spJepuej}g uoneonpg
800Z Asenuer /| — ajep bunasy
wajl jo
adA | S9)JON uondiiosag wa}|

1002 1oquianopN g pajepdn jse
80/.00¢ @wweiboid YoM
(s@21M198 s, ualpiyn) pieog Aunniog

Page 45



JaquieAoN Ul Bunesw s pieog eyl je

Wodau Annbui

|ooyss

USW Wodal jeuly ayj Jo Juswsalbe 0y j0alqng | s,pleog ay) 0) 8suodsal |BuIO) BY) SAI908) 0| Aiewnd urejuno4
a|doad BunoA pue ualp|iyo Agq Alinbul 9|doad Buno ) pue
dy/da UasOoy9 8y} 10} 8ouaIsjal Jo swia) anoidde 0] uaipiyo Aq Auniog
siseq AjJalienb e uo suoiepuswiwooal Bupjoeu)
HUSIN Aunniog snoinaid yum ssalboud yoed) wayl siy | uolepuUaWWOIY
sanuond
Jjelp 8y} JO uoneIspisuod Isilies s pieog ue|d 8y} ul papnjoul 8q 1102-8002
da ay) buimojjo} ‘ebeys 1xau ay) SI Sy 0] s}abie) pue slojedlpul }yelp 8y} JOpISUod 0| ue|d o169)e1)S spoo]
siseq Auauenb e uo ue|d spaaT ul sjuswabuelle S82IAIBS S, Ualpliyd ue|d s.9|doad
ayj ul saniond ay) 1suiebe ssasboud | ay) Jo Juswdojaasp ayj Jojiuow 0} pue ‘oljojuod | BunoA pue uaipjiyo ayl
Nd Jojuow 0} paalbe sey pieog ayl S pJeog 8y} SSOJOB MIIAIBAO UB UIBlUIBW O] | pue S99IAI9S S, uaJpjiyd
pJeog uJaouo0d Buisned sjooyos
B9AI}ND8XJ 0} s}Jlodal asay) JapISuod pue suonoadsu| palsjO uo ajepdn [enuuelq | suoljoadsu| pajsjO pue
Nd 0] /0/900¢ ul paaibe pieog Aunniog ayl pue aouewiopad [00yds uo podal [enuuy aouewuoyiad jooyoss
siseq Ajayenb e uo uonew.lojul juswabeuep
Nd aouewlopuad aAl@oal spieog Aunniog ||V (92@-190) 80/200Z 10} uonew.loul € Jaueny) aouew.IOIdd
800z Aienigad | — ajep bunasp
widjl Jo
adA | S9)ON uonduoasag wa}|

1002 1oquianopN g pajepdn jse
80/.00¢ @wweiboid YoM
(s@21M198 s, ualpiyn) pieog Aunniog

Page 46



(Aunnuos 1oy seade |enuajod Buipnjoul) sbuyaug — g
Juswabeuew souewlopad — Nd
suonepuswwooal Aupnios Buliojiuo — YSIN

Aol

|[od mau jo Juswdojerag — 44

Aoljod Bunsixa Jo mainey — dy

Aunnios 1oj 1senbay — S4Yy
Aoy

Annbui s pieoq ayy

da/dy wouj Buisue uodal jeuly ay) aibe o spJepue}s uoiljeonp3
uodaa Aunnuos jenuue
3y} 0} uolNqguIuod s pieoyg ay) aalbe 0] Joday jenuuy
8002 |11dy 01— @ep bunasp
Annbui s pJieoq ay} Jo uoissas
da/dy pUOD3S 8Y] SB 90U3PIAS JBPISUOD O | spJiepue}s uoiljeonpy
Annbui s pieoq ayy
da wouj Buisue uodal jeuly ay) aibe 0| spjo Jeak ¢1-8
800Z Y21 €1 — dep Buneap
wajl jo
adA | S9)ON uonduasag wa}|

1002 1oquianopN g pajepdn jse
80/.00¢ @wweiboid YoM
(s@21M198 s, ualpiyn) pieog Aunniog

Page 47



sjun |edsyal idnd ayj Jo

9]04 8y} Buipnjoul ‘uoiIsiAcLd pue wnnNuipuod
JnoIneyaq 8y} JO Juswdojonap Jayunjay| e

{SO7IS @Y1 Jo 9jol ay) Buipnjoui ‘uoisinoid
Isijeloads Jo juswdojaAap Jayuniay| e

sybiuy eng
UOSUIYOINH elpues
uapso0xn) I19)ed
9]004 Bl[9)
weybunjje ue|
uanug Auo |

1002 :ABajenys uoisnjou| 8y} Jo saAoslqo dibajel)s ajepbue] 10|j10un0H
Jaqwieoaq G Jnoj 8y} Jo om} 1e Yoo |m dnoub Bupiom siy | uo}jiWeH J0|1ouNo) uoisnjou|
uanug Auo |
‘dnoub Buryiom juiol ayy Joy MBUSUSY JO[|Iouno) ssaiboud Buliojiuop
aledaud 0} }ow mou aAey ajdoad BunoA ay | Ja)seoue Jojjiouno) .shg ayj} buiyojen,
sbuijeaw
Jo sajeq a)epdn ssaiboud diysiaquiay dnoub Buijiopp

sdnoig Buiyiopn

1002 1oquianopN g pajepdn jse
80/.00¢ @wweiboid YoM
(s@21M198 s, ualpiyn) pieog Aunniog

Page 48



S92IAISS
s,uaJp|IyD Jo Jojoaulg

Bunesw ayj 10} epuabe
3y} Y}IM Jayew uoIsioap ay)
0} panssi 8q 0} Jodal ay |

sieah g
Joj uo Buiob usaq sey
uolje}NSuUod [B0] [IN4

L0/ClI6L

(s@21M8G s,uaIp|IyD

> oljojHod)
pJeog aAlnoax3

alnjipuadxa

Jnaul 03 Ajlloyine uieqo
uoydis) ul saquan
s,uaipjiyp om] aseyd

SpasT uoneonpg
JO ®ANDSXT JOIUD

Bunesw ayj 10} epuabe
3y} Y}IM Jayew uoIsioap ay)
0} JuUas aq ||Im Jodal ay |

L0/ClI6L

(so@o1M18S

s,uaJp|iyD :oljojod)
pleog aAlnoax3

puads 0} Ajlloyine ay)
apinoud 03 pue |eydeo sy}
J0 uonoalul ay) anosdde o
Buipung

191 14d Bunsix3 pue

4S9 jo uonoafu| [eyded

BJIYSHIOA
]SO A\ SUOIXauuo)
10 9AINAXT JaIYD

SUOIXBUUOYD) 8JIYSHIOA
1S9\ JO BAlNOBX]
$81yD ayy 0} Jodey

29)IWLIWOoD
uswabeue)

|e007 SpaaT aJIysSHIoA
1S9 \\ SUOIXBUUO)

L0/CL/E

BJIYSHIOA
]SO A\ SUOIXBauuo)
10 9AIN9XT JaIYD

092°90.3 onjeA

‘Buiuies| 9| 1sod 01 9|

aid woJy uonisuesy buunp
a|doad BunoA yum Bunjiom
SI9SIAPY |euosIad 22

Jo} p1] uabl yum 1oeljuod
paJlidxa anuiuod o

S9|Ny 24npadold

10BIUOD JO JBAIBAA

(epew aq
p|noys suoljejuasaidal
woym o])
13210 pedT]

JoMen
uoisioag Aq paJapisuo)
aq 0} sjuawnoso(g

uolej|nsuo)
pasodoid

uoisioag
J0 9jeQ
pajoadxgy

Ja)e\ uolisioaq

suoisioaqg Aay

8002 UDJEN LE 0} L00Z J8qwiaoa( | pouad ey} 4o

(S3DIAYTS S(NJHATIHO) AYVO9 ANILNYOS OL1 ONILVIIY 1IVH1X3

TIONNOD ALID SA331

SNOISIOEA A3 40 NV1d QIVMYOA

Page 49



spaaT uoneonpyg

Bunesw ayj 10} epuabe
3y} UM Jayew uoisioap ay)

‘1noybnouyy

$s920.d 9y} Ul paAjOAUl

usaq aAey wes) Juswabeue|y
19SSy pue wes) [eba
aoueul{ pue Auadoud s|iouno)
8y] "uoISSnasIp pieog
aAlnoax3 0} Joud dnoug
swabeuely 19ssy DD pue
pieogq sjosloid |ended spaa
uoneonp3 Aq passnosip aq [|Im
Jajsuely jasse Joj sjesodoud
‘1senbal uodn a|qejieAe apew
8q ue9 ss8%04d UOBYNSUOD
8y} Uo s|iejap Jayun4 -aanisod
A|Buiwjaymiano aiam pue
salpoq Buiuianob o0y yoeq pay
aJam sasuodsay jusweled
JO SJaquWB|\| puUB SI0||IoUN0Y
[e007 ‘pseog Aunnios OO
‘suolun ‘ yejs ‘salejussaldal
uesaooiq ‘Ayoyine

|BO0| 8y} ‘sjuswysi|geisa
|euo1}eoNpa/Ss|o0yds

|eoa0] (s1ayjo

1sBuowe)yym uayeuspun
uaag sey Uole}Nsuod

10 swweiboid pajielap

B ‘Isni] 8y} JO uoljew.o}

pue snie}s [0oyos Jo abueyo
ay} Joy palinbai ssaooud
Aiojnjess ay; Jo ued sy
969109 Allunwwo) yuoues
Aq pa| ‘pauIadu0d S|o0YdS

ay} Aq pansind pue padojansp

(so@o1M18S
s,uaip|iyD :oljojod)

‘diysiaumo

ISnJ] 0} |IDUNOYD WOy
sjosse sas|waid pue pue|
JO Jajsuel) ay} anoidde pue
Isni] S|o0yds yuopeo sy}
JO uoljew.o} ay} ajou o
}sni] sjooyos

JO 8AlNDaX 3] JalyD 0} panssi 8q 0} Jodal ay | ueaq aaey sjesodoud esoy | 10/2L/61 pJeog aAljNdaxXg yuopes) ayj Jo uonew.lo
(epew aq
p|noys suolejuasaidal NE T uoisio99g
woym o]) uoisioag Aq paispisuon uone}nNsuo) Jo ajeq
1321J0 pea aq 0} sjuawnosoq pasodolid pajoadx3y Ja)e\ uolsioag suoisioaqg Aoy

Page 50



‘Bunssw pieog aAlnoax3 ay) Joj epuabe ay) Jo Aem Aq uaAIb aq |Im suoIsIOap
yons aye) 0} uonuajul 8y} JO a21j0u sAep G ‘ueld 8y} Ul papn|oul JoU ale pJjeog aAIIN0axg ay) Agq uaye} 8q 0} SUOISIDa Aa) a1aym Sased U|

aelg yupnr Jojiounod Jaquisy Alosinpy
dnoug jJuspuadapu

uebiuul4 Jaqoy Jojjouno) ybnoiog Asjiop\ ayy Jo JopeaT
PloAYEAA UNSY J0]|10UNn0D dnois) unoge] a8y} Jo JapeaT
puelieH Jajad Joj|louno) ale) [el100S pue yjesaH }npy
JaxyieH pJeyory Jojj1ounod Buiuiea
18ig pJeyary Jojjiouno) S92IAIBS S,UdIp|IYD
18}001d uyor Joj|1ounNo) aIns|aT
Jape) 91|S97 uyor Joj|1ouno)d BuisnoH pue spooyinoqybiaN
YHWS 8A8)S Jo||Iouno) S9OIAISS [BJUSWIUOIIAUT
Jaye) maipuy Joj|1ouno) uonessusabay pue Juswdoljarsq
SIJBH YJep Jojjiouno) ajelodio) pue [esua)
ECIETELIGEEN €| SOI|OJj10d pieog oApNoaxy

spJem alow 1o oM} Buisiidwod eale ue ul Bujdom 1o BuiAl] SBIIUNWIWOD UO 108440 Juedljiubis e aAey 0] Aj@yl| aJe e
JO ‘wnuue Jad 000‘00SF Jeno sbuiaes Bupjew 1o ainjpuadxs BuLunoul AjlLloyine ay} ul }nsal yolym e
'SUOISIOBP 9AIND3Xd 9SOY) 8Je SuoIsioap Aoy

S310N

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 14TH NOVEMBER, 2007
PRESENT: Councillor M Harris in the Chair
Councillors A Carter, R Brett, J L Carter,
R Finnigan, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter,
S Smith, K Wakefield and J Blake

Councillor J Blake — Non-voting Advisory Member

103 Late Iltems
There were no late items but additional information had been provided since
the despatch of the agenda with regard to the Review of 14-19 Provision in

104

Leeds.

Exclusion of Public

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on
the ground that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were
present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information so
designated as follows:

(@)

The annex to the report referred to in minute 115 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the grounds that
the information contained in the annexe relates to the financial or
business affairs of the Council. It is considered that the release of such
information would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s
commercial interests in relation to the disposal of this property or other
similar transactions about the nature and level of offers which may
prove acceptable to the Council. It is considered that whilst there may
be a public interest in disclosure, much of this information will be
publicly available from the Land Registry following completion of this
transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at
this point in time.

Appendices 1, 2 and 4 to the report referred to in minute 121 under the
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption in relation
to appendices 1,2 and 4 attached to the report outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact that in
relation to Appendix 1 and 2, the success of the scheme could
potentially be prejudiced by speculative investors acquiring properties
in advance of the Council’s action, and in respect of Appendix 4, the
costs attributed to the purchase of private properties are purely
estimates at this stage and their disclosure could prejudice the

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 53



105

106

107

Council’s ability to reach an agreement on the purchase price with
owners.

(c)  Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 123 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and because publication
could prejudice the City Council’s commercial interests as, both this
Appendix and the Outline Business Case include matters where
negotiations of a confidential nature will ensue with bidders. In these
circumstances it is considered that the public interest in not disclosing
this commercial information outweighs the interests of public
disclosure.

Declaration of Interests

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to the
Review of 14-19 Provision in Leeds (minute 108) as a member of the
Learning and Skills Council.

Councillor Smith declared a personal interest in the item relating to a Waste
Solution for Leeds (minute 119) as a member of Greenpeace.

Councillor Harris declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item
relating to The Trinity Quarter and Leeds Shopping Plaza (minute 117) having
been significantly involved in a fringe meeting sponsored by the principal
developer for the scheme.

A further declaration made during the meeting (Councillor Harris) is referred to
at minute 123.

Minutes

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 17" October 2007 be
approved and that with reference to minute 102(b) the considerations of the
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) and their decision not to further
scrutinise the matter referred to be noted.

LEISURE

Tinshill Recreation Ground

Further to minute 87(d) of the meeting held on 17" October 2007 the Chief
Recreation Officer submitted a report on the arrangements for access to two
pitches which are to be fenced and which are part of Tinshill Recreation
Ground.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the report be noted and the following arrangements approved:
e The substantial improvements to the pitches at Tinshill Recreation
Ground
e The letting of the pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground through the
Parks and Countryside annual allocation process
e The allocation of an on site gardener to Tinshill Recreation Ground

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 54



108

109

e The development of the pilot project for allocations to the changing
facilities and car parking at Ralph Thoresby School and the pitches
at Tinshill Recreation Ground

(b)  That reports be brought back to this Board on an annual basis with
regard to the operation of these arrangements, including information
with regard to frequency and patterns of usage under former
arrangements and these arrangements.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he voted against these decisions)

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Review of 14-19 Provision in Leeds

A report of the Chief Executive of Education Leeds on the consultation
arrangements of the Learning and Skills Council in relation to proposals for
the reorganisation of FE colleges in Leeds had been circulated with the
agenda. Consultation had commenced on 8™ November 2007 and was
scheduled to end on 5" December 2007.

Following publication of the Learning and Skills Council proposals a report of
the Director of Children’s Services and Chief Executive of Education Leeds
offering views on the proposals had been circulated to the Board. A report on
the observations of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) had also been
circulated.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the views expressed in the report of the Director of Children’s
Services and Chief Executive of Education Leeds be approved for use
in formulating the Council’s official response to the consultation on the
proposal for the changes to Further Education Colleges in Leeds.

(b)  That the Chief Executive of Education Leeds be authorised to draft a
detailed response in consultation with the Executive Member
(Learning) for approval and signature by the Leader of Council.

(c) That the Chief Executive of Education Leeds be requested to have due
regard to the observations of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services).

ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

The Outcome of Consultation and the Proposed Procurement Methods
for the Future Provision of the Service at Terry Yorath House

The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the outcome of
consultation with disabled adults in Leeds and the detailed assessed needs of
the current residents of Terry Yorath House.

RESOLVED -That the outcome of the consultation process be noted, that the
commitments given to those residents who wish to remain in residential care
at Terry Yorath House be endorsed and that the “twin-track” approach to the
future development and the procurement of accommodation services for
disabled people in Leeds be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 55



110

111

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

Capital Programme - 2007/08 Mid Year Financial Update

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the latest financial position in
respect of the 2007/08 Capital Programme highlighting some capital
expenditure and funding changes that have arisen since the Programme was
approved in February 2007 and since the subsequent update report to the
Executive Board on 22" August 2007.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the latest position of the Capital Programme 2007/08 and the
projections for 2008/09 to 2010/11 be noted.

(b)  That approval be given to the injection in 2007/08 of £2,177,000 of
Leeds resources for the additional site related costs associated with
the Combined Secondary Schools PFI project and that authority be
given to spend such amount.

(c) That approval be given to the injection in 2007/08 of £622,000 of Leeds
resources for the additional accommodation works at 225 York Road
for the Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Section.

(d)  That the Board notes that any additional capital resources required to
support the Roundhay Mansion scheme will be considered as part of
the February 2008 capital programme update.

(e)  That approval be given to the transfer of £6,350,000 from the East
Leeds Family Learning Centre scheme to the capital contingency
scheme to be released at a later date when requirements for the East
Leeds site are known.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting in relation to (e)
above)

Revenue Expenditure - Mid Year Update

The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s
financial health for 2007/08 after six months of the financial year. The report
covered revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the approved
budget, the projected year end position and proposed actions to ensure a
balanced budget by the year end.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the projected financial position of the authority after six months of
the new financial year be noted.

(b)  That Council be recommended to approve the appropriate budget
adjustments as described in paragraph 3.9 of the report.

(c) That the decision of the Leader, Chief Executive and Director of
Resources to approve the Annual efficiency statement — mid year
update 2007 for submission to the Department for Communities and
Local Government by 15" November 2007 be noted.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 56



112

113

114

115

(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)

Treasury Management Strategy Update 2007/08
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing a review and update
of the treasury management strategy for 2007/08.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

Pre Budget Report and Comprehensive Spending Review 2007

The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the announcements
made by the Chancellor of the Exchequer in the Pre-Budget Report and the
Comprehensive Spending Review that directly relate to local government.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

The Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007-2010

The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report on
consultation that has been undertaken under the Licensing Act 2003 and the
resulting draft Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007-2010.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That having considered the proposed responses to matters raised in
consultation, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, this Board
recommends to Council that it be approved as the response of Leeds
City Council to the matters raised in consultation.

(b)  That having considered the evidence set out in Appendix 2 to the
report and the consultation responses on the proposals on cumulative
impact, this Board recommends to full Council that the Statement of
Licensing Policy includes cumulative impact policies in respect of the
city centre, Headingley, Hyde Park and Woodhouse, Chapel Allerton
and Horsforth.

(c) That the contents of the revised draft Statement of Licensing Policy at
Appendix 3 to the report be noted and that Council be recommended to
adopt this policy, including the cumulative impact policies referred to at
(b) above, as the Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007/2010.

(d)  That the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) provide
advice to Council members as to how reviews of the Statement can be
triggered and give consideration as to how full Council could be given
the opportunity to debate such Policies in detail at the early stage of
proposals being formulated.

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

Former Headingley Primary School

Further to minute 68 of the meeting of the Board held on 11" September 2007
the Directors of City Development and Environment and Neighbourhoods
submitted a report on the request made by the Headingley Development Trust
to transfer the former Headingley Primary School site to the Trust at nil
consideration so that it can be developed as an enterprise and arts centre.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 57



Following consideration of the appendix to the report designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure rule 10.4(3), which was considered in
private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was:

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the Headingley Development Trust be given an in-principle
agreement that the Council will grant a long-leasehold interest at nil
premium and at a peppercorn rent subject to the Trust demonstrating
by 30 June 2008 that it has made substantial progress towards
achieving all of its funding arrangements and to the Trust agreeing to
take on all financial and other responsibility for delivering the services
provided from the Headingley Community Centre for a period of 25
years.

(b)  That should the Trust not have made that substantial progress by 30
June 2008 the Director of City Development proceed with the open
marketing of the former primary school as part of the Capital Receipts
programme.

(c) That the Trust’s application to the Community Asset Transfer Fund be
supported and, the Partnership Agreement as set out in Appendix 1 be
approved and the Chief Executive be authorised to sign the relevant
part of that application on behalf of the Council to allow its submission
by the deadline date of 15 November 2007.

(d)  Thatin view of the deadline date specified in (c) above this decision be
exempted from the provisions of Call In.

(e)  That, subject to the Trust being able to complete its funding
arrangements and open the proposed HEART centre, the Director of
City Development be instructed to make arrangements for the disposal
of the Headingley Community Centre, at open market value, once it
becomes vacant.

116 Horsefair, Wetherby - Pedestrian Improvements Scheme
The Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City Development
submitted a report on a proposal to spend £606,000 of Town and District
Centre Regeneration Fund monies to deliver a pedestrian improvement
scheme on Horsefair, Wetherby.

RESOLVED - That the report and the detailed design of the scheme be noted
and authority be given to spend £606,000 of Town and District Centres
Regeneration Fund monies on the scheme.

117 The Trinity Quarter and Leeds Shopping Plaza
Referring to minutes 74 to 80 of the meeting of the Board held on 29"
September 2004 the Director of City Development submitted a report on the
proposed transfer of the existing development agreement and compulsory
purchase indemnity agreement from the Universities Superannuation Scheme
Limited to Trinity Quarter Developments Limited.

RESOLVED —

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 58



118

119

(@)  That approval be given to the transfer of the development agreement
and CPO indemnity agreement from USS to TQD and that approval be
given to the form of the guarantee of TQD’s obligations by LandSec
and Caddick on the terms outlined in the report, subject to Land
Securities Trinity Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Land Securities
Property Holdings Ltd) completing their shareholders agreement such
that 75% of the shares in TQD are owned by Land Securities Trinity
Limited and 25% by Caddick Group PLC.

(b)  That the “transfer” be approved on the following basis:

(i) The entering into of a new development agreement (and
ultimately a lease) with TQD on substantially the same terms as
the original agreement with USS subject to the amendments
outlined in the report.

(i) Approve and enter into the novation (transfer) of the existing
CPO indemnity agreement from USS to TQD with the Caddick
Group PLC and Land Securities Property Holdings Ltd entering
into a guarantee with the Council relating to the Development
Agreement, Lease and CPO Indemnity Agreement as outlined in
the report.

(i)  That following the novation of the CPO indemnity agreement
from USS to TQD, USS will no longer have any financial liability
to the Council and will be released from all liabilities under the
existing development agreement.

(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest Councillor Harris left the
meeting during consideration of this matter and vacated the Chair in favour of
Councillor A Carter)

Kirkgate Market - Development Strategy Update

Further to minute 27 of the meeting of the Board held on 18" May 2005 the
Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made in
formulating the Kirkgate Market Asset Management Plan and on a proposal to
move onto the next stage of public consultation.

RESOLVED - That the public consultation leaflet and questionnaire be
approved and authority given for commencement of the public consultation
exercise as soon as practicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Waste Solution For Leeds

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the
proposed submission of an Outline Business Case to DEFRA for PFI credits
to support the proposed Residual Waste Treatment project.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That the submission of the Outline Business Case for the Residual
Waste Treatment project to DEFRA be approved;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 59



120

(c) That the proposed recycling strategy approved by this Board on 11
September 2007 be further noted with particular reference to the
proposals to retain a weekly kerbside collection, and to the fact that it is
not the Council’s intention to introduce new charging schemes for
waste collection;

(d)  That the Board notes that the submission of the bid will be based upon
a reference site and technology, with no implication that Leeds City
Council land or Energy from Waste constitute preferred options;

(e)  That the procurement shall proceed on a neutral technology and site
basis in accordance with government advice;

(f) That the Board accepts the affordability implications of the Outline
Business Case and of entering into a PFI contract for the treatment of
residual waste from April 2014 to March 2038 as set out in Table 2 of
the report;

(@)  That approval be given to the submission of the Outline Business Case
in the knowledge that both the procurement process and prevailing
macro-economic conditions may affect the Unitary Charge at Financial
Close in April 2011, as illustrated at paragraph 8.6 of the report and in
Table 4;

(h)  That approval be given to the project governance arrangements
outlined in section 11 of the report, including the establishment of the
Residual Waste Treatment Project Board (with delegated powers), and
that delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive, in
consultation with the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, to
extend the responsibilities of the Residual Waste Treatment Project
Board and to establish one or more new Project Boards (with
delegated powers) in order to support the Director of Environment and
Neighbourhoods in the delivery of the wider Waste Solution;

(i) That the intention to bring further reports to this Board prior to the
commencement of the procurement regarding the project evaluation
model be noted;

() That decisions on the sale and purchase of LATS be delegated to the
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the
Director of Resources, at what is considered to be the best achievable
price.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

Beeston Group Repair

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a
proposal to inject £2,099,000 of Regional Housing Board money and
£233,300 from owner occupiers into the Capital Programme to extend the life
of approximately 60 properties in the Beeston area by 30 years.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That approval be given to the injection into the Capital Programme of
£2,099,600 of Regional Housing Board money and of £233,300 from

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 60



121

122

123

owner occupiers and that scheme expenditure of £2,333,000 be
authorised.
(b)  That a report be brought back to this Board on progress of the scheme.

Regeneration of Holbeck, Phase 3

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the
options for the regeneration of the Holbeck area and the proposed acquisition
and clearance of 34 properties within Holbeck by utilising £2,000,000 of
‘Single Regional Housing Pot’ funding during 2007/09.

The report presented the options of:

A Doing the minimum to meet legal conformity
B Group repair and internal modelling
C Acquisition, clearance and redevelopment of the site for housing

Following consideration of appendices 1, 2 and 4 designated as exempt under
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were circulated and
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was

RESOLVED -

(@)  That approval be given to the injection into the capital programme of
£2,000,000 of Regional Housing Board funding to enable Phase 3 of
the Holbeck scheme to be brought forward.

That scheme expenditure to the amount of £2,000,000 be authorised.
That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods proceed in
accordance with option C and be authorised, in consultation as
necessary, to promote Compulsory Purchase Orders should they
become necessary.

(b
(c

)
)

Area Management Review

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a
number of strands of work undertaken by officers as part of a review of area
management, proposing a number of key recommendations with indicative
timescales aimed at strengthening the roles and responsibilities of Area
Committees.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the recommended changes to Area Committee responsibilities
and working arrangements together with the proposed timetable for
their introduction be approved.

(b)  That the proposals for local partnership working arrangements be
approved.

(c) That Councillor Chapman be thanked for her work, as Lead Member
(Neighbourhoods and Housing), in producing a report on proposals to
develop area management and area committees in Leeds.

Beeston Hill and Holbeck Housing PFI Scheme
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the
proposed Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 61



Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme, including the scope of the scheme
and the financial implications for the Council.

The report referred to the appraisal of four options of decency; regeneration
via a PFI contract and complementary development agreements with the
private sector; stock transfer; and joint venture partnership.

Following consideration of appendix 1, including minor amendments to figures
as reported at the meeting, designated as exempt under Access to
Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1), which was considered in private at the
conclusion of the meeting, it was

RESOLVED -

(@)

(b)
(c)

(f)
(9)

(h)

That approval be given to the preferred option, as described in
paragraph 3.3 of the report, to be procured via a PFI contract and
associated Development Agreement alongside the Little London PFl
scheme.

That the proposed Council contributions to the project as identified in
section 3.6 and appendix 1 of the report be approved.

That the Outline Business Case for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI
scheme as described in paragraph 3 of the report be formally
submitted to the Department for Communities and Local Government.
That approval be given to the inclusion of the following sites within the
Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI scheme and to the utilisation of capital
receipts from the disposal of these sites to support the PFl scheme and
regeneration proposals for the Beeston Hill and Hobeck area:
Holbeck Tower

Malvern Rise / Malvern Grove

St Luke’s Green

Waverley Garth

Coupland Place

Malvern Road

Coupland Road

Bismarck Drive

Bismarck Street

Fairfaxes

Meynall Heights

Beverleys

Folly Lane

Cambrian Street

That the Matthew Murray site be disposed of prior to the
commencement of the PFI scheme (as described in 5.10 of the report)
with the balance of the capital receipt after BSF call to be used to
support the regeneration programme for the area.

That Moor Road be excluded from the PFIl scheme.

That affordable housing provision should be at up to 40% including
new LCC new housing for most sites included in the PFI scheme.
That the City Council’s base annual affordability contribution of
£592,000 per annum in the first year of operation be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 62



124

(i) That the joint affordability implications for the joint procurement of the
Little London and Beeston Hill and Holbeck scheme as set out at
paragraph 5.0 of appendix 1 of the report be approved.

() That the costs of acquiring leaseholder interests in order to deliver the
scheme, estimated up to £1,300,000 be met by the Council or Aire
Valley Homes Limited.

(k)  That the following be noted:

(i) the estimated PFI cash flows summarised in Table 2 of
paragraph 3 of Appendix 1 to the report and set out in detail in
the Annexe to that Appendix;

(i) that the Financial Close for this project is programmed for
September 2009 and the macro-economic conditions and price
submissions by bidders may vary between the date of this
meeting of the Executive Board and Financial Close. Section 4
in the financial appendix to the report set out the range of price
sensitivities that could affect the affordability of the project and
the submission of the Outline Business Case is approved in the
knowledge that both the procurement process and prevailing
macro-economic conditions may affect the Unitary Charge at
Financial Close in September 2009;

(i) that at this stage the impact of the joint procurement on the
affordability of the Little London project as agreed by Executive
Board in November 2006 is neutral and that the Little London
project is therefore still affordable.

(Councillor Harris declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this matter
arising from his personal commercial activities, vacated the Chair in favour of
Councillor A Carter and left the room for the duration of the discussion and
voting thereon)

Councillor Harris

Noting that this was the last meeting of the Board which would be chaired by
Councillor Harris the Board thanked him for his services in that capacity and
offered him their best wishes.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: 16™" NOVEMBER 2007
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 23R° NOVEMBER 2007

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12 noon on
Monday 26" November)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Agenda ltem 12

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 6 December 2007
Subject: Services for 8-13 year olds
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At the board’s first meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into
services for 8-13 year olds as one of their major pieces of work this year. A copy of the
agreed terms of reference is attached as appendix 1.

1.3 The first and second formal sessions of the inquiry were held in October. The attached
documents outline the information requested for session three and part of session four
of the inquiry:

Additional information requested in October

e Further information on summer holiday provision (appendix 2)
e PFI briefing — prepared for Youth Services inquiry in December 2006 (appendix 3)

Examples of targeted services

e Provision for children with disabilities (appendix 4)
e ‘All Relative’ Project (appendix 5)

Universal services

e Participation strategy (appendix 6)
e Play strategy (appendix 7)

Page 65



1.4

1.5

1.6

2.0
2.1

Relevant officers will be at the meeting to present the information and respond to
members’ questions and comments. Representatives from the voluntary, community
and faith sector will also be in attendance to provide their perspective on the issues
contained within the scope of the inquiry.

An important feature of most of the Board’s major inquiries is a programme of visits,
which enable Members to gain first hand experience of the services being scrutinised.
Unfortunately, it will not be possible to complete the programme of visits before the
Board’s meeting. Therefore the Board will need to postpone until January the sharing of
findings from the visits, and discussion of the emerging conclusions and
recommendations from the inquiry.

The following visits are being organised as part of the inquiry:

e Ireland Wood Primary School — ESNW extended schools cluster
e Weekenders Club — play scheme for disabled children

e Leeds City Athletics Club Junior Disability Group

e Information — including the Hub and Breeze websites

e Play provision

e Primary School Council

e Homework Club

e After School Club

Recommendation

The board is requested to consider the issues raised by this session of the inquiry into
services for 8-13 year olds.

Page 66



1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Inquiry into services for 8-13 year olds in Leeds
Terms of reference

Introduction

The Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan sets out local priorities
and actions to deliver universal and targeted services to all children
and young people aged 0-19, and older for those with special needs.

Within this framework, the Scrutiny Board has identified the 8-13 age
group as a key target group. Early years and youth services are well
established services with recognised target age ranges at either end of
the 0-19 age spectrum. There is now a need to extend this approach to
join up in the middle in a more formalised manner.

During the Board’s early work programming discussions with executive
members and the Director of Children’s Services, the need to develop
universal provision for this age group emerged as a key theme. The
Scrutiny Board was also aware that the Children’s Fund would be
integrated into the mainstream children’s trust arrangements from April
2008.

This complements the strong conclusion of the Board'’s inquiry on
youth services, carried out last year, which was that there needed to be
more investment in universal and targeted services for the 8-13 age
group, and that seeking to re-engage young people and their families in
structured provision and support at 13-plus was often very difficult.

This is not to suggest that there is no provision for the 8-13 age group
currently, but to identify that there is a need for a more formalised
approach to ensuring that the full range of services is extended across
the whole 0-19 age range, by enhancing current levels of provision for
the 8-13 age group. Much of this delivery will be channelled through
extended schools.

In order to decide on an appropriate and manageable focus for the
inquiry, the board commissioned a small working group from amongst
its membership to scope the inquiry. The working group met with the
council’s Acting Chief Officer for Early Years and Youth Service on 31%
July.

The working group discussed the strategy for achieving a more joined
up service framework so that there is a smooth transition and continuity
of opportunities, involvement and support for young people and their
families from 0-19.

Page 67



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

Members also learned about the statutory impetus provided by the new
requirement within the Childcare Act to provide information for children
and families covering the 0-19 age group, combined with the new duty
to provide a sufficiency of childcare up to the age of 14 to support
working families.

In addition, Members touched on the Leeds Play Strategy which was
agreed in March 2007.

The working group were concerned to identify areas where the Scrutiny
Board’s input could add value to the development of services for 8-13
year olds in Leeds, having regard to the proposed timescale for the

inquiry.

The group identified a number of aspects of the ‘infrastructure’
necessary to successful delivery of universal and targeted services for
8-13 year olds, and suggested that the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry could
focus on these areas, which are set out in section 2.1 below. Many of
these themes (such as the provision of quality, accessible information)
have formed key strands of inquiries by the Board on a range of topics
in the past.

Scope of the inquiry

The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of and, where
appropriate, make recommendations on the provision required to
deliver a comprehensive range of universal and targeted services for 8-
13 year olds and their families in Leeds. The inquiry will focus on the
following areas:

e Meeting the requirement to provide information for children, young
people and families

e The use of assets, particularly schools but also other buildings, to
deliver services

e Governance models in relation to extended schools

e The role of councillors in supporting and promoting local delivery of
services for 8-13 year olds

e The opportunities that are available for young people aged 8-13 to
participate in decision-making and influence issues that affect them

e The infrastructure required to deliver the play strategy

Comments of the relevant director and executive members

The following comments were received and have been reflected in the
terms of reference:

“Thank you for deciding to look into this issue for your review. We look
forward to working with Members and supporting this work. The terms of
reference provide a helpful starting point. May | suggest that to
strengthen the impact the review can make you might like to include in

Page 68



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

the scope of the inquiry a specific reference to looking at what
opportunities are available for young people aged 8-13 to participate in
decision-making and influencing issues that affect them. Increasing
young people’s participation is a key aspect of how we want to develop
children’s services and an area where, whilst there is a range of existing
good practice that members can look at, we also know that we can do
more. Members’ ideas around opportunities to do this would be helpful.”

Timetable for the inquiry

The inquiry will take place between October and December 2007, with
a view to issuing a final report in spring 2008.

It is envisaged that the inquiry will take place over four sessions. The
inquiry will conclude with the publication of a formal report setting out
the board’s conclusions and recommendations.

It is planned that the inquiry will include a range of visits to service
providers to complement the evidence gathered in formal sessions.
Submission of evidence

The following evidence will be considered by the Board

Session One — 11" October 2007

To consider background information on the development of services for
8-13 year olds as context for the inquiry

To consider information on the development of extended
schools/extended services across Leeds

To receive information on the provision delivered by extended schools
during the school summer holidays

To consider the governance issues associated with the development of
extended schools/extended services

Session Two — 11" October 2007

To consider the requirement to provide information for children, young
people and their families, and how that requirement is best fulfilled.

Visits
Exact locations to be confirmed. Will probably include one or more

extended schools clusters. May also include parenting support
provision. Possible ‘information’ search focused on half-term activities.

Page 69



5.5

5.6

6.0

6.1

Session Three — 6" December 2007

To consider the perspective of other agencies involved in delivering
services for 8-13 year olds, for example

e Voluntary, community and faith sector providers

e Youth Offending Service/'All Relatives’

To consider opportunities for young people aged 8-13 to participate in
decision-making and influence issues that affect them

To consider the infrastructure required to deliver the Play Strategy for
Leeds

Session Four — 6" December 2007

To discuss the role of councillors in supporting and promoting local
delivery of services for 8-13 year olds

To consider any issues arising from sessions one and two

To consider members’ findings from the visits and to discuss issues
arising from the visits with officers

To consider the board’s emerging conclusions and recommendations
to inform the production of the final inquiry report

Witnesses

The following withesses have been identified as possible contributors
to the Inquiry:

e Director of Children’s Service Unit staff

Early Years and Youth Services staff

Children’s Information Service staff

Education Leeds staff

Development Department (in relation to the play strategy)
Voluntary, community and faith sector organisations involved in
provision for 8-13 year olds (to be coordinated through the Leeds
Voice Forum)

Children and Young People’s Involvement Advocates

Leeds Play Network

School/governing body representatives

Leeds Youth Offending Service

Young people and families (through visits)

Page 70



7.0
71

7.2

8.0
8.1

8.2

Monitoring Arrangements

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of
the final inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the
agreed recommendations will be monitored.

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed
arrangements for monitoring the implementation of recommendations.

Measures of success

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry
has been successful in making a difference to local people. Some
measures of success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry
and can be included in these terms of reference. Other measures of
success may become apparent as the inquiry progresses and
discussions take place.

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



uinjal |IN (3) SO4 IIH puowydry  Atepuodass looyds ybiH d1joyied sAie IS Junop

uinjal |IN (S) yinos Aspopy  Asepuooesg jooyos ybiH Asjiop

uinjal [IN gnH 1S8AA YHON Jauu|  Alepuodas |00YOS poomsume-]

uinjal [IN (3) uoysueposoeas  Alepuodeg |jooyss ybiH Alunwwo) uojeawsg uyor

uinjal |IN (M) Aojwesg  Alepuoosg 869]]0D suy |00yoSs YbiH ayelu|

sjuepnys Og “oam | ‘sdoysdiom 1J| L 8 O (MN) yHoysioy  Arepuooeg |00Y2S Yj0jSIoH

Sjuapnls Q¢ ‘doam | ‘sdoysyiom aousIos S9INJSJoW § S|elslew | R 9 (MN) ybnouogally  Aiepuodag [ooyog Asjesing

(swwelboud Jejdwaxs 99s) JOJeUIPIO0D JBJSN|O WO} JUSWSAJOAUl SUWIOS (3) ypopes  Aiepuodeg abs|j0D AjJlunwwo) ypopes
yim ‘Jauwns ay} Jnoybnoiy) saniAiloe pue sjuans jo swwelboid abieq

SjuUapN}s O¢ ‘Yeam | ‘sdoysyiom uoiisuel) | 9 9 (M) Asjuieq  Auepuodeg [0oyos ybiH Yled Asjuie

uinjal [IN (3) uoysuepposoeas  Alepuodeg Awepeoy Allunwwo) BunoA pineq

sjuapn}s O ‘Yeam | ‘sdoysyiom eipawl paxiw | ® 9 (M) Aespng  Auepuooeg |O0YOS MBYSMEID

SJUapN}S G| ‘sy@am g ‘Id 1 ¥ 9) OH uoljeH wesmausidwa] Alepuodsg abajj09 210y NSy sndion

sjuapnis ¢ ‘S¥9aMm g ‘|SO UoNdl4 82UBS | R O (S) uosippiy  Arepuodeg SHY Jo 86|00 uINgx00)

uinjal |IN (MN) sx uedo  Asepuooeg |ooyog spaa o Ao

‘(swwelbold yoam|) aouepusaype ul sidnd og ‘siidnd guA (IN) SYIYOMIAN Asepuodesg |jooyos ybiH Jouep e
9 GIA e pajabie) ‘sjooyos Alewd 18)sn|d 1o} [00YIS Jawwng adsueq 199
‘g|doad BunoA gQ| Jano pajoelpe
yoiym uoisinoid syoam g) siAz| — sIAg 1oy dwed Jewwng spods N
‘S90INIBS papuaIXxg SYHOMIAN ybnoly) paziuebio sjooyos Jawwng
leuonippe g "sjuspnis 09 ‘¥oem | ‘UbiH Uoua||y yim paleys ‘34 18 O

lleH slodg 8y} Joj pajun spaa o} buijeT (3N) Aejpoom)y  Asepuodag looyog YBiH dljoyjed ueussH [eulpied

uinjal |IN (S) yuoN Aspopy  Asepuooesg [00YOS aylounIg

sjuapn}s O¢ ‘Yeam | ‘109loid [ejusO spediseq 1 R O (3) meysbug Alepuooag 86900 abenbue] pue jooyos ybiH meysbug

uinjal [IN (3N) edg uoisog SO43  Adepuodasg |[ooyos edg uoisog

uinjal |IN (MN) ybnoisogaisly Alepuooeg |o0oyoS Mled uojuag

Jouey lued yum uoisinold paleys (3N) Asjpoom)y  Aiepuooeg [ooyos ybiH uous||y

(3N) L'X3IN Aepuoosg |ooyog abuels uoua|y
SJUapN}s Qg ‘Yoam | ‘|00yos Jawwns eweid 1 9 © e pajsoy abueio
uoua|ly ‘Aeypunoy pue abueis uoua)ly 483sn|D 8y} Ul sjooyds ybiH
om] "800g Adenuer Aq Jojeuipioo Ja)sn|o B aABY ||IM JB}SN[O "1 "X J'N dUL

uinjai [IN gnH IS9M\ UHON Jauu]  Asepuodag |ooyds ybiH puejbu3 jo yoiny) abuels Aaqqy

JUSAD Jswwng

19)sn|H

anuay Jo jooyss

Page 73



(SL33N) spuapnis 6 ‘syoam ¢ ‘sdoysyiom suy

SJUSpNIS 0Z Yum jeadad ‘sjuapnis Oz ‘Yoom | ‘uonisued ]

SJUSpPNIS | Z Yum jeadad ‘sjuapnis g| ‘Yoom | ‘uonisued |

sjapnis g¢ ‘sAep g ‘Juswysiund pue swu)

SJUBPN]S JBYEB-PAN00| $Z ‘SABpP Z ‘SyelD R SUY |BASIPSIA

SjuSapN}s JB)B-paxy 00| 6 ‘SAep g ‘,80uUalog pep

SjuUSpN}S JBYB-PaXY00| 8| ‘SAep g ‘syelD @ SUY UBLIOIOIA

sjuspn}s Ja)B-pax 00| 7 ‘SAep ¢ ‘spdig 9y} JO 8ouUalaju0)

|B10} Ul SjUapn}s /¢ ‘suoissas Aep 7 om] ‘Bueln w4 :8IA0N AN pue s
swepnis 1| ‘sAep { ‘sdoysyiom Je [enbip Jo s||iys olped Jo Juswdojanag

sjuepnis 0 Meem | ‘34 1. 8 O
SjuspNIsS 06 ‘Yeem
| yoea ‘108loid A1o)siy pue BuIOOO [BIn)no-iinW ‘|00yIS 80UBIOS | B ©

SjUBpNIS O ‘YoM | ‘uswasoueyug pue JuswyoLug | 9 9
uinjal |IN

(M) Aojuieq

(8) AelBull B Aeispiy

(3N) Agisyiep\ SOd3
(M) Asjuie

sjuapnis gy ‘Awspede suods-ijiniA 1 9 9 1) NL uojeH wesmausa|dwa |

uinjal |IN
sjuspnis 0z ‘yeem | ‘ABojoseyoly [8007 0} UOKONPOAU| | B ©

uinal [IN

SyeaM g ‘pajusie] pue paylo) - BuljpAosy aAnesl) pue saibojouyos | ainnd

spuapnls g ‘syeam g ‘sdoysyiom Abojouyoasy x ubisap | ¥ 9

yJom Buip|ing 0} anp paso|)

a)Is-14o Ajpsow ‘sjuapnis

0€ Yeam | ‘sdoysyiom ABojouyos} g ubisap | ® © ‘plingaJ audsaq
S)9OM € JONO

ualp|iyod aabnjal pue Jayass wnjAse Gg ‘@210 e Buiuies), ‘07D 1ISOM YU
uinjal |IN

(MN) uBnouogairy
(S) »o0eg|oH % |IIH uojseeg

(S)Awed jlamyioy
(3N) "L'X3IN

(S)Anwe [lsmyjoy

(MN) MN S3
(M) Aespnd

g7 1seg Jauu|

(M) Aespnd

wnal N (3) SO uojsueHoIoeSS

sjuspnis OG ‘sAep ¢ ‘looyos Jswwns g Jeak | 3 5 (MN) @doywelg/iood/Aeno

Aepuooeg

Arepuooeg

Alepuoodag
Aepuooag
Aepuooeg

0710 spaaT yinos
aljuan bBuiuiea] As|buipesH
a1ua) Bululea symeH jo|sunH

anua) Buluies 8soy 8lIYA

ajua) elpsiN D44

|ooyos ybiH As|op
|00y0S 90UBI0G }sI[elads YBIH YIHPOOA
|ooyos YbiH Agquayiom

[ooyos YbIH spaa 1sopm
abo||0D aousIog |00yoS ybiH Jooly ajdwa |

Alepuooag sus|y ‘|00yog aAlsuayaidwo) aljoyie) sAie 1S

Alepuoodag

Aepuooesg
Aepuooesg

Aepuooeg

|0oyds ybiH spes yinos

ab9)j0) abenbue jsieroads |ooyos sphoy
aba|j0) ABojouyosa ] |0oyos Aeypunoy

|00Y0S Uel||Ipoy

Aepuosag 09 suy Ajunwwo?) jooyss ybiH Agsaloy] ydiey

Alepuoodag
Aepuooeg

Alepuoodag
Aepuooag

jooyos pjayabuels Aaspng
jooyos ybiH asoiwiid

|jooyosg adloyisalid
looyos YBIH SHIO spuepied

Alepuooag jsijeroadg |00yog Jewwels) s,AlusH aoulld A8o

Page 74



NEtWORKS

NEtWORKS Gifted & Talented Dance Summer School.

Hosted by Carr Manor High School, 30 young people, were invited to take part in a Dance Summer
School, funded by Education Leeds, Primary Gifted and Talented Strand. The week of activities was
aimed at Yrb and Yré boys and girls, who had been identified as being gifted and talented in dance,
and came together from Carr Manor, Meanwood, Miles Hill, Potternewton and St. Matthews primary
schools.

During the five-days the young people developed their dance skills through a series of workshops and
creative work, led by trained dance professionals and artists. They experienced a range of dance
styles and explored their creative skills, through a creative arts programme, which complimented the
dance workshops. The Summer School then culminated in a high level performance for friends and
family on the Friday afternoon, who received the children's efforts with a rapturous applause.

As a result of feedback from the young people the NEYWORKS Extended Services Cluster will be
looking to offer specialist dance workshops. Information about these workshops will be made available
through the schools in the area.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Organised by the ‘School Partnership Trust’

. Garforth Comemurity
e - L AMBEOHE
yOuthservice "

Garforth and Villages
School Holiday Programme 200/

- e —a
l-#l.',# h_ff 4 L i, e *

4w v

ot

Supponed by
National Lott @
em thee Big Latieny Fure Ery



Welcome to the Garforth and Villages School Holiday
Programme for 2007.

Hello!

Many of you will have taken part in the Holiday Programme last summer and we hope
you’'ll come and join us again this year. We have listened very carefully to what you and
your parents said you liked, and what you didn’t about last year’s programme and we've
made some changes, so read on and see what’s happening

Because the Big Lottery Fund has given us a grant, we can now run the Holiday
Programme through Easter, May half-term, five weeks of the Summer holidays and
October half-term!

THIS IS THE ONLY BOOKLET YOU WILL GET FOR THE WHOLE YEAR SO
PLEASE KEEP IT SAFE.

Four weeks before each holiday, you will be given a booking form. You can only book
on activities for one holiday period at a time.

Where too many people want to do the same activity we will pick names out of a
hat! Where there is a big demand for activities, you will only be allowed a place on
one, to ensure everyone gets a go.

If you get Free School Meals, you may get 50% off the cost of the activities.
As they were very popular, we are doing more trips out.

We will again be offering sports activities, with our dedicated Sports Team staff; hair
and beauty activities at Garforth Community College’s own hair and beauty salons;
arts and crafts provided by Leeds Youth Service and volunteers; and dance (including
ballroom and salsa!) with the wonderful Momentum Dance Company.

Other new activities for 2007 are archery and orienteering at Herd Farm in Eccup;
and motor-biking at BUMPY.

Please read through the booklet. We hope you will want to book on lots of the activities.

Activities are open to all | |-16 year olds and/or those of you in Years 6-11.Week One
of the Summer Holidays is ONLY open to those of you who will be in Year 7 and 8 in
September 2007.

Best wishes

The Holiday Programme Team

Tel: 0113 385 0658 (Direct) | Tel: 0113 286 9091 (Switchboard)
Email: holiday2007 @btinternet.com

Volunteer Scheme

Are you interested in volunteering? VWould you like to help on the Holiday Programme or in
schools? Garforth Community College and its main feeder primary schools are developing
the Garforth Schools’ Volunteer Scheme. No qualifications necessary — just enthusiasm and a
willingness to give a couple of hours to help! Training, support and travelling expenses are

available. All volunteers will need a CRB check.
If you would like to have a chat and fin<d out mor=, please ring us on 0113 385 0658.



Easter Activities 2007

EASTER HOLIDAYS — 2nd April - 13th April
ACTIVITY MORNING ~AFTERNOON  VENUE

MONDAY 2nd April

Rounders — Come and join our Sports Team out 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
on the field for a game (or 3!) of rounders. Drink and
snack provided.

Dance - It’s Salsa time. Ever fancied learning the 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
basic salsa steps so you can strut your stuff at the

disco! Come and join Momentum Dance staff for 2

hours of Latino rhythms and fun.

TUESDAY 3rd April
Healthy Eating — Join local Youth Worker, Denise 10-12 GCC £2

making fruit smoothies, cocktails and kebabs — and
then eat them for lunch!

Dance — Hip-hop with Momentum Dance. Come and 10 -12 GCC £2
try a variety of hip-hop and streetdance styles.

Bowling — The start of the 2007 Bowling Depart GCC £2.50
Competition! Join us for a trip to Xscape for a game 12.30 Return

of bowling. There’s a trophy to be presented in 2.30

November to the overall winner. Don’t worry if you
are a total beginner, we'll show you what to do!

Fun Games — Join the Sports Team in the Sports Hall 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
and try your hand at the mini assault course. (Drink
and snack provided).

WEDNESDAY 4th April

Arts/Crafts (1) — A variety of activities. 10-12 GCC £2
All Arts/Crafts (1) sessions will involve:-

Knitting — we’ll show you how to cast-on, knit, purl and

cast-off. Make an item of your choice or contribute

towards our giant patch-work blanket.

Scraper Boards — scrape patterns and pictures.

Jewellery Making — badges and bracelets amongst other

things.

Plus one mystery activity — to be announced at the start

of each session. All materials provided.

Hair — Join the Garforth Community College Hair 10-12 HABITS Hair £2
Salon and try your hand at shampooing, conditioning, Salon,

plaiting and styling. There will be no cutting in these Oak Road

sessions!

Football — all welcome. The national teams need 10-12 GCC £2

all the help they can get. Are you the next David
Beckham, Peter Crouch or Sue Smith? Come and
practice those dribbling, shooting and passing skills
with our Sports Team.

...continued overleaf

Page 79

—3-



WEDNESDAY 4th April (continued)

Archery — Calling all Robin Hoods. Come and

test your archery skills. Don’t worry if you’ve never
done it before — beginners are welcome. All safety
equipment will be provided. These sessions will be run
by qualified staff at Herd Farm, Eccup, which is owned
and run by Leeds Youth Service.

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.
During term time, HABITS Beauty School, run by GCC,
is home to students studying for qualifications, but in
the holidays it is being used just by us! All materials
provided.

THURSDAY 5 April

All day trip to Doncaster Dome — Ice-skating
in the morning. Bring you own packed lunch or lunch
money. Swimming in the afternoon.

Programme Staff will not be on the ice or in the pool.
Qualified staff are on duty at the Doncaster Dome.

FRIDAY 6 April - Bank Holiday

MONDAY 9 April - Bank Holiday

TUESDAY 10 April - Holiday

WEDNESDAY 11 April

Mini-bus trip to Bradford Media Museum
where we will make a TV commercial for the Holiday
Programme! The finished product will be shown
around schools/youth groups in the area. This activity
would suit those young people interested in the media
industry. (Maximum 25)

Hair — Join the Garforth Community College Hair
Salon and try your hand at shampooing, conditioning,
plaiting and styling. There will be no cutting in these
sessions!

Football — All welcome out on the school field with
our Sports Team. Drink and snack provided.

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.
During term time, HABITS Beauty School, run by GCC,
is home to students studying for qualifications, but in
the holidays it is being used just by us! All materials
provided.

Page 80

10-12

—4-

12.30 -2.30

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

Minibus £5
departs GCC

at 12.30

— returning at

3.30

HABITS Beauty £2
Salon,
Main Street

Depart GCC £7
9am Return
4pm

Depart GCC £5
9.15

Return

12.45

HABITS Hair £2
Salon,
Oak Road

GCC £2

HABITS Beauty £2
Salon,
Main Street



THURSDAY 12 April

Multi Sports — Come and try different sports 10-12
activities with our Sports Team. Drink and snack

provided.

Bowling

The bowling challenge continues at Xscape.

Archery — Calling all Robin Hoods. Come and

test your archery skills. Don’t worry if you've never
done it before — beginners are welcome. All safety
equipment will be provided. These sessions will be run
by qualified staff at Herd Farm, Eccup, which is owned
and run by Leeds Youth Service.

Rounders — No explanation required. Come and 12.30-2.30

join our Sports Team out on the field. Drink and snack
provided.

FRIDAY 13 April

Our first trip of the year to Alton Towers.
There will be qualified staff on the coach, but young
people will go round the theme park without a
member of staff. Young people will be told where staff
are and staff will remain in the park at all times. You
should be aware that there are height restrictions on
some rides.

GCC

Depart GCC
10am Return
12.00

Depart GCC
12.30 Return
3.30

GCC

Depart GCC
8.30am Return
7.00pm

£2

£2.50

£5

£2

£15




m Activities 2007

SUMMER HALF TERM — 28th May - Ist June
ACTIVITY MORNING  AFTERNOON VENUE
MONDAY 28 May - Bank Holiday

TUESDAY 29 May - Holiday
WEDNESDAY 30 May

Motor-bikes — join our Youth Workers for 2 hours Depart GCC £15
of motor-bike riding with qualified instructors down 9.15 Return
at BUMPY motor-bike project in Birstall. Check 12.45

them out at bumpy.org.uk. Protective clothing will be
provided. Wear old clothes!

Hair — Join the Garforth Community College Hair Salon  10-12 HABITS Hair £2
and try your hand at shampooing, conditioning, plaiting Salon, Oak Road
and styling. There will be no cutting in these sessions!
Depart
Archery — Herd Farm again to see how many “bulls GCCI2.30 £5
eyes” you can hit. Qualified staff will show you what to do. Return 3.30
Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes. 12.30-2.30 HABITS Beauty £2
During term time, HABITS Beauty School, run by GCC, Salon
is home to students studying for qualifications, but in the Main Street
holidays it is being used just by us! All materials provided.
THURSDAY 31 May
Make your own lunch! — Healthy food snacks and  10-12 GCC £2

smoothies are on the menu during our healthy eating
sessions.All food provided.

Bat and Ball — Join our Sports Team for rounders/
cricket and basketball. You'll do an hour of each witha  10-12 GCC £2
break for a drink and a snack.

Bowling at Xscape — How many strikes can you

get? It doesn’t matter if you are a beginner or an Depart £2.50
expert, come and join our Bowling Challenge. We have GCCl2.30
a trophy to be presented in November for the Highest Return 2.30

score. If you don’t want to take part in the Challenge,
why not just come and have a go?

Arts/Crafts (2) A variety of Arts and Crafts
activities. All Arts/Crafts (2) sessions will include:- 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
Fabric painting — bring a cloth item to customise
Glass Painting — create your own design or use a stencil
Card making — cards for all occasions for you to make
and take home.
A mystery activity — to be announced at the start of the
session.
All materials provided, but bring your own item for
fabric painting.

...continued on the next page

Page 82

—_6—



THURSDAY 31 May (continued)

Ballroom Dancing — Included for the first time in 12.30-2.30
response to popular demand! Staff from Momentum

Dance Company will show you the basic steps so

you can waltz, cha-cha and jive just like on Strictly

Come Dancing! Great for those formal occasions like

weddings and proms or just for getting fit!

FRIDAY 1 June

Our second trip of the year to Alton
Towers. There will be qualified staff on the coach,
but young people will go round the theme park
without a member of staff. Young people will be told
where staff are and staff will remain in the park at
all times. You should be aware that there are height
restrictions on some rides.

GCC

Depart GCC
8.30
Return 7pm

£2

£15



MONDAY 23 July

Streetdance — Momentum Dance Company
will take you through your paces. No experience
necessary, just lots of enthusiasm!

Bowling - The 2007 Bowling Competition continues
into summer! Join us for a trip to Xscape for a

game of bowling. There’s a trophy to be presented

in November for the individual who gets the highest
score. Don’t worry if you are a total beginner, we’ll
show you what to do.

Making music — It's Samba time!! Come and join in
your very own Samba band. Whistles and drums will
be provided. The session will be run by GCC Music
Department (so you'll know where it is if you join the
Treasure Trail on Thursday!) Come and have a gr8 (and
loud) time!

TUESDAY 24 July

Climbing and Mountain biking — Join our mini-
bus trip to Herd Farm, Eccup where qualified staff
from Leeds Youth Service will take you up the climbing
tower and then out on a bike ride. Safety gear is
provided and must be worn.

Make your own lunch! — Healthy food snacks and
smoothies are on the menu during our healthy eating
sessions.All food provided.

Cricket and Rounders — one hour of each with a
break in between for a drink and a snack — and to let
you get your breath back.

Contemporary Dance — Come and learn some
great new dance moves with the lovely people from
Momentum Dance Company. (Ask them how they
enjoyed performing at Disneyland Paris!)

Making Music — Steel Pans Workshop. Sounds of
the Caribbean at GCC. The Music Department is
going to help you get great sounds from the drums.
No experience necessary.

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

10-12

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

Page 84

_8-—

GCC

Depart GCC
12.30 Return
2.30

GCC

Depart
GCC |0am
Return Ipm

GCC

GCC

GCC

GCC

£2

£2.50

£2

£5

£2

£2

£2

£2



WEDNESDAY 25 july

Archery — Come and test your archery skills. Don’t
worry if you've never done it before — beginners are
welcome. All safety equipment will be provided. These
sessions will be run by qualified staff at Herd Farm,
Eccup, which is owned and run by Leeds Youth Service.

Nails and Manicures — Come and let our qualified
staff show you how to make your hands look great at
GCC'’s own Beauty School.

National Media Museum — Come and try your
hand at making your very own Wallace and Gromit style
film as we take part in an animation workshop at the
wonderful Media Museum in Bradford. (Maximum 20)

Hair Styling — GCC’s own Hair Salon is the venue
for our hair styling sessions where our qualified

staff will show you how to plait, style, shampoo and
condition. Sadly, you won’t be cutting anything!

THURSDAY 26th July

Raft Building — The mini bus is off to Leeds Sailing
Centre, Yeadon Tarn this morning where you will be
kitted out with safety clothing and shown how to build
a floating raft. You'll then spend time on the water
before returning home. You will need a change of
clothing. (Maximum 12)

Fun Games — a mini assault course developed by
our Sports Team staff Adam and Sarah. Come and see
how many sections you can complete.

Arts and Crafts (1) - a great chance to try a
number of different arts and crafts activities. Arts and
Crafts (1) will always include:-

Knitting — we’ll show you how to cast-on, knit, purl and
cast-off. Make an item of your choice or contribute
towards our giant patch-work blanket.

Scraper Boards — scrape patterns and pictures

Jewellery Making — badges and bracelets amongst other
things.

Plus one mystery activity to be announced at the start
of each session.

All materials will be provided.

Treasure Trail — Come and find your way around
Garforth Community College before you arrive in
September! Follow the clues, complete the mystery
tasks, find the hidden items and answer the quiz
questions. Young people will be grouped into teams
with a qualified member of staff to support each team.
(Small prize for all participants.)

Depart GCC
10am Return
Ipm

10-12 HABITS Beauty
Salon,
Main Street

Depart GCC
12.15

Return

3.30

12.30-2.30 HABITS Hair
Salon, Oak
Road

Depart GCC
9.45am Return
12.15

10-12 GCC

10-12 GCC

12.30-2.30 GCC

Page 85

—9-

£5

£5

£2

£5

£2

£2

£2



FRIDAY 27 july

Coach trip to Forbidden Corner in North
Yorkshire — come and join us as we find our way
through mazes and tunnels, under water falls and
through doors that keep moving! We will arrive at
Forbidden Corner for an early lunch in the grounds
before heading off to crack the codes and secret
messages.

Packed lunch required. Please bring waterproof and/or
suncream and sunhat. Old clothes are essential and a
change of clothes is a good idea if you are the sort of
person who always seems to attract the water. Some parts
of Forbidden Corner will not appeal to those who scare
very easily. For further information please check out their
website at www.yorkshirenet.co.uk/theforbiddencorner

SUMMER -WEEK TWO

ACTIVITY MORNING  AFTERNOON
MONDAY 30 July

Dance - Hip-Hop. Momentum Dance Company will 12.30-2.30
help you put together your own hip-hop routine. All

welcome.

Basketball — Join our Sports Team on the basketball 12.30-2.30

court for some shooting practice.

TUESDAY 31 July

Climbing and Mountain biking — Join our mini-
bus trip to Herd Farm, Eccup where qualified staff
from Leeds Youth Service will take you up the climbing
tower and then out on a bike ride. Safety gear is
provided and must be worn.

Fun Games — a mini assault course developed by 10-12
our Sports Team staff Adam and Sarah. Come and see
how many sections you can complete.

Making Music — Steel Pans Workshop. Sounds of 10-12
the Caribbean at GCC. The Music Department is

going to help you get great sounds from the drums.

No experience necessary.

Motor-bikes — join our Youth Workers for 2 hours
of motor-bike riding with qualified instructors down
at BUMPY motor-bike project in Birstall. Check
them out at bumpy.org.uk. Protective clothing will be
provided. Wear old clothes!

Page 86

—10-

Depart
GCC 10.15
Return 3.15

(approx)

VENUE

GCC

GCC

Depart GCC
10am Return
Ipm

GCC

GCC

Depart GCC
12.15
Return 3.45

£8

£2

£2

£5

£2

£2

£15



WEDNESDAY | August

Canoeing — Learners and experienced canoeists are
both welcome on this trip to the Leeds Sailing and
Activity Centre at Yeadon Tarn in the shadow of the
airport runway! Qualified staff will be on the water
with the group and everyone will be required to wear
appropriate safety clothing which will be supplied.
(Maximum 15)

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.
During term time, HABITS Beauty School, run by GCC,
is home to students studying for qualifications, but in
the holidays it is being used just by us! All materials
provided.

Indoor Climbing — Off again in the mini bus. This
time we are going to scale the heights at the Leeds
Climbing Wall. Trainers or other suitable footwear to
be worn. All welcome. (Maximum [2)

Hair Styling — GCC’s own Hair Salon is the venue
for our hair styling sessions where our qualified

staff will show you how to plait, style, shampoo and
condition. Sadly, you won’t be cutting anything!

Arts/Crafts (2) A variety of Arts and Crafts
activities.

All Arts/Crafts (2) sessions will include:-

Fabric painting — bring a cloth item to customise

Glass Painting — create your own design or use a stencil
Card making — cards for all occasions for you to make
and take home.

A mystery activity to be announced at the start of the
session.

All materials provided, but bring your own item for
fabric painting.

THURSDAY 2 August

Football — all welcome. The national teams need
all the help they can get. Are you the next David
Beckham, Peter Crouch or Sue Smith? Come and
practice those dribbling, shooting and passing skills
with our Sports Team.

Arts and Crafts (1) - a great chance to try a
number of different arts and crafts activities. Arts and
Crafts (1) will always include:

Knitting — we’ll show you how to cast-on, knit, purl and
cast-off. Make an item of your choice or contribute
towards our giant patch-work blanket.

Scraper Boards — scrape patterns and pictures

Jewellery Making — badges and bracelets amongst other
things.

Plus one mystery activity — to be announced at the start
of each session.

All materials will be provided.

...continued on the next page

Depart GCC
9.45 am Return
12.15

10-12 HABITS
Beauty Salon,

Main Street

Depart GCC
12.30 Return
2.30

12.30-2.30 HABITS
Hair Salon, Oak

Road

12.30-2.30 GCC

10-12 GCC

10-12 GCC

Page 87

—11-

£5

£2

£8

£2

£2

£2

£2



THURSDAY 2 August (continued)

Bowling - The 2007 Bowling Competition continues!
Join us for a trip to Xscape for a game of bowling.
There’s a trophy to be presented in November for the
individual who gets the highest score. Don’t worry if
you are a total beginner, we’ll show you what to do.
You might discover a talent you never knew you had!

Dance — It’s Salsa time. Ever fancied learning the 12.30-2.30
basic salsa steps so you can strut your stuff at the

disco? Come and join Momentum Dance staff for 2

hours of Latino rhythms and fun. All welcome from

absolute beginners onwards.

FRIDAY 3 August

Coach trip to Alton Towers. There will be
qualified staff on the coach, but young people will

go round the theme park without a member of staff.
Young people will be told where staff will be and staff
will remain in the park at all times. You should be
aware that there are height restrictions on some rides.

SUMMER —-WEEK THREE

ACTIVITY MORNING  AFTERNOON
MONDAY 6 August
Streetdance — Momentum Dance Company 12.30-2.30

will take you through your paces. No experience
necessary, just lots of enthusiasm!

Bowling - The 2007 Bowling Competition continues!
Join us for a trip to Xscape for a game of bowling.
There’s a trophy to be presented in November for the
individual who gets the highest score. Don’t worry if
you are a total beginner, we’ll show you what to do.

Making Music — Steel Pans Workshop. Sounds of 12.30-2.30
the Caribbean at GCC. The Music Department is

going to help you get great sounds from the drums.

No experience necessary just lots of enthusiasm

TUESDAY 7 August

Climbing and Mountain biking — Join our mini-
bus trip to Herd Farm, Eccup where qualified staff
from Leeds Youth Service will take you up the climbing
tower and then out on a bike ride. Safety gear must
be worn.

Make your own lunch! — Healthy food snacks and  10-12
smoothies are on the menu during our healthy eating
sessions. All food provided.

...continued on the next page

Page 88

—12—

Depart GCC £2.50
12.30 Return
2.30

GCC £2

Depart GCC £15
8.30am Return
7pm

VENUE COST

GCC £2
Depart £2.50
GCC 12.30

Return 2.30

GCC £2
Depart £5
GCC |0am

Return 12.30

GCC £2



TUESDAY 7 August (continued)

Arts/Crafts (2) A variety of Arts and Crafts
activities.

All Arts/Crafts (2) sessions will include:-

Fabric painting —bring a cloth item to customise

Glass Painting — create your own design or use a stencil
Card making — cards for all occasions for you to make
and take home

A mystery activity — to be announced at the start of the
session

All materials provided, but bring your own item for
fabric painting.

Football — all welcome. The national teams need
all the help they can get. Are you the next David
Beckham, Peter Crouch or Sue Smith? Come and
practice those dribbling, shooting and passing skills
with our Sports Team.

WEDNESDAY 8 August

Archery — Come and test your archery skills. Don’t
worry if you've never done it before — beginners are
welcome. All safety equipment will be provided. These
sessions will be run by qualified staff at Herd Farm,
Eccup, which is owned and run by Leeds Youth Service.

THURSDAY 9 August
Jazz Dance with Momentum Dance Company.

Bowling - The 2007 Bowling Competition is bowling
along! Join us for a trip to Xscape for a game.
There’s a trophy to be presented in November to the
individual who gets the highest score. Don’t worry if
you are a total beginner, we’ll show you what to do.

Arts and Crafts (1) - a great chance to try a
number of different arts and crafts activities. Arts and
Crafts (1) will always include:-

Knitting — we’ll show you how to cast-on, knit, purl and
cast-off. Make an item of your choice or contribute
towards our giant patch-work blanket.

Scraper Boards — scrape patterns and pictures.
Jewellery Making — badges and bracelets amongst other
things.

Plus one mystery activity — to be announced at the start
of each session.

All materials will be provided.

Canoeing — Learners and experienced canoeists
are both welcome on this trip to Leeds Sailing and
Activity Centre at Yeadon Tarn in the shadow of the
airport runway! Qualified staff will be on the water
with the group and everyone will be required to wear
appropriate safety clothing which will be supplied.
(Maximum 15)

12.30-2.30 GCC

12.30-2.30 GCC

Depart
GCC 10am
Return Ipm

10-12 GCC

Depart GCC
10am Return
12.00

12.30-2.30 GCC

Depart GCC
12.15 Return
2.45

Page 89

—13-

£2

£2

£5

£2

£2.50

£2

£5



FRIDAY 10 August

Coach trip to Alton Towers. There will be
qualified staff on the coach, but young people will

go round the theme park without a member of staff.
Young people will be told where staff will be and staff
will remain in the park at all times. You should be
aware that there are height restrictions on some rides.

SUMMER —WEEK FOUR

ACTIVITY MORNING  AFTERNOON
MONDAY I3 AUGUST

Arts/Crafts (2) A variety of Arts and Crafts 12.30-2.30
activities.

All Arts/Crafts (2) sessions will include:-

Fabric painting — bring a cloth item to customise.

Glass Painting — create your own design or use a stencil.
Card making — cards for all occasions for you to make
and take home.

A mystery activity — to be announced at the start of the
session

All materials provided, but bring your own item for
fabric painting.

Bowling - The 2007 Bowling Competition is nearing
the end of the summer section! Join us for a trip to
Xscape for a game. There’s a trophy to be presented
in November to the individual who gets the highest
score. Don’t worry if you are a total beginner, we’ll
show you what to do.

TUESDAY 14 August

Climbing and Mountain biking — Join our mini-
bus trip to Herd Farm, Eccup where qualified staff from
Leeds Youth Service will take you up the climbing tower
and then out on a bike ride. Safety gear must be worn.

Contemporary Dance —come and learn some new 10-12
dance moves (or practise your old ones)! Ideal session
for those of you doing Dance in school.

Making Music — Steel Pans Workshop. Sounds of 10-12
the Caribbean at GCC. The Music Department is

going to help you get great sounds from the drums.

No experience necessary just lots of enthusiasm!

National Media Museum — Come and try your
hand at making your very own Wallace and Gromit style
film as we take part in an animation workshop at the
wonderful Media Museum in Bradford. (Maximum 20)

Aromatherapy — Our very own qualified 12.30-2.30
aromatherapist will show you how to perform a hand

and foot massage with wonderful smelling oils. Bring 2

small towels and prepare to be very relaxed!

Page 90

— 14—

Depart
GCC

8.30 Return
7pm

VENUE

GCC

Depart GCC
12.30 Return
2.30

Depart
GCC |0am
Return Ipm

GCC

GCC

Depart
GCC9.15
Return 12.45

GCC

£15

£2

£2.50

£5

£2

£2

£5

£2



WEDNESDAY 15 August

Archery — Come and test your archery skills. Don’t
worry if you've never done it before — beginners are
welcome. All safety equipment will be provided. These
sessions will be run by qualified staff at Herd Farm,
Eccup, which is owned and run by Leeds Youth Service.

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.
During term time, HABITS Beauty School, run by GCC,
is home to students studying for qualifications, but in
the holidays it is being used just by us! All materials
provided.

Yorkshire Mining Museum — Have you ever
wondered what it was really like to work down the pit?
Have you heard the stories from Grandad about what it
was like? Come and see for yourself as you are kitted
out with a lamp and descend into the old mine shaft.

Multi Sports — Come and try different sports
activities with our Sports Team. Drink and snack
provided.

Hair Styling — GCC’s own Hair Salon is the venue
for our hair styling sessions where our qualified

staff will show you how to plait, style, shampoo and
condition. Sadly, you won’t be cutting anything!

THURSDAY 16 August

It’>s Salsa time! - Come and join Momentum
Dance staff for 2 hours of Latino rhythms and fun.
This session is aimed at those of you who already have
some dance experience.

Outdoor Activities Day — Not for the faint-
hearted! You will spend the morning on the High
Ropes course out at Herd Farm. The course is
challenging, but is supervised by qualified staff

who will help you get around. We will have lunch
(included in the price) and in the afternoon you can
choose whether to go on a |0mile bike ride out to
the Emmerdale film set, or take part in orienteering
around Eccup. The choice is yours!

Bat and Ball — Join our Sports Team for rounders/
cricket and basketball. You'll do an hour of each with a
break for a drink and a snack.

FRIDAY 17 August

Coach trip to Alton Towers. There will be
qualified staff on the coach, but young people will

go round the theme park without a member of staff.
Young people will be told where staff will be and staff
will remain in the park at all times. You should be
aware that there are height restrictions on some rides.

Depart GCC
10am Return
Ipm

10-12 HABITS Beauty
Salon, Main
Street

Depart GCC
9.15

Return

Ipm

12.30-2.30 GCC

12.30-2.30 HABITS Hair
Salon, Oak
Road

10-12 GCC

Depart GCC
9.30 Return
approx 5pm

12.30-2.30 GCC

Depart GCC
8.30
Return 7pm

Page 91

15—

£5

£2

£3

£2

£2

£2

£7.50

£2

£15



MONDAY 20 August

Kayaking — The mini bus is off to Leeds Sailing

and Activity Centre at Yeadon Tarn near Leeds and
Bradford airport. Come and spend the afternoon
learning how to manoeuvre a kayak and glide across
the lake — avoiding the ducks if you can! (Maximum |5)

TUESDAY 21 August

Climbing and Mountain biking — Join our mini-
bus trip to Herd Farm, Eccup where qualified staff
from Leeds Youth Service will take you up the climbing
tower and then out on a bike ride. Safety gear must
be worn.

Football —Your last chance to practise those
shooting, passing and dribbling skills before you head
back to school in September!

Aromatherapy — Our very own qualified
aromatherapist will show you how to perform a hand
and foot massage with wonderful smelling oils. Bring 2
small towels and prepare to be very relaxed!

Bowling — Last chance this holiday to get the top
bowling score and be in with a chance of winning the
2007 Trophy. Don’t worry if you've never bowled
before — there is such a thing as beginner’s luck!

Making music — It's Samba time!! Come and join in
your very own Samba band. Whistles and drums will
be provided. The session will be run by GCC Music
Department.

WEDNESDAY 22 August

Archery — Come and test your archery skills. Don’t
worry if you've never done it before — beginners are
welcome. All safety equipment will be provided. These
sessions will be run by qualified staff at Herd Farm,
Eccup, which is owned and run by Leeds Youth Service.

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.
Your last chance this summer to learn how to take
care of your nails. All materials provided.

Rounders — come on your own or bring a group.
Rounders out on the field — weather permitting!
Drink and snack included.

Hair Styling — GCC'’s own Hair Salon is the venue
for our hair styling sessions where our qualified

staff will show you how to plait, style, shampoo and
condition. Sadly, you won’t be cutting anything! Last
chance to pick up all those good hair tips before you
go back to school.

Page 92

10-12

10-12

—16 —

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

12.30-2.30

Depart GCC
12.15
Return 2.45

Depart GCC
10am
Return 1.00pm

GCC

GCC

Depart GCC
10am Return
12.00

GCC

Depart
GCCl0am
Return Ipm

HABITS
Beauty Salon,
Main Street

GCC

HABITS Hair
Salon, Oak
Road

£5

£5

£2

£2

£2.50

£2

£5

£2

£2

£2



THURSDAY 23 August

Streetdance — Momentum Dance Company
will take you through your paces. No experience
necessary, just lots of enthusiasm!

Make your own lunch! — Healthy food snacks and
smoothies are on the menu during our healthy eating
sessions.All food provided.

Dance — Hip-Hop. Momentum Dance Company will
help you put together your own hip-hop routine. All
welcome.

Outdoor Activities Day — Not for the faint-
hearted! You will spend the morning on the High
Ropes course out at Herd Farm. The course is
challenging, but is supervised by qualified staff who will
help you get round. We will have lunch (included in the
price) and in the afternoon you can choose whether to
go on a |Omile bike ride out to the Emmerdale film set,
or take part in orienteering around Eccup. The choice
is yours!

FRIDAY 24 August

Coach trip to Alton Towers. The last visit of
the holidays! Book early to avoid disappointment!
There will be qualified staff on the coach, but young
people will go round the theme park without a
member of staff. Young people will be told where staff
will be and staff will remain in the park at all times. You
should be aware that there are height restrictions on
some rides.

10-12

10-12

12.30-2.30

GCC

GCC

GCC

Depart GCC
9.30 Return
approx 5pm

Depart GCC
8.30am Return
7pm

£2

£2

£2

£8.00

£15




n Activities 2007

OCTOBER HALFTERM — 22 October - 26 October
ACTIVITY MORNING AFTERNOON VENUE
MONDAY 22 October

Multi-sports - Come and join our Sports Team staff 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
and try your hand at different indoor sports.

Bowling —We're almost at the end of the 2007 Depart £2.50
Bowling Challenge. Come and see how good you are GCC 12.30

or just come and learn how to bowl! Return 2.30

TUESDAY 23 October

Dance — Hip-Hop. Momentum Dance Company will 10-12 GCC £2
help you put together your own hip-hop routine. All

welcome

Football — all welcome. The national teams need 10-12 GCC £2

all the help they can get. Are you the next David
Beckham, Peter Crouch or Sue Smith? Come and
practice those dribbling, shooting and passing skills
with our Sports Team

Arts and Crafts (1) - a great chance to try a 12.30-2.30 GCC £2
number of different arts and crafts activities. Arts and
Crafts (1) will always include:-

Knitting — we’ll show you how to cast-on, knit, purl and
cast-off. Make an item of your choice or contribute
towards our giant patch-work blanket.

Scraper Boards — scrape patterns and pictures

Jewellery Making — badges and bracelets amongst other
things.

Plus one mystery activity — to be announced at the start
of each session.

All materials will be provided.

Swimming —We're off to Barnsley Metrodome for Depart GCC £5
an afternoon of slides, water and fun. You need to be 12.30

confident in the water to really enjoy this activity as Returm

staff will not be in the pool with you. The pool has 3pm

qualified lifeguards on duty.

WEDNESDAY 24 October

High Ropes Course — a chance to see if you have Depart £5
a good head for heights. Come and try out the aerial GCC |0am
ropes course at Herd Farm, Eccup. The Centre is run Return Ipm

and managed by Leeds Youth Service and qualified staff
will be supervising. Safety equipment will be provided
and must be worn.

Nail and Beauty — Manicures, nail art and polishes.  10-12 HABITS £2
Your last chance this year to learn how to take care of Beauty Salon,
your nails at one of our Nail and Beauty sessions. All Main Street

materials provided.

...continued on the next pagPage 94
_18-—



WEDNESDAY 24 October (continued)
Dance - your last chance this year to try salsa 12.30-2.30
dancing. Come and join the staff from Momentum
Dance Company and see how well you can dance to
that Latino beat.

Hair Styling — GCC’s own Hair Salon is the venue 12.30-2.30
for our hair styling sessions where our qualified

staff will show you how to plait, style, shampoo and

condition. Last session of the year!

Bowling — Here it is. At Last! The very last bowling

session of the 2007 Bowling Challenge. Find out who
has won the trophy! Or just come along anyway for a
game of bowling and a laugh!.

THURSDAY 25 October

High Ropes Course — a last chance to see if you
have a good head for heights. Come and try out the
aerial ropes course at Herd Farm, Eccup. The Centre is
run and managed by Leeds Youth Service and qualified
staff will be supervising. Safety equipment will be
provided and must be worn.

Arts/Crafts (2) A variety of Arts and Crafts activities. 10-12
All Arts/Crafts (2) sessions will include:-

Fabric painting — bring a cloth item to customise

Glass Painting — create your own design or use a stencil

Card making — cards for all occasions for you to make

and take home.

A mystery activity — to be announced at the start of the

session.

All materials provided, but bring your own item for

fabric painting.

Bat and Ball — Join our Sports Team for rounders/ 12.30-2.30
cricket and basketball. You'll do an hour of each with a
break for a drink and a snack.

Make your own lunch! — Healthy food snacks and 12.30-2.30
smoothies are on the menu during our healthy eating

sessions.All food provided.

FRIDAY 26 October

Coach trip to Alton Towers. The last visit of
the holidays! Book early to avoid disappointment!
There will be qualified staff on the coach, but young
people will go round the theme park without a
member of staff. Young people will be told where staff
will be and staff will remain in the park at all times. You
should be aware that there are height restrictions on
some rides.

Page 95

—19-

GCC

HABITS Hair
Salon, Oak
Road

Depart
GCC 12.30
Return 2.30

Depart GCC
10am Return
Ipm

GCC

GCC

GCC

Depart 8.30am
Return 7pm

£2

£2

£2.50

£5

£2

£2

£2

£15



Should you require all-day childcare during the holidays, these
local providers can be contacted on the numbers listed

The Old School
Vicar’s Terrace
Allerton Bywater

s

A

Fot 3 visel oo @ prevspaeclos, (o -|.II Ealy o0
OEUTT S TEE o

c-halldayve shauldn™t be this mach fun...

Holiday Club

@earferth Community Cellege
= — I portaeritey with Seeet Foad Mariery Ld

Weekly activity plans - Active supervisien - Tournaments - Rele
play - Table tennis/Air hockey - Chill zones - 3-14 yrs
EOT58 530885

Garforth Grean Lana Sehasol, HEmhhit Hehaal, Bt Benadict's School

East Garforth School and Mancton St James BEchool
Aged 511 Al chilel preerids cand ihd Sethritied of school S for eXire piese of mind

For farthar detat v an bormation pocic Y P H @ ST 23281

Booklet designed ) Bluec ~e Create Ltd.
Call 0113 294 7141 or email: er:quines@bluetreecreate.co.uk



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

Briefing Paper for Scrutiny Board: Use of PFl Schools by Community Groups
and Third Party Groups

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Purpose of this Briefing Paper

This paper has been prepared in response to a request from Scrutiny Board
(Children’s Services) to provide details of the contractual provision for
community and third party use and the current levels of actual usage at the City
Council’'s PFI schools.

Background Information

There are three operational Education PFl schemes in Leeds comprising five
secondary schools and 16 primary schools. In September 2007 a further two
secondary schools will be provided through the Combined Secondary Schools
project and in 2008 and 2009 a further five will be provided under Building
Schools for the Future.

A key element in each of the PFI schemes has been the provision and
maintenance of a range of facilities suitable for both school and community use
including sports halls, gyms, dance studios, Multi-Use Games Areas (MUGA’s)
and sports pitches. A summary of the external facilities at the operational
schools is provided in Appendix One.

Within each of the projects the contractor is required to provide all or part of the
school buildings and facilities in line with a contractually agreed Maximum Use
Table. This table identifies the times and proportion of the school that the
contractor will make available during the main teaching day (referred to as core
use in the contracts) and outside the main teaching day (referred to as non-
core use). Typically the contracts require the whole school to be open during
the main teaching day and a portion of the school to be available before
school, after school, in the evening, at weekends and during holiday periods for
activities including school clubs, governors meetings, rehearsals, community
use, training days, holiday clubs and sports events. An example of a maximum
use table is provided in Appendix Two.

The schools and Education Leeds can also pay for additional time over and
above the maximum paid for through the main contract for their own use or for
use by community groups. The extra payment is intended to address the
additional costs the contractor will face, such as extended cover by
superintendents and cleaners.

The contracts also allow the contractors (subject to certain conditions) to hire
the school buildings and external areas for use by third parties. This is
managed and controlled by the contractor and can include sporting events
(football matches etc) and other events (flower shows, musical performances
etc). The contractor is able to charge a commercial rate for the booking to
cover the costs of providing the booking. A proportion of the income (or the
profit on the income) is returned to Education Leeds on a quarterly basis.

Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 97



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Community Use Contractual Definitions and Leeds City Council Policy

Definitions vary slightly between contracts but in principle community use is
deemed to include for sporting activities, holiday play schemes, community

meetings or other community activities in accordance with the City Council’s
community use policies.

Groups included within the City Council’s community use policy include:
¢ Voluntary youth groups such as guides, scouts and majorettes.

Holiday playschemes (grant aided by Learning and Leisure)

Music Centres

Supplementary schools

Under 18 sports groups

Community associations and neighbourhood watch groups

Political party meetings and Councillor surgeries

Learning and Leisure Youth Services.

All groups should be voluntary non-profit making organisations.

The use of the schools by the groups identified in 3.2 are supported and
subsidised by the LEA through the Education Leeds community use policy.
This enables the groups to hire areas within schools free of charge to the

group.

All bookings for community use are managed and administered by the
Education Leeds Lettings Unit. They are responsible for ensuring that the
groups fall within the requirements of the community use policy and ensure that
insurances and security checks are undertaken. The lettings unit can be
contacted on Leisure 0113 2243849, Education 0113 2475598

Please note that Lettings Unit refer to community use bookings as ‘directed
lettings’

Contractual Provision

Within the three operational schemes there is either an amount of time
specifically for community use or there is time available for use by either the
school or community groups. In summary:

7 Schools Project

Each of the 7 schools has 3.15 hours of use each term day (190 days per
school year) for before school clubs (1 hour) and after school clubs (2.15
hours). This provides a maximum of 4322 hours per annum for before and
after school clubs across the 7 schools.

There is also up to 20 hours available in any term week for use of areas at
Roundhay and Lawnswood schools for sporting activities by groups of children
under 18. This provides a maximum of 1560 hours for community use.

Primary Schools Project

Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 98



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

4.4

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

Each of the 10 Primary schools has 3.5 hours of use each term day (190 days
per school year) for before school clubs (1 hour) and after school clubs (2.5
hours). This provides a maximum of 6650 hours per annum for before and
after school clubs across the 10 schools.

Each school also has up to 80 occasions of 3 hours for community use for term
time evenings; up to 48 occasions of up to 10 hours for community use on
weekday in holidays, up to 36 occasions of up to 3 hours for indoor activities on
Saturdays and up to 18 occasions of up to 3 hours for community sports use
on Saturdays. This provides a maximum of 8820 hours for community use
across the 10 schools

Combined Secondary Schools Project

Each of the 6 schools has 3.15 hours of use each term day (190 days per
school year) for before school clubs (1 hour) and after school clubs (2.15
hours). This provides a maximum of 3705 hours per annum for before and
after school clubs across the 6 schools

To provide greater flexibility in the use of the school facilities in the evenings, at
weekends and during holiday periods there is no specific time identified for
community use with these schools. This enables the pre-bought time outside of
the school day to be used for either the school or community groups, which
ensures that the use of the school is maximised.

Actual Community Group Usage

The Education Leeds Lettings Unit have provided details of the current level of
community usage within the PFI schools. In summary there are the following
community lets within the PFI schools

7 Schools Project
A combined total of 27 hours of weekly community use at the two secondary
schools

Primary Schools Project
A combined total of 4 hours of weekly community use at the 10 Primary
schools

Combined Secondary Schools Project
A combined total of 50 hours of weekly community use at the 3 operational
Secondary schools.

Please note that no information was provided by the Lettings Unit in relation to
before and after school clubs and holiday schemes.

Third Party Use
As outlined in 2.5, school buildings and external areas can also be used by

third party groups. The use of the schools by third parties will usually take
place outside of the times on the maximum use table and the bookings are

Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 99



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

administered and managed by the contractor.

Third parties are charged a commercial rate for the use of the school facilities
which is based on the actual costs incurred by the contractor.

6.2 There is a general belief that the costs charged by PFI contractors are
comparatively high and the use of the school facilities is therefore restricted.
However, as part of the planning conditions for the CSSP contract there was a
requirement to provide actual costs of hiring sports facilties at the new PFI
schools and showing that these costs were comparable to the costs that would
be incurred at a Leeds leisure centre. This comparison, which was also
required by Sport England, is included in Appendix Three and shows that for
bookings during the week the cost of using sports facilities at the new PFI
schools is, on average, 6% cheaper than the equivalent facilities at a Leeds
Leisure Centre.

The costs for using sports facilities at weekends is higher in the PFI schools
but this is primarily because use of leisure centres at weekends is classed as
off peak and the costs are subsidised.

6.3 It has not been possible to obtain full details of third party bookings at the PFI
schools. It is known that there are bookings for a number of general interest
groups and some sporting groups. However, there is currently relatively little
use of external pitches at weekends.

7.0 Sunday Community Use

7.1 There has recently been a request from a local football team to play matches at
Methley Primary school (one of the PFI ten primary schools) on a Sunday. This
request was initially rejected as there is no pre-bought time for community use
on a Sunday.

The football team had previously played their matches on a Saturday and, at
the time of the new PFI school opening, had been given assurances that this
arrangement would continue. However, the team changed to a league which
played their matches on a Sunday and therefore their requirements fell outside
of the contractual provisions.

As a result, Education Leeds took the decision to put in place a temporary
arrangement with the contractor to allow the matches to take place.

The decision to not have any pre-bought time on a Sunday has been taken for
all PFI contracts and the same decision is proposed for the BSF project.

8.0 Booking of Community Use and Third Party Use

8.1 The general requirement for the booking of facilities at PFI schools is as
follows:

e Requests for bookings by community groups are managed and
administered by the Education Leeds Lettings Unit.

Prepared by PPPU December 2006
Page 100



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

8.2

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10.0

10.1

¢ Requests for bookings by third party groups are managed and
administered by the relevant contractor, typically through their help
desk.

Requests for community and third party bookings do follow processes which
ensures that the bookings can be provided in line with contractual and directed
lettings policy implications. It is acknowledged that in some instances
community groups consider this process as unnecessarily bureaucratic and it is
proposed to review the booking processes to ensure that bookings are not
unnecessarily rejected due to the length of time taken to approve the booking.
There have also been instances of contractors rejecting community use without
full justification.

Conclusions

Community Use in non PFI Schools

From evidence provided recently by Learning and Leisure community use in
non PFI Schools, of particularly sports pitches, appear significantly lower in non
PFI Schools and in the majority of non PFI Schools seems to be precluded.
Community Use at Secondary Schools

Actual community use in the five operational secondary schools averages over
15 hours a week for each of the schools, which is below the maximum provided
for by the contracts.

Community Use at Primary Schools

There is currently only 4 hours of actual weekly community use at the primary
schools, which is significantly below the average of 169 hours a week provided
by the contract across the ten schools for community use.

Sunday Community Use

None of the existing or proposed PFI schemes currently have any pre-bought
time on Sundays for either school or community use. This is not unusual for
school facilities.

Third Party Use

It has not been possible to obtain full details of third party bookings at the PFI
schools. However, the recent cost comparison exercise undertaken for the
Combined Secondary Schools project shows that the costs charged at PFI
schools are comparable with costs at leisure centres

Booking of Community Use and Third Party Use

The responsibility for the management and administering of calls for the two
types of use is clearly defined and understood by the parties to the contract.
Although the process is very similar to the directed lettings system used for
other schools, some groups have identified difficulty in using the booking
process and uncertainty as to who to contact.

Current Position

In the report of the Director of Learning and Leisure to the Executive Board

Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 101



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

scheduled for 13™ December 2006 it is proposed that a pilot project is
developed between Learning and Leisure and Education Leeds to promote
further access to sports pitches through the Combined Secondary Schools
Project.

Prepared by PPPU December 2006
Page 102



Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

Appendix One: Summary of External Sporting Pitches and Facilities at

Operational PFl Schools

7 SCHOOLS

ROUNDHAY

2 Nr. Football Pitch

1 Nr. Cricket Pitch

5 Nr. Tennis Court/ 2 Nr. Netball (tarmac surface)

2 Nr. Rugby Pitch( 1 Nr. full size)

2 Nr. Hockey Pitch

1 Nr. Athletics Track

LAWNSWOOD

1 Nr. Athletics Track

1 Nr Cricket Pitch

2 Nr. Rugby Pitch(1 Nr. full size)

4 Nr. Tennis Court3 Nr. Netball (tarmac surface)

2 Nr. Football Pitch

1 Nr. Hockey Pitch( full size)

1 Nr Hockey Pitch(7-a-side)

SPRING BANK PRIMARY

1 Nr. All-weather artificial pitch

5 LANES PRIMARY

1 Nr. Football Pitch

1 Nr. Junior Games Court (tarmac)

OAKWOOD PRIMARY

1 Nr. Junior Football Pitch

2 Nr. Junior Games Courts

ASQUITH PRIMARY

1 Nr. Football Pitch

HILL TOP PRIMARY

1 Nr. Netball Court

1 Nr. Football Pitch

LEEDS PRIMARIES

COOKRIDGE PRIMARY

2 Nr. 5-a-side pitches (tarmac)

1 Nr. Grassed Pitch

KIPPAX PRIMARY

1 Nr Netball / 5-a-side football pitch (tarmac)

1 Nr. Grassed Mini Pitch

ROTHWELL PRIMARY

1 Nr Netball / 5-a-side football pitch (tarmac)

2 Nr. Grassed Pitches.

HORSFORTH PRIMARY

1 Nr. Grassed Pitch

1 Nr. 5-a-side football / Netball (tarmac)

YEADON RUFFORD PARK PRIMARY

1 Nr. MUGA (Netball, 5-a-side, Short Tennis)

Prepared by PPPU
Page 103

December 2006




Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

1 Nr. Grassed Sports Pitch.

RAWDON PRIMARY

1 Nr. MUGA (Netball, 5-a-side, Short Tennis)

1 Nr. Grassed Sports Pitch

EAST ARDSLEY

1 Nr. MUGA (Netball, 5-a-side, Short Tennis)

1 Nr. Grassed Sports Pitch

METHLEY PRIMARY

1 Nr. MUGA (Netball, 5-a-side, Short Tennis)

1 Nr. Grassed Sports Pitch

PUDSEY PRIMARY

1 Nr. Grassed Sports Pitch

1 Nr. Tarmac Sports Pitch

1 Nr. Basket ball / Netball Court ( tarmac)

LOWER WORTLEY

1 Nr. 5-a-side Football Pitch

COMBINED SEONDARY SCHOOLS PROJECT

CARR MANOR SECONDARY

4Nr Grassed Sports Pitches

1Nr. Rugby Pitch

1 Nr. Athletics Track

3 Nr. Tennis Court / 3 Nr. Netball (tarmac surface)

SOUTH LEEDS SECONDARY

1Nr Grassed Sports Pitches

1Nr. Rugby Pitch

3 Nr. Tennis Court / 3 Nr. Netball (tarmac surface)

PRIMROSE SECONDARY /| SHAKESPEARE PRIMARY

1Nr Grassed Sports Pitches

1Nr Artificial Sports Pitches

JOHN SMEATON SECONDARY(Opening September 2007 — school have
use of adjoining new sports centre)

2Nr Grassed Sports Pitches

RALPH THORESBY SECONDARY (Opening September 2007)

1Nr Grassed Sports Pitches

3 Nr. Tennis Court / 3 Nr. Netball (tarmac surface)

2 Nr Grassed Sports Pitches (Tinshill Rec)

Prepared by PPPU December 2006
Page 104




Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

Appendix Two Primary Schools Maximum Scheduled Use Table (Per

School
Duration | % of
Core Hours Occasions| Start | End | (Hours) | Facility
On School Teaching Days 190 08:30 | 15:30 7 90
On Early Years Teaching Days 243 08:00 | 18:00 10 10
Days facility open 243
Non-Core Hours Duration % of
on School Teaching Days Occasions| Start | End | (Hours) | Facility
Before school clubs 190 08:00 | 09:00 1 10
Before school meetings & other essential
school staff/visitor access 190 07:30 | 08:30 1 10
After school clubs 190 15:30 | 18:00 25 10
Other extra curricular activities for pupils 190 15:30 | 16:30 1 10
After school meetings & other essential
school staff/visitor access 190 15:30 | 17:30 2 10
Community Use 80 18:30 | 21:30 3 5
"Small" evening meetings & events 30 18:30 | 21:30 3 10
"Large" evening meetings & events 9 18:30 | 21:30 3 90
Days facility open 190
Non-Core Hours Duration | % of
on Early Years Teaching Days Occasions| Start | End | (Hours) | Facility
School Training Days 5 08:30 | 15:30 7 90
School Holiday Days access 25 08:00 | 13:00 5 20
Community Use on school holiday days 48 08:00 | 18:00 10 10
Early meetings etc for early years staff /
visitors 243 07:30 | 08:00 0.5 5
Late meetings etc for early years staff /
visitors 243 18:00 | 18:30 0.5 5
Days facility open 243
Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 105




Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

Non-Core Hours Duration | % of
on Saturdays during Term Time Occasions| Start | End | (Hours) | Facility
Community Use indoor activities 36 09:30 | 12:30 3 5
Community Use sports 18 09:30 | 12:30 3 5
School sports 18 09:30 | 12:30 3 5
School Events 3 09:00 | 16:00 7 90
Days facility open 36

Notes: Start and end times are indicative; % of facility is approximate.

Prepared by PPPU December 2006

Page 106




Scrutiny Board Briefing Paper: Community and Third Party Use of PFI Schools

Appendix Three: Leeds Combined Secondary Schools PFl — Third Party

Prices lIC / Mitie Schedule of Prices V LCC Schedule of Prices

Area IIC Hourly Standard LCC | IIC Hourly rate | Standard LCC
Rate week fees / charges | weekend fees / charges
day (‘peak time’) (‘off peak

time’)

1. Halls with toilets™ £32 From £21.80/ | £40 From 21.80/

hour hour

2a. Sports halls with £32 No £40 No

toilets™ comparable comparable

price available price available
2b.Sports hall with toilets, | £35 £45 £43 £33

changing facilities*

3. Dance studios, with £25 No £32 No

toilets™ comparable comparable

price available price available
3a Dance studio with £28.5 £26.50 (studio | £35.5 Not available
toilets and changing at LIP)

facilities™

4. Gymnasium with £25 No £32 No

toilets™ comparable comparable

price available price available
4a Gymnasium with 28.5 £45 £35.5 £33

toilets and changing

facilities™

5. The community theatre | TBC N/A TBC N/A

at Ralph Thoresby

6. External Areas; £21.5 No £28.5 No

comparable comparable
price available price available
6a External Areas with £25 No £34 No

toilets comparable comparable

price available price available
6b External Area with £28.5 £36.70 £37.5 £24.80

toilets and changing (Astroturf (Astroturf

facilities price) price)

7. Such other areas as P.O.A. N/A P.O.A. N/A

the City Council's

Representative shall

permit in his absolute

Discretion.

8. Special Events such P.O.A. N/A P.O.A. N/A

as weddings, private
parties

Note:

1. * 10% uplift for Utilities as appropriate

2. On average the IIC / Mitie weekday use of the facilities are 6% cheaper than the
comparable facilities at Leeds leisure centres (including utilities costs)
3. On average the IIC / Mitie use of the facilities are 14% more expensive than the
comparable facilities at Leeds leisure centres (including utilities costs)
4. Please note that the above IIC / Mitie rates do not take in to account the cost benefits of
block bookings which would reduce hourly rates
5. LCC rates are taken from the 2006 rates and prices document

(http://www.leeds.gov.uk/files/2005/week52/inter_ a67f499f-fodb-46bb-9b09-

2086152eb125_067494ac-369f-44cb-bd24-a8505597f36b.pdf)

Prepared by PPPU

Page 107

December 2006




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Aiming High for Disabled Children

Short Breaks Pathfinder Programme Bid

The following details provide a summary of the short break service and are

taken from a pathfinder programme bid.

Current short break services provided in Leeds

Short break provision Is a service Funded | Funding Est. total Est. total
provided? jointly body/ local other
(yes/no) (yes/no) | bodies authority agency
expenditure | expenditure
on services on services
in 2007-08 in 2007-08
Residential Unit Services
Overnight stays Yes provided | LA (Social LA PCT -
by both Care) £755,330 | £448k
Day care or sessional Yes, small pre- LA and and PCT (Hannah
visits school day PCT but riouse
provision provided | itis running
by Health respite separate costs)
unit. provision
Outreach service No
Family based overnight care
Contract carers Yes. Family No LA (Social | £327,202*
Placement have 7 Care) total
contract carers budget for
Contract
Carers and
Family Link
carers
Overnight sitting services Yes, Children’s provided | LA (Social | £113,191 PCT-
Continuing Care by both Care) and total £765k
Nursing Team/ PCT and | PCT budget for
Family Placement LA but it family
team is placement
separate sitting
provision services
Family Link services Yes. 75 Link carers | No LA (Social | £327,202*
Care)
Family based day care
Contract carers Yes. Family No LA (Social | £327,202*
Placement contract Care)
carers who offer
overnight care will
also offer some day
care
Family Link services Yes. Family No LA (Social | £327,202*
Placement carers Care)

who offer overnight
care will also offer

some day care

* total budget for Contract Carers and Family Link carers

Page 109




Short break provision Is a service Funded | Funding Est. total Est. total
provided? jointly body/ local other
(yes/no) (yes/no) | bodies authority agency

expenditure | expenditure
on services on services
in 2007-08 in 2007-08

Sitting or sessional services (inc. befriending
Yes, Children’s Yes PCT and LA £22,000 | PCT
Community Nursing LA (Carers £52 225
Team Grant)

87 approved sitters, | No LA (Social | £113,191
provide sessions Care) total
and some budget for
overnights and family
longer periods in placement
the child’s own sitting
home services
Voluntary Sector No LA (Social | £ 245,000
contract and spot Care) block
purchasing with contract
agencies £43,860
Block
contract,
carers
grant

Other short break services
Martin House No PCT £147k
Hospice provides (PCT grant
some respite to Martin

House)

Direct Payments- No LA (Social | £360,300
there are 90 Care)
families in receipt
of direct payments
Leeds Inclusion Yes LA (Sure Sure Start PCT
Support service — Start, grant £19,500
Supports the Children’s £75,0000
inclusion of Fund, (Supports Children’s
disabled children in Carers pre school | Fund
pre school, out of grant)and | and child £12,500
school and play PCT care for
provision working

parents as

well as play

and

leisure)

Carers

Grant

£25,500
Weekenders — Yes LA (Social | Social care | Children’s
Specialist Voluntary Care and £60,000 Fund
play care provision at Carers Carers £55,000
weekends Grant) grant

Children’s £17,000
Fund

Page 110




Short break provision Is a service Funded | Funding Est. total Est. total
provided? jointly body/ local other
(yes/no) (yes/no) | bodies authority agency
expenditure | expenditure
on services | on services
in 2007-08 in 2007-08

Weekend residential | No LA (Carers | Carers

breaks for disabled Grant) grant

children £9500

Vol sector and No Some LA

parents groups that grants and

pro_vi_dg short break fundraising

activities by groups

Each pathfinder is expected to focus on 4 ‘learning themes’ from a list of 20.
Leeds has chosen to focus on:
J Ensuring that parents, children and young people are fully involved in the

planning, commissioning and delivery of short break services — in keeping

with the local core offer (A1)
e  Building the skills in the short break workforce to deliver the Full Service Offer

(C2)

) Securing sufficient, quality short break provision for severely disabled children
and young people who have challenging behaviour as a result of their

impairment (D2)

e  Securing significant, cost effective short break provision by working effectively
with universal services (F1)

The contribution which Leeds would make to learning as a pathfinder is

outlined as follows:

1) There is a wide range of short break provision in Leeds provided by the Local Authority,
PCT and Voluntary Sector. This includes specialist residential overnight services (LA and
PCT), Home Based Services(LA, Voluntary Sector and PCT), a well established Family
Placement Service and community based services which are joint funded and provided in
partnership with the Voluntary Sector. A large number of families receive direct payments.

2) There is well established partnership working in the city. The Disabled Children’s Inter-
Agency Partnership leads on strategic planning, service development and joint
commissioning of services for disabled children and is attended at a senior level. The group
recently appointed a jointly funded programme manager to support the further integration and
development of services for disabled children in line with key legislation and guidance.
Priorities for the post are:
¢ leading on a review of short break provision including further developing both
specialist and targeted provision;
e supporting disabled children and young people to access universal provision; and
o further developing parent and child involvement and access to information about
services .
The Partnership is therefore committed to developing and improving short break provision
with the involvement of parents and families, and this work is already underway.

3) The programme manager has capacity to lead on the work and has experience in
developing and integrating short break provision in her previous authority. This has included

Page 111



developing community based specialist and targeted provision and supporting access to
universal provision by developing staff skills through training and mentoring. This is an area
Leeds want to develop, to secure significant, cost effective short break provision by working
effectively with universal services, to ensure there is a range of provision to meet differing
needs and that this is equitably allocated according to need.

4) Leeds is in a strong position to further develop inclusion in universal provision, particularly
by improving access to, and availability of, inclusive play and leisure services which also
provide short breaks: The city is making good progress in developing extended services and
supporting inclusion in these with extended services representatives based in many special
schools. One of the clusters is involved in a SEN Regional pilot in respect of inclusion in
extended services. The Youth Service wants to further support inclusion; the Inclusion
Support Service and Play Network have specialist staff that support inclusion of disabled
children in play and leisure settings. There is a specialist sports service and a wide range of
voluntary sector provision (such as weekend and holiday play schemes) in the city. Leeds is
piloting the budget holding lead professional and wants to enable families to access a basic
level of community based short break provision through a CAF completed by a lead
professional who can access an aligned or pooled budget to fund any additional support. A
work stream is being established to progress this, with parent representation.

5) There is in place a multi-agency resource panel that allocates overnight provision in Health
and Social Care. Allocation of resources will be developed to include access to universal and
targeted services and ensure all resources are equitably and transparently allocated
according to the child and families needs. To support this, assessments will better identify
which families need specialist services and which can be supported by more preventative
services. This will lead to specialist services becoming more responsive and flexible to
families that need these, reducing family breakdown.

6) Leeds was one of the first local authorities to set up a family placement scheme for
disabled children. It has a variety of services and has demonstrated its ability to recruit and
support carers and provide flexible packages of care. Partnership working in respect of short
break provision can be evidenced using the scheme as an example: There is a long standing
protocol which is reviewed yearly with the Leeds Health Trusts to train Family Placement
carers in nursing interventions and other partnerships include the Fire Service undertaking
Fire Risk Assessments, the Community Equipment Service storing and cleaning equipment,
and the children's OT team undertaking assessments. The Family Placement Service has
identified the need for additional funding to recruit fee paid carers to target hard to place
children with challenging behaviour, and BME carers.

7) The good practice that is already established in respect of health service staff supporting
and training carers and staff in short break settings will be further developed to build the skills
of the short break workforce. This will include partnership working with CAMHS and the
Children’s’ Community Learning Disability team to support the inclusion of children with
challenging behaviour in all settings, both in universal services but also carers and staff in
targeted and specialist short break settings.

8) As part of a £5m Disabled Children's PFI programme, a 12 bedded short break residential
unit is being replaced with a new single storey unit and a new 8 bedded residential unit is
being built for Young People 14-18 with learning disabilities and challenging behaviour. It will
link with the Adult PFI Independent Living Project to create a pathway to independence in
adulthood. The skills of residential staff will be further developed and enhanced prior to the
opening of the new units, particularly to meet the needs of children with challenging
behaviours and to improve the quality of provision.

9) There is strong commitment in the city to involving parents and disabled children in service
developments and parents are represented on many workstreams. A proposal for a parent

Page 112



liasison post is in development and the Children’s Information service are working with
agencies to establish a Disabled Children’s Information service and a newsletter which can
support parents in meeting the needs of disabled children and identifying provision.

10) The above demonstrates Leeds’ strong position to progress the short break programme to
meet the Full Service offer by April 2010 and thus contribute to national leaning. The proposal
to achieve this meets both the four specified learning themes but also the majority of the
learning themes.

There are a number of ways Leeds have developed an understanding of disabled
children, young people’s and parents requirements for short breaks:

1) A parent action group (PCA) has worked closely with the Disabled Children’s Inter-Agency
Partnership for many years as a partner in the planning, commissioning and delivery of services.

2) A parent support group, SNAPS recently undertook a consultation exercise with parents (over
100) in respect of short breaks and the key messages were that parents wanted :

e To beinvolved in service developments

e To have increased access to information about services,

o Improved access to play and leisure opportunities, (both for parents to take children too,

and for community based short breaks) and more short break provision in general

e transparent and equitable allocation of short breaks
These issues have been incorporated into the review of short break provision and resulting
strategy for development.

3) Parents have been involved in other consultations including planning for the new PFI
residential units and developing the Carers Strategy, and are represented on a number of
working/steering groups.

4) Referrals for Social Care and Health short break provision are via a Disabled Children’s
Integrated Needs Assessment, completed with parents and children, and presented to the multi
agency resource panel. The panel allocates the most appropriate resource and monitors unmet
need which is incorporated into future service planning.

5) There are a number of active parent support groups in the city working in partnership with
services and a well established parent partnership service supporting the development of parent’s
forums in the five “wedges” in the city. A multi agency parent liaison post will support further
parental involvement throughout the implementation of the Aiming High agenda and enable
consultation and feedback on service provision with as many parent groups and individual
parents as possible, and from all community groups. This will help ensure future provision meets
the needs of all. It will develop a parent link/information exchange and work closely with the
disabled children’s information service.

6) There is a multi agency disabled children’s participation worker in post who supports the
involvement of disabled children in service developments. Disabled children have been involved
in consultation about the new PFI residential units and the worker is setting up a disabled children
and young people’s forum which will link into universal young people’s forums. This will work
alongside the parent forums to ensure full involvement in service developments, and also
incorporate the views of siblings.

7) Children who have overnight short break provision in a social care or health setting have six
monthly reviews of their care package. This includes all professionals involved with the child and
family, and parents are central to the process and their views sought. The child's input is
welcomed and supported in the most appropriate way.

Page 113



8) The regional pilot in respect of inclusion in extended services is providing resources to support
professionals incorporate the views of parents. This will be extended across the city.

PCT commitment

The PCT is strongly committed to the provision of a full range of short breaks, working in
partnership with the Local Authority and 3™ sector providers to ensure that the health needs of
children receiving short breaks can be met in all settings. This includes support to non-Health
providers, as well as the direct provision of a range of Health respite provision, and is reflected in
our extensive expenditure in this area.

Our Children’s Continuing Care Policy is an example of good practice, and underpins the
provision of an extensive nursing respite service into children’s homes, both in the day-time and
overnight, supporting children with the most complex needs and technology dependant children.
Leeds is participating in the National Children’s Continuing Care Pilot, and will ensure that the
new Framework is fully aligned with the best practice elements of our current process.

Leeds has invested in a 4 bedded purpose-built, dedicated Health respite unit, Hannah House,
which offers residential respite to a wide group of children identified as having health needs using
our ground-breaking Nursing Dependency Tool. The Unit provides short breaks, as well as some
day care and day trips for the children. The PCT is currently developing a business proposal to
extend the provision in Hannah House to 6 beds, to encompass both step down care for
technology dependant children and additional respite.

All Health respite provision is allocated by a joint Social Services & Health Panel, to ensure that
the full portfolio of provision in the city is fairly allocated according to need.

Leeds has a well established Children’s Community Nursing Team which provides short day-time
sessions (3 hours weekly) of respite to children and families with less complex health needs (ie
not eligible for continuing care).

The PCT provides support to a wide range of non-Health providers to enable them to meet
children’s health needs in a range of settings, and training agreements are in place with statutory
partner agencies. The PCT is committed to extending this approach to enable all children,
regardless of their level of need, to access universal provision and opportunities for leisure and
new experiences alongside their peers.

Leeds would be willing to work with Regional Commissioning Units to explore
ways of improving the commissioning of short breaks.

The following support needs have been identified to enable Leeds to
become a pathfinder

A part time project officer to develop and implement a communication strategy in respect of the
Aiming High agenda and Pathfinder programme and to support the Programme Manager in
setting up information systems to ensure the reporting requirements are met.

Additional support in fully establishing the parent forums and children and young people’s forums
across the city and supporting the workforce in incorporating parent and child views into service
developments. This support could be identified through extending the work being done in the
SEN inclusion in extended services pilot

Page 114



Leeds

Youth ;‘:\ A
Offending ,‘;, -
Service - > 8 a I I rel atlve

supporting parents — understanding children

BRIEFING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY BOARD

The Project - The ‘all relative’ project delivers Incredible Years (Webster Stratton)
parenting programmes to parents of 8-13 year olds at risk of anti-social behaviour.
These programmes are theoretically grounded and have a strong evidence base in
improving family functioning by increasing parents’ skills and confidence. Incredible
Years programmes have been well researched and are validated by NICE (National
Institute for Clinical Excellence). All staff are trained in the approach and their
practice is supervised. Initial funding in 06 came from the DfES early parenting
pathfinder initiative, with additional funding from the Respect Task Force in 07. All
funding ceases in March 08.

The project delivers effective 18 week programmes and removes barriers to
attendance for ‘hard to reach’ parents mainly in the lowest 10% super output areas of
the city. This has resulted in good records of attendance, completion and parental
satisfaction although many families need additional support from workers between
group sessions to hold them in the project. A clinical psychologist provides expertise
where this is needed. In addition to project funded staff a range of partnerships
provides additional personnel to support the programme delivery. These include, for
example, colleagues from Early Years, Anti-social Behaviour Unit, CAMHS,
Education Leeds and all staff are trained in Incredible Years thus building capacity
within the city. Governance for the project is via a Steering Group comprising the
key agencies involved in referral and delivery and the project is hosted within the
Youth Offending Service.

Parents ‘graduating’ from the first round of groups received certificates in August and
the second round of groups is well under way including an evening group which is
city wide. A regular ‘drop-in’ facility has been developed for ongoing support and
some of the parents are becoming volunteers within the project to support and
encourage other parents attending groups. The project was featured on Sky News
earlier this year and showed parents speaking out about how the project is helping
them and their families.

Outcomes -‘all relative’ is meeting its aims and objectives and achieving outcomes
against its targets. Targets for attendance and completion at the groups by parents
have been exceeded and significant reductions in first time entrants (young people) to
the criminal justice system many from the super-output areas covered by the project
have been evidenced. Comprehensive measures used with attendees at the first round
of groups have been analysed by University of Bangor. This report — which is

available to members, concludes:-

From the results we can conclude that although the participating families were mainly socially
deprived, and had suffered many negative experiences and problems, the parenting course reduced
depression and helped parents to manage difficult child behaviour by improving their parenting
skills. We know that it is parent behaviour that has modified child behaviour as only the parents
attended the group; the children were not seen.

Child behaviour was much improved after parents had participated on the parent course and
teachers reported some positive outcomes for children in their learning and behaviour at school.

Further Information - Wendy Gledhill, Project Manager (2474835) is happy to
provide any further information and details.
Nov.07

Page 115



Page 116



Every Child Matters

Leeds children and
young people’s
participation strategy
2007

Children Leeds

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -1-
Page 117



Foreword

Making sure that every child can get involved in shaping the services that they use is
vitally important. It forms a central theme of our Children and Young People's plan as
it helps deliver effective and personalised services. It also ensures that each and
every child makes the most of their talents, fulfils their potential and develops their
confidence.

Leeds has an abundance of children’s centres, schools, services, organisations,
partnerships, projects and activities that do just that. The list is endless. But we have
made a good start, as you will see in appendix 1!

This strategy shows the commitment to take our success in the participation of
children and young people to the next level. For the first time it brings together in a
single approach how we will work as a partnership to plan, deliver and improve the
participation of children and young people in the services that matter to them.

We asked children and young people how they would know if we had succeeded in
involving them. One young person told us that “it would look like heaven and every
one would be more friendly."

We couldn’t agree more.

Lead executive member for children’s services Director of children’s services
Councillor Richard Brett Rosemary Archer
Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -2-

Page 118



Contents

Leeds children and young people’s participation strategy 2007
Aims

Principles

Building a culture of participation: rationale and benefits

How do organisations benefit from children and young people’s
participation?

How do children and young people benefit from participation?
Levels of participation

Priorities for Leeds

How will we know if the strategy is working? Children and young
people’s views

Appendix 1 Resources to support Participation
Appendix 2 Participation Model
Appendix 3 Outline Implementation Plan

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007
Page 119

No oo b hAh A

N

31
32



Leeds children and young people’s participation strategy 2007

Who is the strategy for?

This strategy affects us all. We want to work together with our children and young
people to help them to achieve the outcomes that they want for themselves. The
strategy covers all children and young people aged 0-19 years, plus some young
people with additional needs up to the age of 25.

What do we mean by participation?
Participation means that children and young people have an ongoing influence over
decisions and actions, not just that they are present.

Aims

The aims of the strategy are:

¢ to provide a framework for all organisations across the Children Leeds Partnership
to assist them in involving children and young people in the design, delivery and
review of the services that affect them.

¢ to provide a mechanism for establishing and embedding good participatory
practice in Leeds.

¢ to set out the range of activities underway in Leeds and the support available.

Principles

The Leeds Charter for the Participation of Children and Young People was adopted

in 2002. lts five key principles underpin this strategy. They are that we will ensure

that:

1. we have positive attitudes towards all children and young people.

2. we are accessible to all children and young people.

3. across the Children Leeds Partnership we have the appropriate resources to
support the participation of children and young people.

4. our information will inform and involve all children and young people.

5. we have the skills to enable all children and young people’s participation and will
support them to develop skills to participate.

Building a culture of participation: rationale and benefits

The rationale

The UK government has made its commitment to children and young people’s

participation clear:

“The Government wants children and young people to have more opportunities
to get involved in the design, provision and evaluation of policies and services

that affect them or which they use”.

(Children and Young People’s Unit 2001).

Locally, we want our children and young people to be happy, health, safe, achieving
and free from the effects of poverty. We want them to feel lucky they grew up in
Leeds. Across the children’s trust arrangements our approach is based on working
in partnership, developing participation, personalising services and preventing
difficulties from occurring or worsening whenever possible. We will only achieve this
with children and young people’s help.

There are now many requirements for organisations to involve children and young
people, including Article 12 of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, National

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -4 -
Page 120



Service Framework for Children’s and Maternity Services 2004, Every Child Matters
and the Children Act 2004 and Youth Matters 2006.

How do organisations benefit from children and young people’s participation?
Organisations that involve children and young people:

meet legal requirements and inspection regimes.

commission services more effectively.

have confidence that they are meeting service standards and the needs of
children and young people.

develop a more responsive ethos that leads to services that are valued by the
whole community.

can use their research and analysis to enable services to develop efficiently, and
to provide useful evidence for funding applications, etc.

recognise and improve the status of children and young people as valued
members of their community.

enable children and young people’s participation in wider society, both now and in
the future.

How do children and young people benefit from participation?
Through participation, children and young people:

have influence, and it is recognised and valued.

know that they have a right to influence, under the UN Convention on the Rights of
the Child.

have services that meet their needs.

are active partners in the planning, development, delivery and evaluation of
services.

are recognised as valuable within their communities.

are equipped with knowledge, skills and understanding to have an active part in
wider society, both now and in the future.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -5-

Page 121



Levels of participation

There are 5 different levels of participation, appropriate for different situations. These
are informing, leading, partnership, influence and consultation.

Levels of Participation: getting it right.

e what is the objective?

e what are the abilities and
understanding of the children and
young people?

e what element of participation do the

children and vouna peobole choose?

Informing
Children and young

people are fully informed
about decisions that have
or are to be made and
are aware that their
involvement in the
process is welcomed

Consultation
Children and
young peoples
views are sought
and taken into
account

Leading
Children and young

people make

autonomous , self
governing decisions with
the appropriate support

Influence
Children and young
people are involved
and have an
influence on the
decision making
process

Partnership
Children, young
people and adults
share power and
responsibility for
decision making

Adapted from Building a culture of participation, National Children’s Bureau.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -6 -
Page 122



Priorities for Leeds

In implementing this strategy, the priorities for Leeds are:

e embedding the Hear by Right standards across Children Leeds.

¢ using the Participation Evaluation Tool across Children Leeds for service reviews
and planning.

¢ ensuring that staff are trained appropriately in children and young people’s
participation.

e developing robust and rigorous processes for ensuring compliance with the
Participation Strategy.

¢ building children and young people’s participation into the developing
commissioning processes for Children Leeds.

The resources available to support this work are set out in Appendix 1.
Outline Implementation Plan: Appendix 2.

How will we know if the strategy is working?: Children and young people’s
views

If Leeds listens and works with children and young people now:

Life wouldn’t be perfect, but it would be fairer.

The future would be a better place for children and young people in Leeds.

Not having money wouldn’t be such a problem for families.

Children and young people would be safer and welcome on the streets.

Children and young people would make more of a contribution.

It would look like heaven and every one would be more friendly.

There’d be colour everywhere.

Schools would be flexible and let you also learn things that you identify as

important to you like driving skills, music, story telling, film making, how to

work as a team, what’s the best way to communicate and work with people to

get what you want and help others. We would learn more.

e There would be more opportunities for children and young people and they

would know about them.

We would have a theme park in Leeds.

We would have a water park with water slides and stuff.

Health care would be better and we’d get free glasses.

There would be no racists.

More free leisure facilities and youth clubs; free sports for all races and that

would help solve obesity.

Everyone would have access to a career, not just job.

e Everyone would have shelter, food and money to meet their minimum needs.

e There would be more respect for authority’ because they would respect us;
children and young people would have more respect.

e Top class teachers. Children and young people would be able to have a say in

who was employed to be a teacher and what was in their job description.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -7 -
Page 123



Resources to support Participation Appendix 1

Leeds has a wide range of activities and providers to ensure that children and young
people can access participation activities, have their say and influence their services
and their communities. We acknowledge that not all the activity is described here but
hope that it gives some idea of the scope and the framework it all operates within.

The National Youth Agency is currently setting up a pilot programme with Children
Leeds to establish the Hear By Right Standards across the City; measuring
effectiveness and impact through the Participation Evaluation Tool. Children, young
people and service providers have agreed a set of priorities against the standards.
The result will be a National Standards Framework for participation in Leeds against
which we can measure the impact of the participation of children and young people
whilst demonstrating the processes and methods used through the Participation
Evaluation Tool.

Hear by Right (Self Assessment Participation Standards Framework)

Hear by Right is a tried and tested national standards framework for organisations
across the statutory and voluntary sectors to assess and improve practice and policy
on the active involvement of children and young people.

The standards framework in Hear by Right is based on the Seven S model of
organisational change: Shared values; Strategy; Structures; Systems; Staff; Skills
and knowledge and Style of leadership. It relies on self-assessment, divided into
three levels of 'emerging', 'established' and 'advanced’, with each level building on the
last. This ensures that young people's involvement is built in and not just bolted on.

Visit the website http://www.nya.org.uk/hearbyright: to find organisational profiles,

case studies, mapping and planning tools, ‘What’'s Changed’ tools and downloads
providing ideas, useful templates and evidence of young people’s involvement and
engagement.

PET (Self Assessment Participation Evaluation Tool)
The Participation Evaluation Tool has been developed in Leeds to support services
and schemes of work that encourage and enable children and young people not only
to access services but have involvement in the policies, planning and decision
making processes that shape them. The PET lays down clear principles and
standards about what constitutes good practice in participation issues. PET is a self
assessment tool which will help you to:

¢ |dentify and record the types of participatory work your current service carries

out.
¢ |dentify your development priorities and put these into action plans.
e Evaluate the level of participation your service is working towards.

For more information please contact Charlee/Jo at the Project on 0113 3070905

At a strategic level, Leeds has two models currently operating to ensure that we can
develop appropriate conduits for a “voice” for children and young people that can
inform, influence and hold service providers to account. Whilst other participation
initiatives in the City also operate at a city wide and even national level, the Youth
Council and ROAR provide a framework for bringing children and young people from
schools and across all of those initiatives together to look at specific issues.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -8-
Page 124



Leeds Youth Council / Youth Parliament

The Leeds Youth Council is an elected body representing young people of high
school age from all over the city. Each high school, and currently one college, holds
annual elections in October to elect two Leeds Youth Councillors who hold office for
one year.

The Youth Council began in 2003. Currently 25 high schools in Leeds send
representatives bringing the Youth Council membership to fifty.

The key aims of the Leeds Youth Council are to:

e be the elected voice of young people in Leeds.

e improve life for young people; and

¢ make sure that Leeds City Council and other decision making bodies take into
account the views of young people when making decisions that affect us all.

Every year the Leeds Youth Council elects four of its members to serve as Members
of the UK Youth Parliament.

Leeds Youth Councillors have produced a manifesto 2005-2008 which outlines the
LYC'’s priorities. The Youth Council is key to the development of the democratic
process for young people’s voices in Leeds. Its does this through developing a
feedback mechanism through school councils, running scrutiny panels, engaging with
consultation work, and leading on the youth opportunity and youth capital fund. The
Youth Council often works in partnership with ROAR initiatives.

LYC has seven working groups: five reflect the Every Child Matters Outcomes and in
addition there is a Transport Group and Fair Trade Group.

Please contact: Diane Whiteley-McLean or Lesley Reed, Voice and Influence Team,
Leeds Youth Council, The Youth Service, East Leeds Family Learning Centre,
Brooklands View, Seacroft, Leeds LS14 6SA Tel: 0113 224 3331

www.leedsyouthcouncil.com

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -9-
Page 125



ROAR: Reach Out And Reconnect

ROAR is a new city wide partnership group for children and young people to work at
a strategic level in the planning and development of services for children and young
people. In September 2005 Participants aged 8 to 19, from a host of different
programmes including; YSHAG, Leeds Youth Council, The Crew, Young Peepz,
Leeds Children’s Rights and Youth on Health came together for the first time to
develop ‘Reach Out and Re-connect’ or R.O.A.R. Over twenty children and young
people designed, planned and delivered a citywide consultation event which reached
300 children and young people and a Young Delegate event to feedback their
findings directly to members of Senior Management and Local Councillors.

ROAR is not a fixed group of children and young people, but a forum that invites
participants from participation and involvement initiatives to work with other children
and young people to inform and influence both the planning, development and
delivery of services and increase the participation of children and young people. It
also has a direct membership of over 600 children and young people who are
informed of opportunities through a newsletter. Children and young people can
participate to a level that meets their needs and interests; they can take part in as
much or as little activity as they choose.

ROAR aims to:
e Provide opportunities for children and young people to participate at a
strategic level, specifically those who are often excluded.
e Enable children and young people to develop participation initiatives at both a
city wide and wedge level as equal partners in the Children Leeds partnership.
e To promote children and young people as active participants engaged in
dialogue and joint action with other Children Leeds partners.

In its first year ROAR planned and developed consultation and Young Delegates’
events, formed part of the recruitment process for key posts in Children and Young
People’s Services, worked with services to develop strategies, took part in Scrutiny
Panels with Councillors looking at specific issues and worked with the Leeds Youth
Council on the Youth Opportunity/ Capital Fund.

For more information about ROAR please contact Jo Price The Project, 180,
Chapeltown Road, Leeds, LS7 4HP theproject1@btconnect.com, Tel: 0113 3070905.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -10 -
Page 126



In order to support the participation of children and young people, Leeds has two
groups of adults who work with them at a strategic and operational level.

The Strategic Participation Group

The St

rategic Participation group works alongside others on the Children Leeds

partnership to ensure that services ask children and young people, hear what they
have to say and act with them to improve outcomes for children and young people in

Leeds.

What does the group want to achieve?

To influence strategy through active involvement of children and young people
in obtaining their views and opinions.

To ensure that services and organisations hear and respond to the voices of
children and young people.

To monitor and measure the performance of partners in terms of participation
and consultation across the city.

To embed the culture of participation through the Children Leeds partnership
and associated key agencies.

How is it going to do it?

To challenge the planning mechanisms of services that currently do not
involve children and young people.

To be the communication channel between the strategy/policy makers.
Share knowledge and promote best practice at all times.

To involve children and young people and ensure two-way communication.
Promote the values and principles of participation, as out lined in the Leeds
charter for the participation of children and young people and monitor how
they are implemented.

To provide and support the work of the Children and Young people
Involvement Advocates (CIA’s).

Who are the members?
Champions for participation representing a wide range of services, sectors and
organisations.

We try

to have effective and appropriate representation from key agencies, with an

even balance of both the statutory and the voluntary sectors and a distinct
contribution from partnership organisations. These key areas include Wedge
representation, Health, Education, Environment, Community Safety, Youth Service,
Early Years, Social Services and organisations from the voluntary sector that reflect
the range of participation work in the city.

Membership: to be confirmed.

Leeds

Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -11 -
Page 127



The role of the Children and Young People’s Involvement Advocate. (City Wide)

To champion children and young people’s participation in the children’s trust
arrangements for Leeds, monitoring and advocating for the involvement and
participation of children and young people at all levels of service design, delivery and
review.

Key Activities

1. To sit on Children Leeds partnership as CIA.

2. To be a critical friend to Children Leeds in relation to children and young people’s
participation in all aspects of the children’s trust arrangements.

3. To work to ensure that Children Leeds acknowledges the reality of children and

young people’s involvement and to encourage and advocate for progress.

To hold Children Leeds accountable to the children’s charter of participation.

To sit on the strategic participation group.

To encourage the best use of resources for children and young people’s

participation.

o s

City Wide CIA: Deborah Howe theproject.dh@btconnect.com

The Role of the Children and Young People’s Involvement Advocate. (Wedge
Partnerships).

The Children Leeds Partnerships in each wedge each have a CIA to champion the
development of participation and involvement. The role would reflect that of the city
wide CIA but with specific reference to their wedge.

Key Activities

1. To sit on wedge Children Leeds partnership as CIA.

2. To be a critical friend to the wedge partnership in relation to children and young
people’s participation e.g. child centred planning etc.

3. To attend the participation sub group at wedge level and advise on the
development, implementation and monitoring of the participation plan.

4. To work to ensure that the wedge partnership acknowledges the reality of children
and young people’s involvement and to encourage and advocate for progress.

5. To hold the wedge partnership accountable to the charter for the participation of
children and young people and the wedge partnership plan for participation.

6. To attend the strategic participation group.

7. To encourage the best use of resources in the wedge for children and young
people’s participation.

Children Leeds West CIA: Diane Law diane@barca-leeds.org

Children Leeds East CIA: Pat Brooke pat.brooke@leeds.gov.uk
Children Leeds South CIA: Flavia Docherty info@cupboard.org.uk

Children Leeds North West: Emma Manners  youthpoint@cardigancentre.org.uk
Children Leeds North East: John Bosworth john.bosworth@leeds.gov.uk

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -12 -
Page 128



Leeds Participation Team

The Leeds Participation Team is an essential link in the participation and
involvement chain. It is a forum where practitioners come together to both influence
and support the work of the strategic participation group, looking at the practical
application of strategic decisions, whilst influencing the direction of those decisions. It
is a cross sector group of professionals who have clear operational responsibility for
the development and delivery of participation within their organisations, departments
or networks.

The Team aims to:

¢ |dentify and develop guidelines in relation to participation in the context of the
city and Children Leeds.

e Develop and deliver a range of appropriate training that can be delivered by
members of the partnership.

e Develop pathways for an open two way dialogue with Children Leeds including
the wedge based partnerships.

e Provide support and information to other children and young people’s
services.

¢ |dentify and share positive experience and practice.

e Develop the capacity for partnership working including projects, training and
dissemination events.

Another essential link is with ROAR; as practitioners they are able not only to
support members of their groups to be involved, but to work together to support the
activities of ROAR.

Current members of the LPT describe what they do below, and indicate the wide
range of activity currently in Leeds. As the membership is growing, this range of
activities will inevitably develop;

Name: Diane Law

Job Title: Youth Work Manager
Organisation: BARCA-Leeds

Tel: 0113 2209783

Email: diane@barca-leeds.org
Fax: 0113 2565884

| work for BARCA, a community based organisation that delivers a range of services
and opportunities for children, young people and adults. These range from youth
work provision, Youth Bank, community development with learning opportunities for
all, working with drug users and those affected by drug use to promoting and
developing safe play for children.

The Youth Work Team upholds the right of young people to participate in decisions
about the services on offer that affect them:

e By encouraging and supporting the involvement of young people in the planning,
delivery and evaluation of all our services.

e Developing and supporting young people’s involvement in projects, processes
and partnerships that help them to contribute at all levels in community, civic and
democratic life in the city.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -13 -
Page 129



Who are the young people you work with?
Any young people across West Leeds aged 5-19 years.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

e Enabling young people in West Leeds to participate in the work of all providers
who develop, plan and deliver services that affect their lives.

e Working for a common youth strategy for BARCA Leeds with youth participation
at its core.

e Working with partner agencies and young people themselves to bring in
resources, facilities, service improvements, and opportunities for young people in
the area.

How do you work with them?
On a one-to-one basis and in small group work.

Where do you work with them?

Centre based Fairfield, Bramley & Sandford community Centres and 277 Upper
Town Street (our info space)

Detached and mobile provision, Intake High & Valley View Primary Schools.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -14 -
Page 130



Name: Flavia Docherty

Job Title: Coordinator
Organisation: The Cupboard

Tel: 0113 2762720

Email: info@cupboard.org.uk
Fax: 0113 2776868

The Cupboard is the young people’s part of South Leeds Health for All. (SLHFA) is a
community health development organisation working in partnership with communities in
South Leeds to improve health and enhance people’s lives. The organization was
established in 1991 to work alongside communities, enabling them to identify health
needs and take action to meet them. The organization has a strong track record working
with a wide range of people from babies to the elderly. The Cupboard has gained
national recognition for its participation work

Who are the young people you work with?

We work with a wide range of young people (aged 13-19yrs) from South Leeds.
These include traveller families, young people who have recently settled in the
country, young people with learning difficulties, young people who are homeless,
young people excluded from school or at risk of exclusion, young people who witness
domestic violence, young parents and young women at risk of pregnancy, young
people in care and care leavers and young people who are NEET (not in education,
employment or training).

What are you aiming to achieve with them?
Our overall aim is to improve the health and well-being of young people, within South
Leeds. An integral part of this is ensuring that young people have the voice and tools
to bring about real change in the their services.

We identify and research young people’s health needs within South Leeds in
partnership with them through a range of different approaches. We are part of the
national Young Researchers network. Whilst developing support work with vulnerable
young people in response to their health needs, we support their participation in
shaping health services. Our peer education programme underpins both the work of
the Cupboard and contributes to the wider organization with young people trained in
peer support/education to deliver on our programmes. We work with our young
people to build links and research good practice locally, regionally and nationally.

How do you work with them?
The Cupboard Project offers a wide of different approaches to meet the needs of
young people and to give them different access points. A vital element of our work is
young people’s participation. Young people are involved on our steering group; we
run a peer education project; and we consult young people on their views about
issues and services that affect them. This work is done within the context of:
e 1-2-1 support — practical and emotional support on a one to one basis. This
ranges from a one off chat to ongoing support.
e Group work — a range of small targeted groups in response to young people’s
expressed needs.
e Drop-in — time and space where young people can come for information and
support on a range of health issues. We also offer C Card Scheme, sexual
health information and free pregnancy testing.

Where do you work with them?
In a variety of venues in South Leeds

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -15-
Page 131



Name: Hannah Lamplugh

Job Title: Youth Participation Officer — Healthy Schools
Organisation: Education Leeds

Tel: 0113 2144073

Mobile: 07891 279304

Email: hannah.lamplugh@educationleeds.co.uk
Fax: 0113 2144083

| am the youth participation officer based within the Leeds Healthy Schools and
Wellbeing Programme (LHSWP). | am part of a wider team that offers a wide range
of resources to schools that promote 'Wellbeing'. At the centre of the programme is
"The Leeds Healthy School and Wellbeing Standard'. This provides schools with a
self-evaluation tool for Every Child Matters (ECM) outcomes and routes to achieving
national and (Leeds) advanced healthy school status. The programme uses a whole
school, participative approach. The standard helps schools to define their ethical
stance, and make explicit the links between the curriculum, mental health, physical
health and the environment in the context of a local and global community. The
LHSWP works in partnership with a range of voluntary, statutory and private
organisations to promote the health and wellbeing of children, young people and
families in Leeds.

The LHSWP employs staff with dedicated time to promote participation: Annie
Mitchell is the Senior Consultant for PSHE and Participation and Alison Yates is the
Be healthy/Be safe challenge coordinator. In addition, at least 9 other members of
the wider LHSWP team promote and evaluate the provision for participation in
schools and beyond.

Our current work includes:

e External assessment of school provision of participation (standard 11 with sub
criteria) as a requirement for the Leeds National and Advanced Healthy
School Standard. The criteria reflect and promote the principles of the Leeds
participation charter, participation evaluation tool and Hear By Right.

e Training and support for school senior management, relevant staff and young
people to promote participation and effective school councils.

e Support with Youth Council and links with schools.

¢ Investors in Pupils (IIP); a quality award recognising the achievement of whole
schools or class groups of pupils and involves children and young people
taking a lead in understanding their role in schools in relation to learning,
behaviour, attendance, classroom management and induction. All pupils and
supporting adults are involved in the process, which creates a team ethos and
leads to pupils feeling empowered, motivated and can contribute to raising
achievement and attendance.

e Be Healthy-Stay Safe challenge (further details below).

e Sustainable Schools Summit and Young People’s forum.

e Support the Project with Youth on Health meetings (all team members) and
promote their work with schools.

e Mayor for the Day.

Who are the young people you work with?

Specific groups | regularly support include are the Leeds Youth Council (LYC), Be
Healthy! Young People’s Planning Group and students involved with the yearly
‘Mayor for the Day’.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -16 -
Page 132



| can potentially work with any child or young person attending school in Leeds (and
West Yorkshire for IIP). | often attend school council meetings, run training for school
councils, Investors in Pupils support sessions and assessment days and work with
schools as part of LHSP.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

My role with the LYC and Be Healthy! Group involves facilitating opportunities for
young people to come together, discuss issues that affect their lives and support
them in working together to plan and take action to affect behaviour change in their
own lives, the lives of others and the schools and communities they live in.

The aim of running training for children, young people and staff is to provide
information, facilitate discussion and encourage schools to develop new ideas and
strategies for increasing participation of children and young people in all aspects of
school life. Through supporting schools to achieve ‘Investors in Pupils’ and providing
training on effective school councils and participation, schools are encouraged to
listen to their students more, value their opinions and ideas and give them some
control over their learning and daily aspects of school life e.g. uniform, school policies
etc.

Mayor for the Day promotes high school students’ understanding of democracy and
the election process. The aim is that young people will take greater interest in politics
and the issues that affect their lives, school and community and develop strategies to
address these issues. The initiative hopes to encourage more young people to vote
when they turn 18.

The LHSP also engages with young people through school assessments (IIP and
Healthy Schools) consultations, involving young people in the planning and delivery
of events. This is to ensure young people’s views and feedback to guide the work
that we do as a service.

How do you work with them?

e | work with LYC on a regular basis and support the ‘Making a Positive
Contribution’ working group which meets every six weeks.

e The Be Healthy! Young People’s Planning Group has met on a regular basis.
The group was involved in problem solving, writing funding bids, writing
articles and letters, running launch events for schools, working with health
professionals and partner organisations e.g. Radio Aire to plan the campaign,
organising the challenge in their schools and running the celebration event.

e Other direct work with children and young people e.g. Investors in Pupils
sessions or school council training involves planning the session with the
teacher and students in advance and running the session in school.

Where do you work with them?

LYC - The Civic Hall, LYC Office, schools, Residentials, Visits and Trips in a variety
of settings

Be Healthy! Group - The Project, West Yorkshire Playhouse, Schools, Host Media
Centre, site visits e.g. Leeds Metropolitan University

Mayor for the Day - Schools, The Civic Hall

Investors in Pupils - Schools, training and conference venues across West
Yorkshire

School Council — Schools

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -17 -
Page 133



Name: Josie Warwick

Job Title: Customer Relations Manager
Organisation: Education Leeds

Tel: 0113 2475690

Email: josie.warwick@educationleeds.co.uk
Fax: 0113 2243998

| work for Education Leeds. It is responsible for providing all education support
services that relate to children and young people of statutory school age.

Who are the young people you work with?
Children and young people in education up to 16 years old (19 years old with special
educational needs).

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

To develop communication and engagement strategies that can contribute to
improve learning and learning environments. This year we have objectives to
engage more children and young people in recruitment and selection and to improve
our performance in the “Every Child Matters” Viewpoint survey so that all children
and young people say that they have very good or good opportunities to make
changes in the way the school is run.

How do you work with them?

We work in partnership with teachers and staff to increase skills and knowledge in
schools. We support them in organising activities in and out of school. We also have
contact with parents and carers and we have involved some children and young
people in recruitment.

Where do you work with them?
Mostly in schools.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -18 -
Page 134



Name: Jo Price

Job Title: Programme Coordinator
Organisation: 5.2.13 Crew

Tel: 0113 3070905

Email: theproject.jp@btconnect.com
Fax: 0113 3070906

The 5.2.13 Crew is part of the participation programme of Leeds Children’s Fund.
Children have direct membership of the 5.2.13 Crew and receive the 5.2.13
Magazine four times a year as well as information about participation opportunities
that they can engage with. 5.2.13 Crew currently has over 2,000 members.

Who are the young people you work with?
We recruit through the 5.2.13 Crew membership for all Crew activities and work in
schools to extend the access to the 5.2.13 Magazine. The age range is 5 -13yrs.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

We provide a range of different opportunities that enable children to explore different
issues that affect them and other children, identify what they want to say and put their
“voice” into action.

The different programmes include:

5.2.13 Magazine: an editorial group of between 20-30 children who meet on a regular
basis to plan, design, edit and publish a magazine four times a year.

Crew on Move: an outreach programme that takes the magazine out to schools and
specific groups to extend the contribution to the magazine.

Events Crew: at different times groups of children come together to plan and deliver
young delegates events around different themes and organise events such at the
Leeds Children’s Fund Celebration.

Crew on the Loose: Groups of children visit different cultural events and places such
as museums, art galleries and parks to find out what’s available for them and record
their experiences in the 5.2.13 magazine.

How do you work with them?
Through a range of different activities that engage the children in planning what they
are going to do, what they have to say and how they are going to do it.

Where do you work with them?
At West Yorkshire Playhouse, in schools and at their service provision.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -19 -
Page 135



Name: Georgia Cooper

Job Title: Managing Director

Organisation: Getaway Girls

Tel: 0113 240 5894

Email: georgia.cooper@getawaygirls.co.uk
Fax: 0113 249 6746

Getaway girls offer various youth work programmes across the city of Leeds These
currently include: a pregnancy, parenting and prevention programme, a sports and
outdoor activity programme, a black and mixed heritage group work programme and
a programme for young women 13-19 to encourage them to re-engage with
education, work or training.

We are also able to offer other activities for young men, mixed groups and adults
through our social enterprise programme.

Who are the young people you work with?
Young women between the ages of 12 and 24 across Leeds. We have current
priorities to work with following groups:
e Pregnant or at risk of early pregnancy (must be under 19).
Black or of Mixed Heritage (12-24).
Those currently not engaged in sport or outdoor activities (12-24).
At risk of exclusion or excluded from school (13-19).
In care or are carers themselves (13-19).

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

Self development in many forms:

Increased confidence, increased ability to manage own behaviour, increased self
awareness, increased self esteem, an opportunity to enjoy themselves, an
opportunity to take controlled risks in a safe environment, opportunities to get
involved in physical activity, opportunity to look at own and other cultures.

An integral part of the above is developing their skills and opportunities to influence
decision making processes both at Getaway girls and with other services.

How do you work with them?

Through group work, individual support and offering fun activities. We have a users’
forum with members drawn from across the projects. This group contributes and
influences the services Getaway girls offer and has recently been successful in
raising funds to refurbish the building. They have recently won a national award and
have made a DVD looking at young people and money choices. Other examples
include regular sessions with young mums looking at the services provided for them
and the “Cultivate” magazine written and designed by a group of young black and
mixed heritage young people.

Where do you work with them?
At our base in Harehills, in schools, in other youth work settings, in the outdoors, and
on the sports field, anywhere young people choose to be.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 - 20 -
Page 136



Name: Liz Armitage

Job Title: Development Adviser
Organisation: igen

Tel: 0113 226 2164

Email: liz.armitage@leedscareers.co.uk
Fax: 0113 225 9090

What does your organisation/service do?

The Leeds Careers division of igen provides information, advice and guidance, and
transition support to young people aged 13-19 (up to 25 with learning difficulties or
disabilities) as part of the Connexions service in Leeds. Services are provided in
secondary schools and colleges, SILCs, the Connexions Centre and in community
locations across the city. Connexions Personal Advisers (PAs) provide support to
young people according to their level of need and specialist PAs work intensively with
targeted groups of young people such as teenage parents, young offenders and
those leaving care.

Who are the young people you work with?

| co-ordinate the engagement and involvement of young people in the design,
delivery, evaluation and governance of services. The young people | work with can
be any age within the range above, from any part of Leeds. The numbers of young
people involved and their ages, ethnicity, gender etc continually changes over the
year as young people leave groups and different young people join. At any one time
around 40 young people are actively involved.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?
e The development of young people’s skills in and knowledge and
understanding of the services igen delivers.
e Their influence upon the development of existing and new services.

How do you work with them?

Young people are involved in a variety of ways and in many different projects. They
can be involved in formal sit-down meetings, selection interviews for new staff, and
also in more fun and creative ways — getting involved in the redesign of our website
or publications or in organising events for other young people. Young people are
nearly always involved in group sessions with other young people but individual
young people can be involved on their own with adults.

Where do you work with them?
| usually work with young people at No 1 Eastgate — which is where Leeds Careers is
based and also where the main city centre Connexions Centre is located.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -21-
Page 137



Name: Kerry Roling

Job Title: Participation and Communication Worker
Organisation: Leeds Children and Young People’s Social Care
Tel: 0113 2474693

Email: kerry.roling@leeds.gov.uk

| work within Children and Young People’s Social Care. Within my organisation |
work with professionals who work either on a regular basis (within respite and
residential units) or on a less frequent basis (social workers, social work assistants
and social work students) with disabled children and those with communication
impairments. | support and offer advice to the professionals regarding communication
and participation particularly in the assessment and review process as well as day to
day living within respite and residential units. This can be in general terms or on a
more individual basis for specific cases. | also develop and deliver training around
communication and participation with this group of children and young people.

| am developing a group where disabled children and young people can meet to talk
about issues that affect them. | am also hoping this group will enable disabled
children and young people to participate in making decisions that affect them and
develop skills that will enable them to participate. We intend to make links with more
mainstream participation groups across the city and provide disabled children and
young people with the confidence and skill to participate in these groups. | am
currently developing this group with the support of Breeze International Youth and
The Project and hope to support the group to access funding which would enable the
group to continue to run. More information regarding this group is available on
request.

Who are the young people you work with?
Disabled children and young people.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?
To develop their participation in decision making regarding their life.

How do you work with them?

Primarily | work with other staff working with the children and young people.
Occasionally | will meet with certain children at respite or residential settings, school
or home to undertake direct work with them. | also aim to meet with children and
young people via an empowerment group which will meet once a month.

Where do you work with them?
Respite and residential settings, school or home. Also the empowerment group
meets at Leeds Trinity and All Saints college.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -22 -
Page 138



Name: Fiona Blair

Job Title: Project Worker (children’s rights and advocacy)
Organisation: Leeds Children’s Rights Service

Tel: (0113) 394 4748

Email: fiona.blair@nch.org.uk

Fax: (0113) 234 3560

Leeds Children’s Rights Service is the children’s rights and advocacy service for
children and young people looked after by Leeds Social Care (plus care leavers up to
the age of 25).

Who are the young people you work with?

Looked after children and young people (including those in residential and foster
care) and care leavers in Leeds (aged 25 and under), plus young people placed out
of authority by Leeds Social Care.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

To provide a service to young people where there are concerns regarding their rights.
This includes a variety of methods including individual and/or group advocacy and
the promotion of children’s rights.

To ensure that Leeds looked after children, young people and care leavers are
informed of their rights, as embodied in the Children Act 1989 and the UN
Convention on the Rights of the Child and other relevant legislation.

To promote and increase active participation of children and young people in respect
of Social Care provision. A range of methods and forums is used to achieve this aim.
To ensure children and young people are actively involved in decision making in a
participatory way.

To influence the development of Social Care practice and procedures in respect of
services provided to all looked after children and young people and care leavers.

To raise awareness in Leeds City Council and elsewhere about issues surrounding
corporate parenting and children’s rights and how they are affected by local
government policies and procedures.

How do you work with them?
Our work includes:
e Provision of individual and group advocacy for children and young people
in care and care leavers (including advocacy in the complaints procedure
and in child care reviews).

e Young People’s Advisory Panel.
e The Flash magazine (produced in partnership with young people).
e In-care groups and events.
e Drama projects.
e Training young people as trainers for ‘Total Respect’ and delivering the
training in Leeds.
e Visiting children’s homes in Leeds.
e Provision of rights information.
e Attending national conferences alongside young people.
¢ Facilitating young people’s participation in Leeds.
Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -23-

Page 139



¢ Facilitating consultations with young people, locally and nationally (e.g.
Care Matters consultation).

¢ Involving young people in the running of the Children’s Rights Service.

e Campaigning on children’s rights issues.

Where do you work with them?

Advocacy: venue chosen by young person (for example, Leeds Children’s Rights
Service young people’s room, children’s home, foster placement, school, Social Care
office).

Groups and events: Leeds Children’s Rights Service young people’s room and
occasionally in external venues.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -24 -
Page 140



Name: Lizzie Neill

Job Title: Participation and Development Coordinator
Organisation: The Market Place project for young people
Tel: 0113 2461659

Email: liz.themarketplace@virgin.net

The Market Place provides support, information and counselling for young people in
Leeds 13-25. Itis a city wide provision, based within the city centre taking a young-
person-centred approach. | work within the Participation and Involvement project
within The Market Place which commenced April 2007.

Who are the young people you work with?

Any young person between 13 and 25 living in or around Leeds — who defines
themself as needing support.

The Participation and Involvement project works with any of these current (or past)
service users within the age range who want to get involved in service development.
A chunk of this work is running a participation group called HYPE (named by its
members) standing for Helping Young People through Experience.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

There are two main objectives of the HYPE participation group.

The first is to provide service users with a space where they can grow and learn in a
empowering, supportive environment, to experience being part of a group, grow in
confidence, share their thoughts and opinions, debate and learn effective ways of
communicating and reaching decisions.

The second objective is to seek a young person’s perspective and take on board the
experience of the service user when planning and developing services — a fantastic
resource that helps the organisation (and sometimes outside parties) keep on track
with what young people really want from their support services.

We have a whole range of systems in place at The Market Place for getting feedback
from service users help to feed into the organisation in terms of service development
and delivery so that anyone who uses services at The Market Place can have an
impact regardless of whether they want to join a group. Young people have also
participated in the recruitment of staff.

How do you work with them?

The HYPE participation group meets regularly and the sessions are facilitated by
myself and another member of staff. The members receive support to get involved,
as well as high street vouchers to acknowledge their commitment. We try to provide
creative tools to enable communication and to engage the young people in activities.
As far as possible the content of the sessions is steered by its members. Relevant
information from the HYPE group is fed back through the staff team and the board of
directors (and sometimes other stakeholders) so that it can impact on service
development.

Where do you work with them?
Currently at 28, Kirkgate at The Market Place but the organisation is soon to be hiring
a space in a second building on Lower Briggate (also city centre).

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -25-
Page 141



Name: Charlee Bewsher

Job Title: Programme Coordinator

Organisation: theProject, West Yorkshire Youth Association
Tel: 0113 3070905

Email: theproject.cb@btconnect .com

Fax: 0113 3070906

The Project is a department of West Yorkshire Youth Association, a regional charity
that provides a range of different services for young people across West Yorkshire.
The project provides a range of different opportunities for children and young people
to explore issues in their lives; inform and work with service provider to bring about
changes that will result in positive outcomes for them and others. The majority of our
work is in partnership with other service providers.

Who are the young people you work with?

We work with children and young people from across the city, in locality based,
service focused and city wide initiatives. Our programmes are inclusive; through
targeted provision or recruitment to programmes that bring together children and
young people from diverse backgrounds and circumstances.

The age range is 5-19yrs, with older young people involved as volunteers, who with
training help run groups.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

We aim to work in partnership with children and young people. We provide a range of
different opportunities that enable them to explore their lives and others, identify what
they want to say and then to have a voice on matters that concern them. We also
work with them and other service providers to put their “voice” into action and bring
about change for them and others.

An integral part of the process for the young people is activities that raise their
confidence, self esteem and communication skills. They also develop ways of
working with others and specific skills related to the programmes; arts, drama, film,
creative writing, editing etc.

How do you work with them?

Our team of youth workers has a range of skills to engage with young people, from
youth work, to film making, magazine, drama, dance, music, photography and
graphics. Children and young people may just engage with these as part of the
process to explore their lives and issues or that may produce a product such as a
magazine, DVD, banners, performance and presentations. They use them as
powerful platforms to present to service providers, elected members, parents and
carers and other children and young people and engage them in further dialogue and
action.

Where do you work with them?
Across the city in a variety of different venues, within their service’s provision,
schools, in parks, fields, streets; wherever it is most appropriate for them.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 - 26 -
Page 142



Name: Diane Whiteley — McClean/Lesley Reed

Job Title: Senior Youth worker

Organisation: Voice and Influence Team

Tel: 0113 224 3331/3130

Email: diane.whiteley-mclean@leeds.gov.uk
lesley.reed@leeds.gov.uk

Fax: 0113 2243173

The Youth Service provides a range of services across Leeds, ranging from local
youth centres, detached youth workers, mobile provision, residential courses at Herd
Farm, outdoor activities at the Lazer Centre, Duke of Edinburgh Awards to specialist
provision in health, information, advice and guidance. The Voice and Influence team
is part of that specialist provision.

Who are the young people you work with?

We work with young people aged13 to18 years from across Leeds. These are
elected to the Leeds Youth Council in a democratic process that is open to all high
schools in Leeds during Local Democracy week. If the young person is not a member
of their school council they are co-opted on to ensure there is a platform for two way
communication and dialogue. We also support Youth Council members to work with
other young people in school, through partnership with the ROAR programme and at
events such as Breeze on Tour.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

We provide opportunities for young people to come together, discuss issues that
affect their lives and support them in working together write their manifesto; to plan
and take action to affect change in their own lives, the lives of others and the schools
and communities they live in.

Through meeting with elected members and other decision makers, scrutiny panels
and consultations, the Youth Council members aim to draw attention to young
people’s issues and seek to work with the council and others to bring about positive
change. They also raise awareness of democratic processes and support others to
engage a wider range of young people.

How do you work with them?

We meet with the full council four times year, but facilitate the executive’s meetings
on a more regular basis. The Youth Council also has “ECM Outcome” groups which
meet every six weeks. These groups recruit from across the membership of the
Youth Council and explore specific issues for young people.

The Youth Council also takes part in consultations from a range of different service
providers. Four members and 2 reserves are elected to sit on the UK Youth
Parliament as members/deputy members for Leeds. We also support two young
people who are paid as part time Youth Council workers.

Where do you work with them?
LYC - The Civic Hall, LYC Office, schools, Residentials, Visits and Trips in a variety
of settings.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 - 27 -
Page 143



Name: Gaby Paradis

Job Title: Project Worker
Organisation: Youth on Health (YoH)

Tel: 0113 3070905

Email: theproject.gp@btconnect.com
Fax: 0113 3070906

Youth on Health is a partnership programme supported by Leeds PCT, Leeds
Healthy Schools and the Project, WYYA. YoH is about children and young people.
YoH is made up of wedge based YoH groups for Primary Schools involved in the
Healthy School initiative, plus the original Central YoH which recruits from the high
schools. YoH is now working with approximately 100 children, from 50 schools and
in contact with over 150 primary schools and all high schools. The children and
young people have gained national recognition for their work and are featured on the
National Youth Agency’s Hear By Right website.

Who are the young people you work with?

The young people are elected and nominated through their schools. We encourage
schools to send a school council representative and a child or young person that they
feel would benefit from the process who might not have engaged with participatory
activities before. This year has seen an increased representative from SILCs and
with Central YoH we recruit young people from specific interest groups who can
contribute to the agenda. The age range is 8 -19yrs.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

We aim to work in partnership with children and young people in YoH. We provide a
range of different opportunities that enable them to choose a "health” theme for each
YoH group, identify what they want to say and put their “voice” into action.

The children and young people develop action plans to take back to their schools,
looking at what they want to achieve, what they need to do and who back at school
can support them. They then report back at their next session. This process has led
to real changes that are child/young people led.

The children and young people also run a young delegates event each year in each
wedge at Central YoH, where they meet with decision makers and services providers
including representatives from their schools to discuss their “health” theme and
activities.

An integral part of the process for the young people is activities that raise their
confidence, self esteem and communication skills. They also develop ways of
working with others and specific skills related to the programmes; arts, drama, film,
creative writing, editing etc.

YoH also contribute to other consultation and participation programmes such as
CAMHS, Sustainable Schools, School Dinners, Obesity Strategy etc.

How do you work with them?
Each YoH meets every half term during the school day. We explore their themes
through creative methods chosen by the young people.

Where do you work with them?
At a variety of venues in the wedges and at West Yorkshire Playhouse for Central
YOH.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 - 28 -
Page 144



Name: Andrina Dawson

Job Title: Youth Participation Worker
Organisation: Youth Point

Tel: 0113 274 9959

Email: andrinayouthpoint@hotmail.com
Fax: 0113 274 4795

| work for Youth Point, a locality based youth work provider that delivers a wide of
services for young people in North West Leeds. These can range from information
and support, detached youth work, youth arts projects, volunteering projects to
alternate curriculum programmes in schools.

In particular the Make it Happen project supports young people to be involved in
decision making and to have a voice. Any ideas of projects, volunteering or learning
that a young person initiates can be supported by Make it Happen.

Who are the young people you work with?
Young people aged between 13 and 19 who live within the North West of Leeds.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

The project’s primary aim is to encourage young people to participate in decision
making to a much higher level so that they are given more power and control of the
services, opportunities and issues that affect them.

How do you work with them?

The young people at Youth Point are given information about the participation
opportunities that are available to them, such as steering group meetings, youth
forums, young advisors programmes etc and are supported to access those
opportunities.

All of the projects that Make it Happen supports are initiated by young people and it
is the service users themselves who manage and control every aspect of their
project. Make it Happen provides support by giving information, highlighting the
available options, supporting access to funding and occasionally giving individual
support so that the young person can overcome any barriers they may experience
that could prevent them from participating fully.

Where do you work with them?
We work within various venues in young people’s communities or from Youth Point.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -29 -
Page 145



Name: Jo Holmes

Job Title: Youth Work Manager/Sexual health
Organisation: YSHAG in partnership with Health Ed Leeds
Tel: 07891 271043

Email: jo.holmes@leeds.gov.uk

Fax: 0113 2775307

YSHAG (Young Sexual Health Action Group) works with young people interested in
making a positive contribution to the development of city wide sexual health services,
as well as sex and relationship issues.

The aim of YSHAG is to:
'Inform, improve, modernise and revolutionise sexual health services and make them
more accessible to a wider range of young people across the city'.

Who are the young people you work with?

Young people are recruited from across the city in a variety of settings. Many come
from CASH (contraceptive and sexual health services), via youth work involvement in
clinics, some come from mainstream youth provision and others come via youth work
links in schools.

The age range is 13 to 19, with older young people involved as volunteers who help
run the group.

What are you aiming to achieve with them?

The above aims of YSHAG are achieved by members working towards becoming
active peer educators, acting as consultants and/or working alongside professionals
who deliver sex and relationship education, training and services. YSHAG aims to
have young people’s voices heard at as many levels as possible to begin to meet the
sexual health needs of young people across Leeds. This includes representation at
the Teenage Pregnancy and Parenthood Partnership Board.

How do you work with them?

We meet fortnightly and have a set agenda led by the young people looking at issues
such as project development, resource development, referrals, and opportunities for
YSHAG members to attend citywide sexual health initiatives.

Where do you work with them?
Citywise Clinic

No1 Eastgate

Fortnightly from 4-6.30

However, YSHAG offers sessional work in a number of venues, such as young
people’s dance nights where they provide a c-card and sexual health stall.

For more information and details of how to join the Leeds Participation Team please
contact the Project on 0113 3070905 or email at theproject1@btconnect.com.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 - 30 -
Page 146



I_\MI

9|doad bunoA pue uaip|iyd

A

100z Abajens uonedonled sa1doad BunoA pue uaip|iy) spas

A A A A A A A A A A

A 4 A 4 A 4 A 4 A 4 A 4 vV V vV V

A 4

looyss

A

....... "WwNJo4 YINoA wisniy

‘90IAI9S SIYBIY S,UaIp(IYD SPaa ‘dy3] ‘swiniod s,9/doad BUNOA 99IAI8S UINOA ‘aSIM ANID ‘YOuVE ‘ulod
YINoA ‘suoixauuo) ‘pieoqdny ay] ‘SHNVYD ‘dnols uonoy YyijesH |enxas BunoA ‘YijeaH uo yinoA ‘Bbuipnjou)

sdnoug uonedioijied ajdoad Buno pue uaipjiyd

¥ 3
Emwn—l Q:Ohw r— diysisuped wm_rMMmN r—
uonedioued spoa uonedioiued mm_<m_m ______________________________________
- S~ —
(SV10) sajeoonpy =
JUBWBA|OAU] 8|doad g
BunoA pue usipiyg pJeog | uonedionied
H e Bujuoissiwwo) pue .Q_cw.;.mctmn_
o1b6aje.g pajeibajul Jopea oifsjeng

3

I2UN0D YINoA

Page 147

A 4

SpaaT uaIp|yD

spaaT uoneonpyg

‘92110d ‘SHN
— 82IAI8S 1810

uodsuel |

N
O
O

wes | juswabeue

A
A 4

pJeog aAlnoaxg

ajelodion

A

\4

| aAnenu| spes]

Z Xipuaddy

[opoA diysiauyied

[apoly uonedidned

[IPUNOY [N

[oPOIN 213eI20WA(




Appendix 3

Outline Implementation Plan

Proposed model for commissioning children and young people’s participation

Given the overarching nature of participation and the importance in ensuring service
users’ voices are heard, the lead responsibility for co-ordinating commissioning
should rest with the Children’s Services Unit.

The process should be the following:

e Participation strategy developed by November 2007.

e Implementation plan developed between November — December 2007. This
will be undertaken by the strategic participation group.

e This will inform the drawing up of the specification for participation January —
February 2008 to be completed by the strategic participation group.

e The membership of the current strategic participation group should be
reviewed and the group established as the Participation Partnership to
oversee strategic implementation and performance management of
participation.

Strategic Leader: Partnerships and Participation

JPCP Joint Preventative Participation Partnership
Commissioning Panel with links to other children’s
commissioners

The Participation Partnership will have terms of reference and through the Joint
Preventative Commissioning Partnership and the Joint Preventative Partnership will
have a route to the Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board.

The commissioning plan for participation will need to cover the full range of young
people’s involvement work.

Leeds Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 -32-
Page 148



y 4

ol 4
]
1 |

their
to h
affecting



Why is participation
important?

* Young people are all entitled to input their opinions
and ideas into decisions that affect them.

* The only way a service will improve is to involve &
both adults and young people’s opinions.

It allows young people to make a positive
contribution and see their opinions being put in
practice.

Adults opinion + young people’s opinion =
a more representative opinion that is likely to have a

greater impact and be more effective.



participation

. I am a member of the Leeds Youth Council, a
democratically elected group of young people.

. Recently | became a Peer Support Worker for the
Leeds Youth Council, this is an employed role.

. I support the youth councillors.

o My ideas are often different from the adults
perspective. This is participation in action!

“Representing tomorrow
The Leeds Youth Council”




with:
Ofsted - to talk to them about inspecting schools.

Consulted by Education Leeds and Chris Edwards
(Chief Executive of Education Leeds) for our
perspective and opinion on the education system

Consulted by executive members of the Leeds City
Council to talk about what could be done to improve
the city for young people.

The Leeds Youth Council elects MYPs (members of
youth parliament) and...

Gordon Brown strongly favours this!




Becky’s experience o
participation

—, \
%/\‘\
_—
s S N L >
v >

e

I am a member of Youth on Health, a citywi
forum made up of 6 wedges, 5 local and one central.

We meet once every half term to discuss health topics
that affect our schools and Leeds as a whole.

| am also a member of ROAR, representing young
people’s opinions from all over Leeds when meeting
adult decision makers.

| recently finished FACILITATE, a programme designed
to train young people to become facilitators. The
young people are awarded accreditation units from the
open network college. The reason why this is
successful and young people want to volunteer and
give up their time is to receive this INFORMAL
EDUCATION! —




Participation is
successful

 Transport scrutiny panel, | was chair of the
transport scrutiny panel.

* We achieved a flat fare for every young person
in the city and developed a publication.

* Young people have been involved in every
decision, and this example of participation has
been very successful therefore showing how
participation works.




A good example of
participation.

/3 Google Image Result for hl:I:p:,-’,-’www.planningaid.rtpi.org.uk,.-"SITEfUPLli;‘D
Edit

The Leeds o e e — —
Youth Council ' '
have always
had strong
participation : .
links with @B PlanningAid
west Engaging Communities in

ARTICLE LEYEL: Go back to previous page
Yorkshire Young People's views on Leeds City Centre

- -
Planning Aid, o S o

: ider: - - e
In cons‘ erlng : i ¢ , . t Derartn : =Help, Advice &

Information
the future B - . e st [PV |
development A e e

’ " ) Centr -t =Become a champion
of Leeds. - " REIEETTE

tho wminn rannla ot thoa avant ko



The Youth =\

o S

Opportunities/Capital Fu

In Leeds, the panel group who distribute th
known as the LS£ash Panel.

The group assesses application forms from young
people applying for funding for something benefiting
young people; this could be a residential event or fo.r a
centre to be buiit.

This scheme shows young people helping other young
people.

They get satisfaction from helping other young people
and for having this adult associated responsibility.

The Local Network Fund is also a group that young
people are involved in allocating money to small

organisations, it has the same reward to everyone
involved as the Youth Opportunities Fund.

L‘S"Eush

2 tako "TC} [/ f._.-r.:lirr.':.-.r."f':yr



Hear By Rights!

* Many young people got involved in the Hear by
Rights agreement deciding how active the
involvement of children and young people «
should be in Leeds.




Overall

Participation is the way forward! /[
Not only do young people have the right t avea
say in decisions affecting them, this has proven to
be successful and involving both adults and young
people in making decisions is the right choice, ins
improving services for young people in Leeds.

After having discussed participation with other
young people at the Hear by Rights event, we all
felt that participation in Leeds was strong.
However we want to see more involvement of
young people at a bigger scale, for example
introducing young advisors.

We welcome the new Children Leeds participation
strategy for children and young people.




	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Previous Meeting - 8th November 2007
	7 Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	8 Support for Parents and Families in Leeds
	Support for Parents and Families in Leeds - Appendix

	9 Young People's Scrutiny Forum
	10 Education Standards - Draft Terms of Reference
	11 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Appendix 1
	Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Work Programme - Appendix 3

	12 Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 1
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 2a
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 2b
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 2c
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 3
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 4
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 5
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 6a
	Inquiry into Services for 8-13 Year Olds - Appendix 6b


